




1product
166 clients = 14%market share

An investment in SimCorp is an investment in:
-	Dedicated focus 
-	A strong market position 
 

-	State of the art solutions 
-	A solid business model 

SimCorp facts and figures
SimCorp is a leading provider of software solutions and services 
to the global buy-side investment management industry. 

40 years  
  of experience24% 

EBIT margin
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225 54 47 
+7.6% +15.6% +1.7%

Revenue EBIT CFFO
EURm EURm EURm

Sustained focus on shareholder value: 
- Sharebuy back program of EUR 42.9m 
- Combined payout ratio of 160%

Excellence in software development and a proven ability to gain 
market share secured strong results in 2013.

Growth in  
revenue above 
market average

Gaining  
market share

Strong cash 
flow from 
operations

Strong  
balance sheet

Ongoing 
high 
margins

High 
profitability 
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These highlights are reflected in our annual result. In 2013, 

SimCorp achieved revenue of EUR 225.1m – an improvement 

of 7.6% – and posted an operating profit (EBIT) of EUR 54.2m. 

This exceeded our expectations and confirms the viability of 

our organic growth strategy.

A changing market

Throughout 2013, we have noticed a gradual change of 

atmosphere in the global buy-side investment management 

industry. The disquieting situation in Europe is stabilizing and 

the positive sentiments from the growing North American 

market are setting the agenda.

Some investment managers are investing in continued 

internationalization to be closer to the markets they invest 

in. Others have a strategic focus on alternative investments. 

What they all have in common is a need to find ways of 

complying with the large wave of new regulations now 

affecting the industry. The individual investment managers 

are constantly challenged in their ability to efficiently handle 

risk, reduce cost, and generate growth – all of which put high 

demands on their investment management systems.

Front office focus

Over recent years, front office is the product area we have 

invested the most. Now we are beginning to see the invest-

ment pay off, as a number of our large clients have selected 

SimCorp as front office provider. The latest major win came in 

October 2013 when one of Europe’s largest asset managers, 

MEAG, decided to adopt the entire SimCorp Dimension front 

office suite, including Compliance Manager, Asset Manager, 

and Order Manager. 

We generally see investment managers looking for systems 

that are fully integrated from front to back office with only 

one engine for keeping all positions. Our front office solutions 

are well positioned to handle that, and the MEAG win is just 

one of a number of indications we have of now being able to 

Ready to  
seize the 
opportunities
For SimCorp, 2013 was a year dominated by positive developments.  
The notable need in the market to replace old legacy systems with modern, 
integrated, and real-time solutions was clearly reasserted. We improved  
our position in the front office segment and we gained new clients in  
our most important growth markets. All in all, we added 7 new clients  
to our portfolio, which now counts 166 in 23 countries. 
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Klaus Holse
Chief Executive Officer

– �Klaus Holse, Chief Executive Officer

“We are gaining market shares as 
more and more companies in the 
investment management industry 
come to understand the value to be 
gained from a modern, integrated, 
state-of-the-art investment 
management system.”

compete with best-of-breed solutions in the market. As our 

front office solutions have matured we expect more and more 

existing clients to see the benefit of adopting these.

Preventing legacy challenges

SimCorp’s extensive and continuous investments in research 

and development ensure that our clients will never face the 

legacy situation that many of our new clients have struggled 

with before adopting SimCorp Dimension. 

A report published by SimCorp StrategyLab in September 

2013 documents that one fourth of all investment managers 

globally operate on outdated systems. Infrequently updated 

and running on outdated technologies, these systems are 

typically a hindrance to meeting today’s increasing require-

ments for reporting and real-time overview. In some grave 

instances, the consequences are mismanagement and 

deteriorating return as the SimCorp StrategyLab report 

reveals. In 2013, SimCorp spent 22.0% of revenue on R&D, 

41% of our employees are constantly dedicated to the task 

of developing SimCorp Dimension, retaining our leading 

position in providing updated, state-of-the-art software and 

professional services to our clients. 

Investments in up-do-date systems like SimCorp Dimension 

will become more and more critical over time and I am con-

vinced that more and more companies will realize the business 

upside in this kind of future-proofing. 

 

North America driving growth
 
The US market is the world’s largest capital market and, with 
a market share of 4%, this is where SimCorp has its largest 
growth potential. Helped along by the new clients we have 
won in 2012 and 2013, we are continuously increasing our 
profile in North America. We expect the significant activity 
in North America to continue in 2014. To support this growth 
we have grown our sales and implementation support 
organization in North America, now counting more than 100 
employees, and we will continue to hire and relocate SimCorp 
Dimension experts to the North American market unit.

Generally we expect more than half of our new license agree-

ments to come from our growth markets which, in addition 

to North America, include the UK and France.  

Our unique asset

SimCorp’s potential can only be unleashed by the efforts of 

highly qualified employees around the world. They are the 

true vehicles in providing the value-generating solutions 

that move our clients’ businesses in successful directions. 

Our employees have done an outstanding job in 2013 and I 

am looking immensely forward to embarking on SimCorp’s 

promising journey in the coming years together with them.
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SimCorp Dimension – a multidimensional 
solution

SimCorp Dimension is the vehicle of SimCorp’s value proposi-

tion and every year substantial resources are invested in 

research and development: approximately 30% of SimCorp’s 

total expenses are investments in the product, encompassing 

more than 41% of all employees within the SimCorp Group. 

During the last decade, SimCorp Dimension has been 

released in a new and updated version every six months. It is 

a fundamental strategic decision to continue to invest in the 

development and improvement of SimCorp’s solutions and 

services to the benefit of the clients. SimCorp offers a peren-

nial guarantee that clients will never operate on an outdated 

platform. 

SimCorp Dimension is an integrated suite of front-to-back 

solutions with related services for business process automa-

tion in investment management. It is a business solution with 

individual modules to support any part of the investment 

management value chain across the enterprise. 

SimCorp also offers a variety of professional services 

designed to assist clients in all aspects of their software 

acquisition cycle – from initial implementation, planning, and 

configuration to maintenance, operations, IT and end-user 

training programs, and further to optimization of business 

processes. 
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“Over recent years, a number of large investment managers 
globally have selected SimCorp Dimension to exchange a legacy 
system. This is a true testament to our significant, ongoing 
investments in the platform.”
 

– ��Georg Hetrodt, Chief Technology Officer, SimCorp

For more information about SimCorp Dimension see page 90–91			 
and SimCorp’s website, www.simcorp.com
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Employee knowledge: SimCorp’s  
unique asset

As a specialized financial software and services provider, 

SimCorp is dependent on highly skilled and knowledgeable 

employees. The employees are SimCorp’s most unique asset. 

Most of SimCorp’s employees are highly educated and with 

long and extensive expertise, mostly within finance and soft-

ware development. More than 90% hold an academic degree, 

most in finance, IT, software engineering, and economics. 

Given the growth in recent years, SimCorp has now reached 

a size, organizational maturity, geographical complexity, 

and level of cross-border employee mobility at which global 

alignment of key people processes has become critically im-

portant for the growth of the business. Consequently, human 

resource management is a center of attention and a highly 

prioritized activity in SimCorp.

Sourcing of talent is increasingly important, particularly 

in SimCorp’s growth markets. The demand is being met 

through local recruitment as well as extensive cross-border 

mobility of existing and new employees. Different initiatives 

in the area of sourcing are currently ongoing or being devel-

oped to support an increasing need for a global and agile 

work force.

It is well documented that employee satisfaction and engage-

ment have a key impact on for instance absence and staff 

turnover, and ultimately also client satisfaction and business 

profit. SimCorp measures and analyses employees’ satisfac-

tion on an ongoing basis based on a large employee survey 

conducted every other year, complemented by a number of 

smaller snapshot surveys every six months. SimCorp’s general 

employee satisfaction is high, but is nevertheless a constant 

focus of attention. Based on input from employee surveys, 

SimCorp continuously takes measures to create a workplace 

that will attract and retain skillful employees.

SimCorp believes that a dedicated effort towards better 

leadership will help attract and retain highly qualified 

employees and enhance the overall condition and success 

of the company. SimCorp has its own ‘Leadership Academy’ 

dedicated to improving its overall management capacity, to 

develop organizational agility, and strengthen diversity to 

further improve business performance.

SimCorp has an extensive internal training program aimed 

at constantly educating new employees and improving the 

skills of all employees. A large part of the internal courses 

are training in SimCorp Dimension. The cornerstone of these 

product courses is the SimCorp Dimension Academy, a three-

week, full-time course, aimed at educating employees (and 

clients) in the core concepts of each functional area within 

SimCorp Dimension. The course is mandatory for all new 

employees that work directly with SimCorp Dimension.  

87 employees went through the course in 2013.

Management report  Strategy

SimCorp’s employees 2013

Average number of 
full-time employees

1093  

Years average  
senority

7

Nationalities

45

Average  
employee age

40

Educational level

Bachelor

21%

Master’s62%

8%

Ph.d.

Other

9%  68%

 Men

 Women 

 32%

Gender
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Financial targets for 2014 include the expected impact of the 
acquisition by SimCorp of 100% of the shares in Equipos Ltd.  
per 25 February 2014.

It is expected that the Equipos Ltd. acquisition will impact total 

revenue positively by 2 %-points in both local and reported cur-

rencies. The revenue from Equipos Ltd. will be fully included in 

SimCorp’s revenue as of 1 March 2014.

In connection with the Equipos Ltd. acquisition, SimCorp will 

incur certain non-recurring costs. Including these costs in the 

total cost base and taking into consideration the additional  

revenue growth coming from the Equipos Ltd. acquisition, the 

EBIT margin is expected to be negatively impacted by  

0.5 %-points in both local and reported currencies in 2014.

Once fully completed and after realization of potential synergies, 

the Equipos Ltd. acquisition is expected to contribute positively 

towards SimCorp’s ambition of expanding the EBIT margin.

Market developments

The underlying positive macroeconomic trends seen during 

2013 – particularly in North America, but also in Europe – are 

expected to continue in 2014.

The total number of deals available in the 2014 market is 

difficult to predict, but based on the strong market per-

formance that SimCorp has delivered during the last three 

years – realizing win ratios comfortably above 40% each year 

– SimCorp expects to continue to gain market share in 2014.

SimCorp believes that investment managers’ IT budgets for 

2014 will increase slightly compared to the level seen in 2013, 

due to an increased focus on legacy system replacement.

The most important focus areas in the investment manage-

ment industry are expected to be:

–	� Risk management, monitoring and control, as well as ad-

ditional reporting requirements from regulators

–	� Cost savings and efficiency enhancement of in-house 

processes

–	� Compliance with new legislation and regulation in a cost-

effective manner

–	� Establishing scalable platforms allowing for substantial 

increases in assets under management

–	 The ability to offer improved service to clients.

Financial
targets 2014
SimCorp expects revenue growth of 10% in 2014 (local currencies), along with  
an EBIT margin of 24% (local currencies). This includes the effect from the 
acquisition of Equipos Ltd. SimCorp’s long-term target is to generate double- 
digit annual revenue growth, and expand margins year-on-year. 

Financial targets 2014 Estimated revenue distribution 2014

Revenue (local currencies)  10% 10.0%

Revenue (reported currencies)  8.5% 7.6%

EBIT margin (local currencies)  24% 24.5%

EBIT margin (reported currencies)  23.8% 24.1% 

Annual report 2013
25 February 2014

Realized
2013

Distribution of revenue

–  license fees 20–30% 18.8%

–  professional services 30–35% 33.9%

–  maintenance 45% 46.3%

–  training activity, etc. 1–2% 1.0%

Costs (% of total expenses)

–  staff 75% 73.4%

–  research and development 30% 29.0%

Annual report 2013
25 February 2014

Realized
2013
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Management report  Risk management

SimCorp’s business entails a number of commercial and fi-

nancial risk elements that can potentially have a negative ef-

fect on the company’s future activities and results. To reduce 

risk to the furthest possible extent, all factors which are 

subject to uncertainty, and hence categorized as potential 

risk, are systematically monitored, analysed, and managed.

In the following section, a brief description of the most im-

portant risk factors is outlined together with a brief descrip-

tion of the preventive measures implemented to mitigate 

each risk. A comprehensive description of SimCorp’s finan-

cial risk is provided in note 29 to the financial statements. 

Overall, SimCorp’s management believes the company is 

well prepared to manage the potential risk challenges. On a 

quarterly basis, the company’s risk profile is reported to the 

Board of Directors, including an assessment of the probabil-

ity of occurrence of each risk and of the likely impact on the 

company’s financial performance, together with mitigation 

options. 

Risk
management
It is essential for SimCorp’s Board of Directors and management that risk 
exposure is thoroughly monitored. As the business environment is ever 
developing and highly volatile, SimCorp’s policies and procedures ensure 
an efficient management of identified risks.

–	 Identify risks and threats

–	 Determine frequencies and 	

	 consequences

–	 Establish risk picture

–	 Evaluate risk  

	 (against risk acceptance criteria)

–	 Legal considerations

–	 Propose mitigating measures

–	 Make decisions related to  

	 risk-reducing measures

–	 Implement control measures 		

	 (policies)

–	 Monitor effects

– 	 Reporting

Risk management at SimCorp

Risk analyses	 Risk evaluation	 Risk control

In SimCorp’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, the  
organizational setup of Risk Management is described, 
see www.simcorp.com/corpgov2013uk
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“It’s a priority for SimCorp to work systematically 
with risk control. We closely analyze and seek to  
minimize potential risk to ensure that our 
operational strategy and goals are affected 
to the least extent possible.”
 – Simon Jeffreys, Chairman of the Audit Committee 
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Management report  Risk ManagementManagement report  Risk management

Risk mitigationRisk category

Markets and clients

Envisaging and responding to important trends in the market for profes-
sional investment managers is critical to SimCorp’s ability to win market 
share. Failing to spot these trends naturally poses a risk to SimCorp.

Also, competitors’ expansion of international service-offerings and distri-
bution can potentially endanger SimCorp’s leading market position.

In addition, new local requirements or legislation may influence the current 
demand for SimCorp’s product.

Corporate culture

SimCorp’s business is based on specialized expertise and innovation. It is 
imperative that SimCorp continues to attract, develop and retain the most 
skilled employees and management talent. Failure to do so constitutes a 
risk to the Group.

Moreover, it is considered a genuine risk to SimCorp’s long term position if 
the company’s corporate values do not continue to serve as a core basis for 
business execution and development.	

Product innovation and quality

Product innovation, improved technical infrastructure, and enhanced  
technical capabilities are fundamental elements in meeting new system 
requirements in the market. Being unable to secure those elements 
would entail a risk that SimCorp Dimension eventually ends up as a legacy 
offering.

SimCorp’s ability to offer clients the best software products with the 
highest possible configurability and flexibility is paramount. Inadequate 
quality control and testing prior to the release of new software versions 
increases the risk of reduced client satisfaction and loyalty.

Solutions and services

It is key for SimCorp to provide standardized end-to-end serviced solutions, 
both during implementation and after clients have gone live.

Running on SimCorp Dimension entails having to deal with a variety of 
technical aspects such as technical infrastructure, WAN lines, third-party 
integration, databases, data interfaces and software applications.

Services in relation to such are provided by SimCorp and subcontractors 
engaged by SimCorp. If SimCorp fails to balance the requirements of cli-
ents and agreements with these subcontractors, SimCorp risks impairing 
the clients’ businesses as well as its own. 

During implementation the largest risk is an improper implementation of 
SimCorp Dimension, leading to increased operational risk and costs for 
SimCorp’s clients.

Following implementation, the most apparent risk is possible breach of 
service level agreements and other committed standards.

Through extensive market research and industry analyses, SimCorp keeps 
abreast of trends and tendencies in the global financial markets. 

Also, SimCorp’s private research institution SimCorp StrategyLab ensures 
valuable insights into financial market trends.

Further, the close and longstanding relationships with clients allow SimCorp 
to anticipate and respond to market movements and new requirements. 

SimCorp allocates substantial resources to internal and external training 
and development to ensure that professional and personal skills are con-
stantly being maintained and enhanced throughout the organization.

To ensure that SimCorp employees possess the relevant competences, 
training activities to a large extent draw on the experiences of more senior 
employees, which optimizes the benefits of all employee development 
initiatives. 

SimCorp offers updated product versions of SimCorp Dimension every six 
months. Updates provide enhanced system functionality and improved 
technical infrastructure based on a systematic prioritization among client 
and market requirements. 

A key element of the product development strategy is extensive quality 
control and testing prior to the release of new software versions.

SimCorp continuously raises and follows up on internal quality targets, 
ensuring alignment with expected market developments. 

SimCorp has established various measures to control both external and 
internal risk to the provision of full-service packages. 

Externally, a due diligence process is conducted on each subcontractor to 
ensure its sufficient strength – financially, organizationally, and product-
wise – to meet SimCorp’s requirements. Internally, a clear description and 
overview of each delivery component allows for a clear segregation of 
duties. 

Moreover, SimCorp’s consultants undergo continuous training to maintain 
and develop the required knowledge and experience in relation to the 
operational services.
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Risk mitigationRisk category

Regulatory issues and fiscal policies

Protecting SimCorp’s long term business interests is vital to its continued 
operations. This includes legal risk that may influence SimCorp’s business. 
SimCorp believes contractual risk as well as legal risk related to regulatory 
requirements to be critical.

Failure to meet or implement regulatory requirements in a timely fashion 
with respect to, for instance data protection, confidentiality agreements, 
IPR, and fraud constitutes a risk.

SimCorp is subject to tax and fiscal policies in the countries where the 
company operates. Changes to such local policies may affect SimCorp’s 
tax and fiscal position.

Due to the nature of SimCorp’s operations, the company is exposed to 
changes in currency exchange rates. A detailed analysis and description 
of the financial risk exposure is provided in note 29 to the financial 
statements.

Financial Reporting

Generally, the financial reporting process involves the risk of incomplete 
overview of or insight into applicable legislation and potential business risk. 

There is also a risk of inadequate internal controls designed to avoid 
significant errors and omissions in  financial reporting. 

IT resources

As a technology company with a core business based on modern infor-
mation technology, SimCorp’s failure to adequately protect itself against 
IT risk, represents a risk. 

Unauthorized access to SimCorp’s network and data could endanger 
applications as well as the infrastructure and the technical environment 
stored on SimCorp’s network. The same goes for virus attacks and theft 
of code and know-how which could also entail prolonged system break-
downs impairing productivity and potentially making SimCorp unable to 
service its clients. 

SimCorp ensures that all contracts entered into are carefully phrased.

SimCorp monitors and assesses the scope of new legislation potentially 
affecting business procedures. This includes identification of significant 
tax risk as well as preparing documentation covering these.

SimCorp’s Group Finance department manages the company’s currency 
and financial exposure pursuant to the treasury policy approved by the 
Board of Directors, just as it keeps the overall currency exposure within 
defined limits.

Furthermore, Group Finance ensures that SimCorp, in line with the tax 
policy implemented, at all times is tax compliant in the countries where 
SimCorp conducts business.

SimCorp has implemented a number of business procedures and controls 
to enhance transparency of individual activities and provide an improved 
overview of financial exposure. 

SimCorp has implemented various business procedures and controls to 
ensure compliance in relation to financial reporting. These are based on a 
range of general principles, policies and procedures, which are assessed 
and adjusted by SimCorp’s Board of Directors and Executive Management 
Board on a regular basis. 

The Danish Financial statements Act requires that an overall description of 
the Group’s internal controls and risk management in regards to financial 
reporting is included in the presentations of the financial statements. 
The full wording of the SimCorp management’s statutory description 
under section 107 b of the Danish Financial statements Act is available on 
SimCorp’s website: www.simcorp.com/corpgov2013uk

The Executive Management Board monitors compliance and provides the 
Board of Directors with relevant legislation and reports.

SimCorp continuously monitors its global technical infrastructure, 
aiming to foresee and minimize risk to the company’s production 
and the operation. Through well-established procedures and solu-
tions, SimCorp is able to quickly restore critical business services. 

SimCorp also operates with a high data security level and main-
tains strict access control to the physical environment as well as 
to its data network. The controls are monitored and reviewed on a 
regular basis in order to optimize IT security.
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SimCorp’s expectations at the beginning of 2013 were a 

revenue growth measured in local currencies of 5% or more 

along with an EBIT margin in reported currency (EUR) of 22% 

or more.

In the half-year report, the expectations for 2013 were 

upgraded to a revenue growth of more than 8% and an EBIT 

margin exceeding 23%. At the same time, SimCorp stressed 

that the development for the first six months of the year  

reflected a different pattern in the timing of particular 

revenue from new license agreements, where  SimCorp in H1 

2013 signed more license agreements with new clients than 

had historically been the case. 

The Q3 report continued to have a different timing pattern 

for license revenue due to higher than normal revenue from 

additional license sales, but this did not affect overall expec-

tations for the full year. Hence, the expectations for revenue 

from additional licenses in Q4 would, all other things being 

equal, be lower than in previous years.

Despite a lower number of new license orders signed in 2013, 

SimCorp grew total revenue to EUR 225.1m, by 7.6% (10.0% 

measured in local currencies). Foreign exchange movements 

had a negative impact of  EUR 4.9m on revenue and EUR 

2.0m on earnings, and still SimCorp reported an EBIT margin 

of 24.1%, equivalent to EUR 54.2m – an improvement of 

15.6% compared with last year.

 
Business targets for 2013

In 2013, SimCorp focused on growing the company while at 

the same time maintaining sustainable profitability, ensuring 

that SimCorp will be able to deliver superior software and 

services in the long term. The focus areas for 2013 can be 

summed up with the following headlines:

–	� Revitalize software sales => partly met

–	� Support SimCorp growth markets – North America, 

France and the UK => met

–	� Bring more standardized services to the market =>  

met

–	 Be accountable => met

Financial  
review 2013
SimCorp achieved an EBIT margin of 24.1% in 2013 and EBIT increased  
by 15.6% compared to 2012. Strong performance in professional services  
and additional license sales fuelled the positive EBIT development and 
supported a 10.0% revenue growth measured in local currencies.  
SimCorp considers the 2013 results satisfactory.
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Financial expectations and realized 2013 Estimated distribution of revenue and realized 2013

Revenue  > 5% > 8% 9.5%–10% 10.0%

(local currencies)

EBIT margin > 22% > 23% 23.5%–24% 24.1%

(reported currency) 

Annual report 2012
27 February 2013

H1 2013
24 August 2013

Trading update
6 January 2014

Realized

Distribution of revenue

–  license fees 20–30% 18.8%

–  professional services 30–35% 33.9%

–  maintenance 45% 46.3%

–  training activity, etc. 1–2% 1.0%

Costs (% of total expenses)

–  staff 75% 73.4%

–  research and development 30% 29.0%

Annual report 2012
27 February 2013

Realized
2013
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Revitalize software sales 

The total license order inflow decreased by 12.8% to EUR 

42.8m in 2013. Seven new SimCorp Dimension solutions 

were sold, totalling EUR 13.2m. The order book decreased 

from EUR 14.4m at 1 January 2013 to EUR 13.8m at 31 

December 2013. 

While SimCorp enjoyed a high number of new license orders 

(five) in North America in 2012, the vast majority of new 

license orders in 2013 came from other markets, with two 

out of seven orders coming from the North American mar-

ket. However, the reduced number of new license orders 

in North America was a result of potential sales not being 

signed as quickly as last year rather than SimCorp losing 

momentum.  

SimCorp signed three new license orders in the other desig-

nated growth markets – two in the UK and one in France. In 

addition SimCorp saw one new license order in the mature 

Nordic market and one in the Swiss market, bringing the total 

number of new license orders to seven.

Order inflow of additional licenses continued to be under 

pressure in 2013 as was the case in 2012. Measured as a 

percentage of the total value of the installed license base 

the conversion rate for additional licenses was 5.5% in 2013 

“During 2013 we further strengthened 
our market position. The high quality 
of earnings and a strong balance 
sheet ensure, that we are well 
positioned for continued growth.”

– ��Thomas Johansen, Chief Financial Officer, SimCorp
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compared to 5.6% in 2012. While the conversion rate is on 

a similar level as last year, the order inflow in EUR increased 

by one million to EUR 29.6m. The order inflow for additional 

licenses is to a certain extent still negatively impacted by 

the ‘like-for-like’ campaign for front office modules that was 

initiated back in 2011 and the full benefit from the new front 

office solutions has not yet yielded additional license orders 

of significant scale. Still only roughly half of SimCorp’s clients 

are using SimCorp Dimension in the front office.

Support SimCorp growth markets 

SimCorp strengthed its position in designated growth mar-

kets with a total of five new deals. Furthermore, the North 
American market unit reached employee number 106 late in 

the year compared to 81 at the beginning of the year – a true 

testimony to the increased level of activity in that particular 

market.

In the French market, a new Managing Director was wel-

comed in October 2013 and towards the end of the year  

SimCorp signed a new client in France. Also, the existing 

French clients continued to demand various services from 

SimCorp in 2013, leading to a generally high activity level.

Lastly, two new clients were signed in the UK market. While 

one of those clients is a Middle East based sovereign wealth 

fund, the other is a London based British asset manager 

giving comfort about the future growth expectations in this 

important European growth market. 

Bring more standardized services to market

During 2013, SimCorp signed the first larger “managed 

services” deal in Germany and towards the end of the year yet 

another “managed services” deal was signed in the Nordic 

market. SimCorp also signed seven new “test and validation” 

agreements with clients from various markets. In addition, 

SimCorp sold more than 20 “trade repository reporting” solu-

tions, enabling clients to comply with new regulations. Finally, 

SimCorp hired an Executive Vice President in 2013 to head up 

the definition and delivery of these standardized services on a 

global basis.

 

Be accountable

Being accountable in everything SimCorp says and does 

is of utmost importance to the company. In 2013, SimCorp 

achieved the financial performance goals, and performed 

even better on most of them compared to the expectations 

set forth. SimCorp continues to invest heavily in both its 

product – SimCorp Dimension – and its employees. During 

2013, SimCorp introduced a number of new standardized 

services – in line with expectations set up. Overall, SimCorp 

concludes that it has shown accountability during the year – 

and will strive to do so in the years to come.

Income Statement

Revenue

SimCorp derives revenue from three sources: license fees, 

fees from professional services, and maintenance income. 

SimCorp generated total revenue of EUR 225.1m in 2013 

compared to EUR 209.2m last year, equal to an increase of 

7.6% compared to 2012. Exchange rate fluctuations for the 

year had a negative impact of EUR 4.9m on revenue, equal to 

2.4%. In local currencies, revenue thus increased by 10.0%.

SimCorp’s total license fee revenue in 2013 was EUR 42.3m, 

which was EUR 0.1m lower than last year. The decline in 

new license orders was offset by increased revenue from 
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Financial expectations and realized 2013 Estimated distribution of revenue and realized 2013

Revenue  > 5% > 8% 9.5%–10% 10.0%

(local currencies)

EBIT margin > 22% > 23% 23.5%–24% 24.1%

(reported currency) 

Annual report 2012
27 February 2013

H1 2013
24 August 2013

Trading update
6 January 2014

Realized

Distribution of revenue

–  license fees 20–30% 18.8%

–  professional services 30–35% 33.9%

–  maintenance 45% 46.3%

–  training activity, etc. 1–2% 1.0%

Costs (% of total expenses)

–  staff 75% 73.4%

–  research and development 30% 29.0%

Annual report 2012
27 February 2013

Realized
2013

Quarterly income
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Breakdown of costs

Sales and 27.3 17% 13% 12%

   distributions costs

Cost of sales 76.6 47% 37% 15%

Research and 45.6 28% 22% 3% 

   development costs

Administrative expenses 13.0 9% 6%   (1)%

Total 162.5 100% 78% 9%
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additional license contracts. In total, license fee revenue 

accounted for 18.8% of the Group’s total revenue compared 

to 20.3% last year. Revenue recognized from the sale of initial 

licenses accounted for EUR 12.2m compared to EUR 14.8m 

in 2012. Revenue recognized from add-on licenses to clients 

accounted for EUR 30.1m compared to EUR 27.6m last year.

As in 2012 more than 100 clients have expanded their use of 

SimCorp Dimension during 2013. This includes the 15 largest 

clients who on average generated add-on license revenue 

worth EUR 1.0m each – similar to last year´s level. SimCorp’s 

existing clients made additional investments in SimCorp  

Dimension in 2013, and the number  of clients with a license 

base of more than EUR 2m was unchanged at 60% of all clients 

at 31 December 2013. The accumulated value of the installed 

license base  for clients that have an installed license base 

above EUR 2m accounted for 85% of the value of the total in-

stalled license base, slightly lower than the level last year. The 

license base is the contract value of all software licenses sold. 

Around 19% of SimCorp’s total revenue was generated by the 

ten largest clients which is a decrease from last year’s level 

of 24%. Again no single client accounted for more than 4% of 

the revenue. 

Fees from professional services were EUR 76.3m compared 

to EUR 66.1m in 2012, equal to a 15.6% increase. Fees from 

professional services accounted for 33.9% of total revenue in 

2013 compared to 31.6% in 2012.

Maintenance income increased with the completion and 

implementation of new client installations and new function-

ality to existing clients. It increased by 6.3% from last year’s 

EUR 98.1m to EUR 104.3m. Maintenance income accounted 

for 46.3% of total revenue compared to 46.9% in 2012. 

License agreements won in 2013 will increase annual main-

tenance income by around EUR 8.0m once implemented.

SimCorp entered 2014 with signed revenue for the full year of 

EUR 157m – an increase of EUR 7m compared to the begin-

ning of 2013, and higher than ever before.

SimCorp saw strong top-line growth in the designated 

growth markets in 2013 while some of the more mature 

markets also enjoyed relatively high growth, taking SimCorp’s 

position in these mature markets into consideration.

Costs

SimCorp’s total operating expenses (including amortiza-

tion and depreciation) increased by 5.2% to EUR 170.9m 

in 2013 compared to EUR 162.5m in 2012. The total costs 

were positively impacted (meaning lower costs) by currency 

fluctuations of EUR 2.9m, equal to 1.8%. 
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2013 Revenue per type
2013 Revenue per country

Germany, Austria, Switzerland 30% 31%

Denmark, Sweden, Norway,  24% 25% 

Finland

USA, Canada 17% 15%

Belgium, Netherlands, France,  12% 13%

Luxemburg 

Australia, Singapore,  7% 9%

Hong Kong

UK, Ireland 6% 5%

Other 4% 2%

Initial licenses  6%  7%

Add-on licenses  13%  13%

Professional Service  35%  33%

Maintenance  46%  47%
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 2013 2012  2013 2012

Total revenue (markets)

Central Europe 68.5 64.6   6.0%

Nordic 53.9 51.7   4.3%

North America 38.0   29.7 27.9%

Western Europe 27.5 27.9 (1.4%)

UK 21.3 16.4 29.9%

Asia 15.9 18.9 (15.9%)

Total 225.1 209.2 7.6%
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In 2013, around 73.4% of SimCorp’s total costs were directly 

related to employees compared to 73.0% in 2012. The cost 

increase in 2013 was driven by a 1.7% increase in the average 

number of  full-time employees from 1,075 to 1,093, and an 

average salary increase of 2.5%. The number of employees 

was 1,163 at the end of 2013, representing an increase of 50 

compared to 2012.

Salary costs for implementation consultants are included in 

costs of sales and account for a significant part of the total 

cost of sales. As a result of the increased activity level in 

2012, which continued throughout 2013, total cost of sales 

increased by 5.6% equivilant to EUR 4.3m. 

R&D costs increased by 8.7% from EUR 45.6m to EUR 

49.5m. The increase was mainly driven by the general salary 

increase of 2.5% combined with an increase in the number 

of employees working within the R&D division. Management 

maintains focus on the ongoing improvement of efficiency 

and effectiveness within the R&D division.

The Group’s sales and marketing capacity was at the level 

of last year reflecting an unchanged level of activity. Focus 

on increasing awareness particularly in North America 

has been maintained throughout the year. For the more 

established markets, focus in 2013 has been on ongoing 

marketing efforts to safeguard SimCorp’s market leading 

position. 

SimCorp’s total sales and distribution costs decreased by 

1.3% from EUR 27.3m to EUR 27.0m in 2013. 

Administrative expenses increased by 4.4% to EUR 13.5m.

Group performance

SimCorp generated EBIT of EUR 54.2m in 2013 compared to 

EUR 46.9m in 2012, an increase of EUR 7.3m. This was the re-

sult of an increased focus on efficiency gains and increased 

revenue from additional licenses and professional services. 

The EBIT margin was improved from 22.4% in 2012 to 24.1% 

in 2013. Exchange rate fluctuations for the year had a nega-

tive net impact of 0.4 %-points on the EBIT margin. 

Cash holdings and foreign exchange adjustments generated 

financial income of EUR 2.4m. Financial expenses, primarily re-

lating to foreign exchange adjustments, amounted to EUR 2.5m. 

Continuing operations thus generated a before tax profit for 

the year of EUR 54.0m against EUR 47.0m in 2012.

The tax charge for 2013 amounted to EUR 14.7m against EUR 

12.5m in 2012. The effective tax rate was 27.2% compared to 

26.6% in 2012.

 

The Group profit after taxes  for the year was thus EUR 

39.3m against EUR 34.5m in 2012. After EUR 1.6m of foreign 

currency translation differences and other items, total 

comprehensive income for the year amounted to EUR 37.8m 

against EUR 34.3m in 2012.

 
Balance sheet

SimCorp had total assets of EUR 117.5m at 31 December 

2013 compared to total assets of EUR 125.8m at 31 Decem-

ber 2012. Cash holdings amounted to EUR 47.1m, or EUR 

11.8m less than at the year-earlier date. Total receivables 
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Cost structure 2013
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Administration 8% 9%
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Cost of sales 80.9 47% 36% 6%

Research and 49.5 29% 22% 9% 

   development costs
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Total 170.9 100% 76% 5%
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stood at EUR 49.3m at 31 December 2013 against EUR 46.1m 

at 31 December 2012. SimCorp has not recorded any provi-

sions for bad debts in either 2013 or 2012. 

The Group’s non-current assets were slightly reduced by  

EUR 0.3m compared to 2012 to stand at EUR 15.6m at 31  

December 2013. Goodwill was EUR 0.8m at 31 December 

2013. The carrying amount of acquired software decreased 

from EUR 0.6m to EUR 0.4m, while deferred tax assets 

increased by EUR 0.5m to EUR 6.2m. Property, plant, and 

equipment amounted to EUR 4.8m against EUR 5.2m in 2012.

Changes in equity

The Group’s equity decreased during the year from EUR 

85.9m to EUR 71.6m. Comprehensive income amounted to 

EUR 37.8m against EUR 34.3m last year. The net effect from 

the sale of employee shares and share-based payments 

related to stock options was EUR 10.9m, compared to EUR 

11.1m in 2012, and increased equity by EUR 10.9m. Dividend 

payments of EUR 20.1m against EUR 17.2m last year and  

purchases of treasury shares of EUR 42.9m against EUR 

25.5m in 2012 reduced equity by EUR 63.0m in 2013 com-

pared to EUR 42.7m in 2012.

Cash flow statement

Operating activities generated a net cash inflow of EUR 

47.4m against EUR 46.7m last year, and there was a net cash 

outflow of EUR 2.8m from investing activities compared to 

EUR 0.8m in 2012. SimCorp thus generated a net cash inflow 

from operations and investments of EUR 44.6m against EUR 

45.9m in 2012.

Investment activities, primarily in improved technological 

infrastructure, comprised purchases of computing and com-

munication equipment (technical equipment) of EUR 2.4m 

and a loan granted to an associated company of EUR 0.4m.

SimCorp purchased 1,881,651 treasury shares with a nominal 

value of DKK 1 in 2013 at an average price of DKK 169.89 per 

share of DKK 1. SimCorp sold 63,350 treasury shares of DKK 

1 with a total market value of EUR 1.2m as part of the year’s 

employee share program. SimCorp delivered 609,270 trea-

sury shares with a nominal value of DKK 1 in connection with 

the excercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock 

units to employees and members of the Executive Manage-

ment Board. Further, 5,810 treasury shares were delivered as 

remuneration of the Board of Directors in accordance with a 

resolution adopted by the shareholders in the annual general 

meeting 2013.

At 31 December 2013 SimCorp held 2,147,241 treasury 

shares with a nominal value of DKK 1 each (4.9% of the total 

share capital) at an acquisition value of EUR 47.4m and a 

market value of EUR 61.4m. At 31 December 2012, SimCorp 

held 2,444,020 treasury shares with a nominal value of DKK 1 

each equivalent to 5.4% of total share capital, with an acqui-

sition value of EUR 33.4m and a market value of EUR 41.4m.

	

The parent company SimCorp A/S

In 2013, the parent company generated revenue of EUR 

93.0m, an increase of EUR 2.1m compared to 2012. The 

parent company received dividends totaling EUR 25.7m from 

subsidiaries in 2013 compared to EUR 24.4m in 2012. Profit 
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after tax for the year was EUR 37.5m against EUR 35.2m in 

2012. Equity decreased by EUR 14.5m to EUR 57.0m, including 

share capital of EUR 5.8m, retained earnings of EUR 29.0m, 

and a proposed dividend of EUR 22.2m.

Profit allocation

The Board of Directors intends to recommend to sharehold-

ers at the annual general meeting that, of the total recog-

nized comprehensive income of EUR 37.5m, dividends of EUR 

22.2m be declared, representing DKK 4.00 per share of DKK 1, 

and that EUR 15.3m be transferred to retained earnings.

Q4 performance
 

Taking into consideration that revenue from additional 

license sales were expected to be lower than in Q4 2012 as 

a result of the activites in Q3 revenue, Q4 turned out to be a 

‘better than expected’ quarter with revenue of EUR 67.5m – 

in line with Q4 2012, and EBIT of EUR 22.5m, a reduction of 

EUR 3.7m.

In particular revenue from professional services was strong 

in Q4 2013 with a total revenue of EUR 22.7m up 26.1% 

compared with last year. The increased revenue from 

professional services together with an 8.9% increase in 

maintenance revenue substantially offset the effect of lower 

revenue from both new license sales and sales of additional 

licenses to existing clients. 

Reflecting the better operating result in 2013 the perfor-

mance-based bonuses were one of the main reasons for the 

total increase in costs in Q4 2013, up 8.4% compared to Q4 

2012, this was in line with expectations.

Significant events occurring after the end  
of the financial year

On 25 February 2014 SimCorp A/S acquired the remaining 

80% of the shares in Equipos Ltd. for GBP 8.3m (EUR 10.0m). 

A part of the purchase price is subject to the continued em-

ployment of the founders and key employees of Equipos Ltd. 

for a three year period after completion of the acquisition. 

SimCorp will subsequently own 100% of Equipos Ltd. Prior to 

the acquisition, SimCorp owned 20% of the company, which 

was recognized as an associated company in the Group 

financial statements using the equity method. 

 

The acquisition will result in an accounting gain of approxi-

mately EUR 1.1m in Q1 2014, which is the difference between 

the value of the 20% ownership calculated at fair value and 

the carrying amount. As the acquisition is completed just 

ahead of SimCorp’s presentation of its financial statements 

for 2013, a final purchase price allocation for the acquisition 

has not been made. A preliminary calculation estimates that 

the acquisition will lead to an additional value of approxi-

mately EUR 11.0m, mainly related to goodwill and software. 

There will be no material impact on the other balance sheet 

items. The acquisition of Equipos Ltd. will have a positive 

impact on total revenue of 2 %-points, and the EBIT margin 

is expected to be adversely affected by 0.5 %-points in 2014 

due to certain non-recurring costs relating to the acquisition.

 

Equipos Ltd., headquartered in the UK, is a leading provider 

of reporting software capabilities. The products are already 

utilized by some of SimCorps´ clients, and SimCorp expects 

that significantly more clients will adopt the reporting func-

tionality from Equipos Ltd. under SimCorp’s full ownership. 

The existing clients of Equipos Ltd. are expected to continue 

to use the product.
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Q4 profit and loss

License revenue 2.1 5.7 (63.2%) 

Extra sales 15.2 18.3 (16.9%)

Professional services 22.7 18.0 26.1%

Maintenance 27.0 24.8 8.9%

Other 0.5 0.7 (28.6%)

Total revenues 67.5 67.5 –

Other operating income 0.0 0.2 (100.0%)

Total costs 45.0 41.5 8.4%

EBIT 22.5 26.2 (14.1%)

 

Q4 2012Q4 2013EURm Change

Q4 profit and loss
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29Management report  Case study: HOOPP

“The alternative portfolio structure which we have moved to at 
HOOPP makes extensive use of derivatives and our legacy systems 
simply could not support the new direction we were taking in our 
investment approach. SimCorp Dimension has provided the 
technical support which has allowed us to meet our business goals.” 

www.hoopp.com

Healthcare of Ontario Pension Plan 
–	� A leading pension fund in Canada providing pension 

services to Ontario’s health care sector.
–	� Liability-driven model as investment approach.  

$47.4 billion in assets under management.

–	� Yielded an unprecedented investment return of 
17.1% in 2012.

– �Jim Keohane, President and CEO of Healthcare of Ontario Pension Plan (HOOPP)
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SimCorp has extensive experience in entering new markets. 

A disciplined and proven approach has secured market 

shares of 70% in the Nordic countries and 25% in  

Central Europe. 

Market unit
review
All units experienced high activity levels, which resulted in seven  
new clients in 2013 and a satisfactory pipeline for 2014.

USDm	 2013	 2012	 Change

Total revenue	 50.5	 38.2	 32.2%

–  license fees	 12.5	 10.6	 17.9%

–  professional services	 27.7	 19.4	 42.8%

–  maintenance income	 10.2	 8.0	 27.5%

–  training activities etc	 0.1	 0.2	 (50.0%)

New wins	 2	 5	 –

Market share	 4%	 4%	 Unchanged

SimCorp clients	 20	 19	 5%

Number of employees	 106	 81	 31%

North America

North America increased total revenue by 32.2% 
in 2013. The positive development was driven by a 
strong performance in all revenue lines. Professional 
services grew by 42.8% – now representing the high-
est level in SimCorp – and maintenance income grew 
by 27.5%. The value of the total installed license base 
increased by 16% to USD 77m at the end of 2013. 

David Kubersky
Executive Vice President, SimCorp North America
Present position since 2008

EURm	 2013	 2012	 Change

Total revenue	 68.5	 64.6	 6.0%

–  license fees	 12.3	 11.6	 6.0%

–  professional services	 18.9	 17.6	 7.4%

–  maintenance income	 36.0	 33.8	 6.5%

–  training activities etc	 1.3	 1.6	 (18.8%)

New wins	 1	 2	 –

Market share	 25%	 25%	 Unchanged

SimCorp clients	 48	 49	 (2%)

Number of employees	 148	 134	 10%

Central Europe

Central Europe continued to deliver a high level 
of services to existing clients resulting in revenue 
growth from professional services of 7.4% over last 
year. Total revenue increased by 6.0% and the total 
value of the installed license base increased by 4% to 
EUR 206m from EUR 199m last year.

Ralf Schmücker
Senior Vice President, SimCorp Central Europe 
Present position since 2012

DKKm	 2013	 2012	 Change

Total revenue	 400.9	 384.1	 4.4%

–  license fees	 59.2	 54.9	 7.8%

–  professional services	134.8	 129.9	 3.8%

–  maintenance income	 205.6	 197.5	 4.1%

–  training activities etc	 1.3	 1.8	 (27.8%)

New wins	 1	 0	 –

Market share	 70%	 70%	 Unchanged

SimCorp clients	 48	 49	 (2%)

Number of employees	 87	 93	 (6%)

Nordic

Nordic – SimCorp’s most mature market – grew by 
4.4% in 2013, primarily driven by the signing of a new 
license agreement early in the year and continued 
strong demand for additional licenses from existing 
clients, supported by satisfactory growth in profes-
sional services. The installed license base grew by 
4% to DKK 1.023m at the end of 2013.

Arnt Eilertsen
Senior Vice President, SimCorp Nordic 
Present position since 2001
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GBPm	 2013	 2012	 Change

Total revenue	 17.1	 12.3	 39.0%

–  license fees	 6.0	 2.4	 150.0%

–  professional services	 4.3	 3.4	 26.5%

–  maintenance income	 6.6	 6.3	 4.8%

–  training activities etc	 0.2	 0.2	 0.0%

New wins	 2	 0	 –

Market share	 13%	 12%	 8%

SimCorp clients	 20	 18	 11%

Number of employees	 53	 60	 (12%)

UK

UK delivered a strong performance in 2013. Total 
license revenue grew by 150.0% compared to 2012 
and professional services grew by 26.5% – an extra
ordinary performance taking into consideration that 
the total number of employees in the UK fell by 12% in 
2013. The total installed license base grew by 17% to 
GBP 37m at the end of 2013.

Klaus Andersen
Senior Vice President, SimCorp Ltd. 
Present position since 2008

EURm	 2013	 2012	 Change

Total revenue	 27.5	 27.9	 (1.4%)

–  license fees	 4.1	 5.7	 (28.1%)

–  professional services	 9.0	 9.8	 (8.2%)

–  maintenance income	 14.0	 12.1	 15.7%

–  training activities etc	 0.4	 0.3	 33.3%

New wins	 1	 1	 –

Market share	 11%	 11%	 Unchanged

SimCorp clients	 18	 18	 Unchanged

Number of employees	 65	 66	 (2%)

Western Europe

Performance in Western Europe was unsatisfactory 
in 2013. The positive impact from the French market 
was insufficient to lift Western Europe into growth. 
License sales fell by 28.1% and revenue from profes-
sional services fell by 8.2%. However, maintenance 
income almost offset this development. In total, 
revenue fell by 1.4% compared to 2012. The total 
installed license base grew by 5% to EUR 76m at the 
end of 2013.

Hans Otto Engkilde	        Emanuell Colson
Senior Vice Presidents, SimCorp Western Europe
Present positions since 2013

AUDm	 2013	 2012	 Change

Total revenue	 21.9	 23.6	 (7.2%)

–  license fees	 1.7	 8.1	 (79.0%)

–  professional services	 6.2	 2.5	 148.0%

–  maintenance income	 14.0	 13.0	 7.7%

–  training activities etc	 0.0	 0.0	 0.0%

New wins	 0	 1	 –

Market share	 11%	 11%	 Unchanged

SimCorp clients	 12	 12	 Unchanged

Number of employees	 34	 29	 17%

Asia

In Asia total revenue declined by 7.2% mainly as a 
result of a strong comparison year in 2012. A  strong 
performance in professional services of 148.0% could 
not offset the lack of license revenue of –79.0%. The 
total value of the installed license base increased by 
11% to AUD 67m at the end of 2013.

Peter Hill
Senior Vice President, SimCorp Asia
Present position since 2006
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Management report  Corporate Gorvernance

SimCorp’s Board of Directors has reviewed and discussed each of the new  
recommendations for corporate governance issued by NASDAQ OMX  
Copenhagen A/S, May 2013, and has concluded that with a few exceptions, 
SimCorp is in full compliance with the recommendations.

SimCorp’s corporate governance guidelines provide the over-

all direction for SimCorp’s Board of Directors and executive 

management team in their definition of working procedures 

and principles. The guidelines are intended to ensure an 

efficient and adequate management of SimCorp within 

the framework defined by applicable legislation, rules, and 

recommendations for listed companies in Denmark and by 

SimCorp’s articles of association, mission, corporate vision, 

and values.

In a very limited number of areas, SimCorp has decided not 

to comply with the new Corporate Governance recommenda-

tions issued by NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen A/S, May 2013. In 

these few cases SimCorp considers that the limited size and/

or complexity of its business do not warrant full compliance 

with the recommendations. Consequently, SimCorp is not in 

full compliance on the matters of separate nomination and 

remuneration committees.

On the subject of nomination, the Chairman, the Vice 

Chairman, and the CEO are asked by the Board of Directors 

to identify new, potential Board members. The Board of 

Directors discusses and decides collectively who are to be 

nominated by the Board of Directors.

SimCorp’s remuneration policy, which is available on the 

company’s website, lays out a clear description of SimCorp’s 

remuneration principles and procedures and as such, 

SimCorp has decided that a remuneration committee is not 

required in SimCorp as this would add unneccessary cost 

and complexity to the current operating model. 

SimCorp’s stakeholder relationships

SimCorp’s management objective is, in all respects, to 

promote the long-term interests of the company, and thus 

of all stakeholders. The objective of creating long-term value 

assumes, among other things, that SimCorp sets up lasting 

and constructive relationships with the Group’s primary 

stakeholders: shareholders, clients, employees, and suppliers. 

Such professional and commercial relations are based on the 

Group’s mission and on mutual trust and responsibility. 

SimCorp’s information policy plays a key role. The policy is 

designed to ensure that stakeholders receive timely, relevant, 

and full information on the Group’s activities to the extent 

that such disclosure would not be detrimental or potentially 

detrimental to SimCorp’s existing or future competitive 

position. 

Corporate
Governance

SimCorp’s Corporate Governance guidelines and the 

statutory corporate governance statement pursuant to 

section 107 b of the Danish Financial statements Act for 

the financial year 2013 are available on the company’s 

website at www.simcorp.com/corpgov2013uk
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The work of the Board of Directors and the 
Executive Management Board

The Board of Directors is a collective body for promoting the 

long-term interests of the company in all respects. The Board 

of Directors is responsible for ensuring that the overall strate-

gic management and the financial and managerial control of 

the Group are conducted adequately in all respects. Thus, the 

Board of Directors acts as a sparring partner to the Executive 

Management Board in relation to strategic initiatives and 

monitors the Group’s financial condition, risk management, 

and business activities on an ongoing basis. In 2013 SimCorp’s 

Board of Directors held six meetings, following up on the 

Group’s current business and financial performance. In addi-

tion, the Board of Directors held an off-site strategy seminar in 

August 2013 to discuss the Group’s long-term strategy. 

Composition and qualifications of the  
Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is composed so as to ensure its inde-

pendence of any special interests. Thus, the Board of  

Directors consists of a number of members sufficient 

enough to enable an appropriate distribution of tasks 

among them, as well as to ensure an effective and rapid 

decision-making process. It is essential that the Board of 

Directors acts as an efficient, visionary, and result-oriented 

dialogue partner for SimCorp’s Executive Management 

Board. Therefore, the Board of Directors has defined the 

ideal profile for the Board’s aggregate competences to 

ensure that its members between themselves represent the 

required professional breadth and knowledge of the industry 

as well as the required business and financial competences. 

The competences have been identified within the areas of 

strategy, finance, and operations, as well as organization and 

management. To further strengthen the collective compe-

tences of the Board of Directors, SimCorp will nominate  

Ms. Patrice McDonald, Managing Director of Anchura, UK, as 

a new Board member at the annual general meeting in 2014. 

The ideal profile is updated annually allowing for SimCorp’s 

strategic position and challenges.

As provided in the company’s articles of association, 

SimCorp’s Board of Directors consists of between three 

and six members elected by the company’s shareholders in 

addition to members elected by and among the company’s 

employees. The Board currently consists of four members 

elected by the shareholders and two members elected by 

the employees. Members of SimCorp’s Board of Directors 

are elected for one year at a time and employee-elected 

members for three years. 

In terms of SimCorp’s diversity approach, the company has 

set a target of 25% for the proportion of female directors 

elected by the general meeting to the Board of Directors. 

Should the number of shareholder-elected Board members 

change, the target figure will accordingly be updated to re-

flect that SimCorp should at least have one female member. 

The aim is to reach the target figure within four years.

SimCorp’s management 
focuses on corporate 
governance as an important 
prerequisite for creating 
shareholder value and 
credibility towards clients, 
employees, and other 
stakeholders. Open and 
honest communication  
is a priority.

Establishing
strategic
direction

Ensuring
compliance

with corporate
policies, standards

and procedures

Executing
strategy

and managing
risk

SimCorp Corporate Governance 
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The company has an intention to increase the proportion of 

women in the group of managers, whose members are part 

of the ‘Total Management Team’ at SimCorp and have staff 

responsibility, so that it reflects the proportion of female 

employees in the SimCorp Group which is currently 32%. 

SimCorp’s Diversity Policy is included in SimCorp’s Corporate 

Governance guidelines and the Diversity Activity Plan is  

available on the company’s website. 

Self-assessment

Annually, the Board of Directors carries out a self-assess-

ment. In November 2013, SimCorp’s Board of Directors and 

Executive Management Board performed a self-assessment 

process facilitated by an external consultant. The self-

assessment process comprises an evaluation of the work 

and contribution of the Executive Management Board and 

the Board of Directors within the areas of strategy, finance, 

and operations, as well as organization and management. 

Furthermore, individual evaluations are performed of each 

Board member’s work and contributions to the Board’s work 

as a whole. 

The external consultant facilitated the self-assessment pro-

cess on the basis of individual contributions and suggested 

subjects that subsequently formed the basis of the Board’s 

discussion of the results, including an evaluation of the col-

laboration between the Board of Directors and the Executive 

Management Board.

Not least to ensure that the general principles for good 

corporate governance are upheld, the results of the 

self-assessment were discussed by the Board. This led to 

an evaluation of the collaboration between the Board of 

Directors and the Executive Management Board as well 

as a review of the implementation of the initiatives agreed 

in the self-assessment process conducted in 2012. Based 

on the self-assessment, it was concluded that the Board’s 

collective work is efficient and that the competences de-

scribed in the ideal profile are represented by the aggregate 

competences of the Board of Directors. However, the Board 

also noted that, due to the relatively small number of Board 

members, the Board’s competences in certain areas rely 

on individual persons. Therefore, the Board of Directors 

concluded that adding an additional Board member with 

appropriate competences was desirable.

Management report  Corporate Gorvernance

SimCorps Diversity Activity Plan is available on the  

company’s website at www.simcorp.com/divercity2013uk 

“Diversity is an important area  
of focus for us. We believe a high 
degree of diversity gives a more 
dynamic working environment 
and has a positive impact on our 
results. 32% of SimCorp’s employees 
are women and we count more 
than 45 nationalities.” 

– �Elise Hauge, Senior Vice President,  
Head of Human Capital
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Risk management

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for 
securing that SimCorp maintains appropriate procedures 
to monitor, measure, and manage the company’s risks and 
that such procedures are firmly embedded in the company’s 
organization. A general description of risks is provided 
in the section ‘Risk management’ on page 18. As part of 
its risk management, the Executive Management Board 
and the Board have defined a risk statement outlining the 
most critical risks to SimCorp and the proposed mitigation 
actions. Further, the company has set up a whistleblower 
body, authorized by the Danish Data Protection Agency, 
which, in addition to usual control functions, is intended 
to provide access to reporting on suspected irregularities 
in the business. The Board of Directors is responsible for 
appointing a representative to manage the whistleblower 
policy in a trustworthy, responsible, and independent 
manner. The Board of Directors has appointed independent 
member of SimCorp’s Board of Directors and Chairman of 
Audit Committee, Simon Jeffreys, to currently manage the 
whistleblower body and act as gatekeeper. Reports and 
queries received through the whistleblower system will be 
treated as confidential.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility in SimCorp is firmly based 

on the Group’s core values and SimCorp’s ‘Corporate Gover-

nance Guidelines’ as adopted by SimCorp’s Board of Direc-

tors. SimCorp’s commitment to sustainable development of 

the company is based on combining financial performance 

with socially responsible behavior and environmental aware-

ness. 

SimCorp does not have an explicit CSR policy, but aims to 

maintain and enhance its professional and commercial rela-

tions with internal and external stakeholders based on mu-

tual respect. SimCorp endeavors to comply with applicable 

legislation, local as well as international. SimCorp is also 

aware of the risk of corruption and complies with applicable 

local anti-corruption legislation, but the company has not 

defined a Group policy on avoiding corruption.

In the conduct of business, SimCorp maintains high ethical 

standards and strives to conduct its activities with integrity 

and responsibility. SimCorp is greatly committed to proper 

and diligent conduct, respecting the services and products 

provided to clients. SimCorp is committed to mutually value-

adding, long-term relationships with its clients with respect 

for each individual client’s business and social environment. 

SimCorp expects its clients, partners, and vendors to share 

standards for sound and responsible behavior and trust 

them to operate in a legal and ethical manner. SimCorp 

respects the individuality of its employees and offers each  

of them equal opportunity for learning and growing in  

accordance with their individual needs and capabilities,  

as well as the company’s interests. 

SimCorp aims to reduce its environmental impact and to act 

with sustained reliability and respect for our surroundings. 

The company’s approach to Corporate Social Responsibility 

is described in more detail in the document entitled Corpo-

rate Social Responsibility posted on the company’s website.
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The statutory corporate social responsibility statement 

pursuant to section 99 a of the Danish Financial State-

ments Act for the financial year 2013 is available on the 

company’s website at www.simcorp.com/csr2013uk 
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From left to right: Raymond John, Jacob Goltermann, Simon Jeffreys, Hervé Couturier, Peter Schütze and Jesper Brandgaard

Board of Directors  31 December

Name								         Born	 Nationality	    Position since	     Independent          Remuneration 2013, EUR’000         Number of shares, 31 Dec*

Simon Jeffreys**			                                1952	 British	              2011	                        Yes							         80   		           7,930

Jesper Brandgaard, Chairman                        1963        Danish		       2008				    Yes										             115    		                     	         81,140

Jacob Goltermann				                    1970	 Danish	               2007	                            No***									               55    			                            11,510

Peter Schütze, Vice Chairman		          1948	 Danish	               2012				     Yes										                70        				              7,790

Raymond John						             1965	 United States     2009                            No***									               49     			                             2,930

*	 See note 28, Related Party Transaction
**	 Chairman of the Audit Committee
***	 Due to their status as employee elected Board members

Hervé Couturier						             1958	 French	               2008				    Yes										               54			                              6,490
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Jesper Brandgaard
Business address: Novo Nordisk A/S, Novo Allé,
2880 Bagsværd, Denmark

Personal and educational background
Born 1963, Danish citizen, MSc (Econ. and Audit.)
and MBA from Copenhagen Business School.

Directorships
Chairman of SimCorp A/S’ Board of Directors since 
2008 and Vice Chairman from 2007 to 2008. Also 
Chairman of the Board of Directors of NNIT A/S.

Independence
Executive Vice President and CFO of Novo Nordisk 
A/S. Is regarded as independent.

Peter Schütze 
Business address: Skovshovedvej 27B,
2920 Charlottenlund, Denmark

Personal and educational background
Born 1948, Danish citizen, MSc (Econ.)

Directorships
Vice Chairman of SimCorp A/S’ Board of Directors 
since 2012. Chairman of the Board of Directors of 
DSB SOV and Copenhagen Business School. Vice 
chairman of the Board of Directors of Nordea-fon-
den. Member of the Board of Directors of Bestyrel
sesforeningen, Gösta Enboms Fond and Dronning 
Margrethe den II’s Arkæologiske Fond. Member of 
the Industrial Board of Axcel and member of The 
Systemic Risk Council.  Chairman of the investment 
committee of the Danish Climate Investment Fund.

Independence
Is regarded as independent.

Hervé Couturier
Business address: AMADEUS S.A.S, 485 Route du
Pin Montard, 06902 Sophia Antipolis Cedex, France

Personal and educational background
Born 1958, French citizen, MSc (Industrial 
Engineering) from École Centrale de Paris.

Directorships
Member of SimCorp A/S’ Board of Directors since 
2008.

Independence
Executive Vice President in Amadeus S.A.S.
Is regarded as independent

Simon Jeffreys
Business address: Wellcome Trust, 215 Euston
Road, London NW1 2BE, United Kingdom

Personal and educational background
Born 1952, British citizen, B.Com (Hons) from 
University of Cape Town, CA(SA), FCA, CPA.

Directorships
Member of SimCorp A/S’ Board of Directors since 
2011. Chairman of the Audit Committee of SimCorp 
A/S since 2013. Director and Chairman of the Audit 
Committee of the Board of Directors of Henderson 
International Income Trust. Member of the Board of 
Directors of Aon Limited, Wellcome Trust Finance 
plc. and St. James’s Place plc.

Independence
Chief Operating Officer of the Wellcome Trust.
Is regarded as independent.

Jacob Goltermann
Business address: SimCorp A/S, Weidekampsgade 
16, 2300 Copenhagen S, Denmark

Personal and educational background
Born 1970, Danish citizen, MSc (Math. and Econ.).

Directorships
Employee-elected member of SimCorp A/S’ Board 
of Directors since 2007.

Independence
Chief Business Consultant in SimCorp A/S. Is not 
regarded as independent due to employment with 
SimCorp A/S.

Raymond John
Business address: SimCorp A/S, Weidekampsgade 
16, 2300 Copenhagen S, Denmark

Personal and educational background
Born 1965, US citizen, B.S. Industrial Engineering, 
MSc. (Applied Economics and Finance)

Directorships
Employee-elected member of SimCorp A/S’ Board 
of Directors since 2009.

Independence
Documentation Consultant in SimCorp A/S.
Is not regarded as independent due to employment 
with SimCorp A/S.
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Executive Management Board  31 December

Klaus Holse
Born 1961
Chief Executive Officer
Present position held since 2012

Chairman of the Board of Directors of EG A/S
Member of the supervisory Board of Confederation 
of Danish Industry and The Scandinavian Golf Club

Thomas Johansen 
Born 1970 
Chief Financial Officer,  
Executive Vice President 
Present position held since 2011

Georg Hetrodt
Born 1966
Chief Technology Officer,  
Executive Vice President
Present position held since 2009

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Dyalog Ltd.
Member of the Board of Directors of Equipos Ltd.

From left to right: Georg Hetrodt, Klaus Holse and Thomas Johansen

Name				    Nationality			   Remuneration 2013, EUR’000*			   Number of shares,  Dec 31** 	           Number of restricted stock units, 31 Dec**

Klaus Holse	                     Danish	                                                                            1,276 							         50,000	 									               127,610

Thomas Johansen	     Danish										          592								           4,000										                 38,298

Georg Hetrodt	     	     German										          647 						              113,540										                35,679

*	 See note 6, Personnel Expenses 
**	 See note 28, Related Party Transaction
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Group Management Committee  31 December

From left to right: Lars Bjørn Falkenberg, Henrik Schlægel,  Elise Hauge, David Kubersky and Jochen Müller

Lars Bjørn Falkenberg 
Born 1969 
Senior Vice President,  
Group Marketing & Communications 
Present position held since 2010

Elise Hauge
Born 1967
Senior Vice President, 
Group Human Capital
Present position held since 2014

David Kubersky 
Born 1966 
Executive Vice President,  
SimCorp North America 
Present position held since 2008

Jochen Müller 
Born 1966 
Executive Vice President,  
SimCorp Europe, Middle East and Asia Pacific
Present position held since 2012 

Henrik Schlægel
Born 1958 
Executive Vice President, 
SimCorp Global Services 
Present position held since 2013

39

To CONTENTS



Management report  Shareholder information

The SimCorp share

The official share price at 31 December 2013 was DKK 

213.50 per share, equal to a market capitalization of EUR 

1.2bn (DKK 9.2bn). 

The price of SimCorp’s shares rose by 69% in 2013. By com-

parison, the NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen A/S blue chip index 

(OMXC20) rose by 24%, while the index for medium-sized 

companies (OMXC Mid Cap), of which the SimCorp share is a 

component, rose by 53%. 

Relative to 2012, the average daily turnover of SimCorp 

shares on NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen A/S rose by 41% 

to EUR 1.4m and the average number of trades per day 

increased by 71% to 325 per day.

Share Capital 

SimCorp’s share capital amounts to a nominal value of DKK 

43,500,000 divided into 43,500,000 shares of DKK 1 follow-

ing the capital reduction of DKK 1,500,000, 16 May 2013. 

On 3 June 2013 the trading denomination of the SimCorp 

share was changed from DKK 10 per share to DKK 1 per share.  

Shareholder structure

At 31 December 2013, SimCorp had around 7,200 registered 

shareholders representing more than 93% of the company’s 

share capital, an increase of approximately 600 registered 

shareholders during the year. 

Shareholder
information
In 2013, SimCorp’s share price increased by 69% and the liquidity measured 
by the average daily trading volume was up by 41% to EUR 1.4m. The average 
daily number of trades increased by 71% to 325.
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Share Data
Stock exchange	 NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen

Index	 OMXC MidCap

Sector	 Technology	

ISIN code	 DK0060495240  

Short code	 SIM

Share capital	 DKK 43,500,000

Nominal size	 DKK 1 

Number of shares	 43,500,000 

Negotiable papers	 Yes	

Restriction in voting rights	 No
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Approximately 60% of the share capital was held or managed 

by the 25 largest shareholders and more than 57% of the 

registered share capital was held by shareholders based 

outside Denmark, an increase of 1 %-point compared to 31 

December 2012. 

At 31 December 2013, around 7% of the company’s share 

capital was held by the company’s management and by 

approximately 600 employees. Furthermore, SimCorp 

estimates that Danish and foreign institutional investors 

held some 66% of the company’s shares, an increase from 

approximately 55% at year-end 2012. 

Around 25% of SimCorp shares was managed by investors 

who are also clients of SimCorp. The company held 4.9% 

of the shares as treasury shares at year-end 2013 and has 

under the initiated safe harbor program acquired further 

treasury shares to exceed 5% on 16 January 2014. 

In accordance with section 55 of the Danish Companies Act, 

the following investors have reported a holding of more than 

5% of SimCorp’s share capital:

–	� The Danish Labor Market Supplementary Pension  

Fund (ATP), Denmark, 6.35%

–	� Allianz Global Investors Luxembourg S.A., 5.12% 

–	� Ameriprise Financial Inc., 5.05%  

–	� SimCorp A/S, Denmark, 5.01% (at 16 January 2014). 

Employee share program

As set out in the Annual Report for 2012, an employee share 

program has been established in terms of which the com-

pany in 2013 has sold treasury shares to employees as part 

of the company’s corporate bonus program. The program 

comprised 63,350 shares of DKK 1, distributed among em-

ployees of the company and its subsidiaries, including 2,660 

shares of DKK 1 to the Executive Management Board. In 

accordance with the approved remuneration policy, the price 

of the employee shares was fixed at DKK 58.6 for each share 

of DKK 1, equalling 40% of the average revenue-weighted 

market price in the period from 28 February to 4 March 2013. 

A total of 279 employees participated in the employee share 

program. The employee shares must be held in restricted 

accounts until 15 March 2016. 

The Group plans to continue operating a share based incen-

tive program for employees in the form of a restricted stock 

unit program. The restricted stock units will gradually vest 

over a three-year period and are subject to employment at 

the time they vest.

Share-based incentive schemes

In accordance with the remuneration policy, approved by the 

shareholders at the annual general meeting, on 1 April 2013, 

the Board of Directors approved a share based incentive 

program based on restricted stock units. The fair value of 

the restricted stock units amounted to EUR 2.5m at the time 

of allotment and a total of 117,950 restricted stock units of 

DKK 1 have been granted, including 33,300 restricted stock 

units of DKK 1 to the Executive Management Board. 1 July 

1,230 restricted stock units were granted in connection with 

appointment of an Senior Vice President and on 1 October 

610 restricted stock units were granted in connection with 

an additional new Senior Vice President. 

The restricted stock units will vest after three years, subject 

to continuing employment. Furthermore, the restricted 

stock units are subject to conditions with respect to average 

annual minimum revenue growth and annual average net 

operating profit after tax for the financial years 2013–2015. 

If the two latter conditions are only partially met, the number 

of shares transferred after three years will be reduced, 

potentially to zero. 

In addition, 14,350 restricted stock units of DKK 1 relating 

to the corporate bonus program for 2012 were granted in 

2013 and distributed among employees of the Group. These 

restricted stock units will vest after three years, subject to 

continuing employment.

The share-based incentive program based on restricted stock 

units will continue in 2014 and comprises restricted stock units 

with a market value of approximately EUR 2.4m on the date of 

grant. Treasury shares will be acquired to cover the program 

obligations. SimCorp’s share based incentive schemes are 

further detailed in note 7 to the financial statements.

In accordance with SimCorp’s remuneration policy, which is 

available on the company’s website, members of the Board 

of Directors will in 2014 continue to receive SimCorp shares 

with a total value equal to one third of their total remunera-

tion. It is the assessment of the Board of Directors that these 

remuneration principles ensure an appropriate alignment 

of the interests of the Board of Directors with SimCorp’s 

shareholders in general.
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Management shares/restricted stock units
 

As at 31 December 2013, the six members of the company’s 

Board of Directors held a total of 117,790 SimCorp shares 

and 590 restricted stock units. The three members of the 

Group’s Executive Management Board held a total of 167,540 

SimCorp shares and 201,587 restricted stock units. 

Additional information on the holdings of SimCorp shares and 

restricted stock units by members of the Board of Directors, 

the Executive Management Board, and other related parties is 

disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements. 

Annual general meeting

The annual general meeting of SimCorp A/S will be held on: 

Monday, 31 March 2014, at 15:00 at SimCorp’s headquarters, 

Weidekampsgade 16, Copenhagen, Denmark.

To ensure continuity in the composition of the Board of 

Directors, the four members elected by the shareholders 

who are currently serving on the Board of Directors will stand 

for re-election at SimCorp’s annual general meeting. Brief 

biographies of the current members of the Board of Directors 

are found on pages 36–37. 

The Board of Directors has updated the ideal competence 

profile for the Board of Directors and has concluded  that the 

Board of Directors would benefit from an additional member. 

Consequently, the Board of Directors intends to propose that 

Ms. Patrice McDonald be elected new member of the Board 

of Directors. 

Patrice McDonald holds an M.B.A. from the Harvard Business 

School, Boston, USA, and a B.Com (Hons) degree from Univer-

sity College, Cork, Ireland. As a former Managing Director and 

Chief Risk Officer at Barclays Wealth Management and an In-

dependent Strategic Adviser to the CEO and Head of Products 

at Coutts, Patrice McDonald has held senior (MD) roles in the 

financial services industry covering risk, strategy, corporate 

governance, and major program management. Patrice McDon-

ald has over 20 years of experience in wealth management, 

asset and investment management, and investment banking, 

gained within the Barclays Group, Coutts, and at Accenture. 

Also, she has extensive experience with professional services 

from more than 12 years with Accenture and Anchura. Patrice 

McDonald is a Irish citizen and is regarded as independent. 

The Board of Directors intends to propose that the total 

remuneration to the Board of Directors for the financial 

year 2014 will reflect the increasing internationalization and 

complexity of the business. The remuneration would then 

comprise cash of EUR 0.34m (DKK 2.5m), representing two 

thirds of the total remuneration, and SimCorp shares with a 

market value of around EUR 0.17m (DKK 1.25m), representing 

one third of the remuneration, totaling EUR 0.50m (DKK 

3.75m). See ‘Remuneration of Board of Directors, Executive 

Management and Employees’ on the company’s website. 

The Board of Directors further intends to propose that the 

shareholders authorize the company to acquire treasury 

shares of up to 10% of the company’s share capital. See  

section 198 of the Danish Companies Act. 

The Board of Directors intends to recommend to the 

shareholders in the Annual  General Meeting that the share 
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capital be reduced by 2,000,000 shares of DKK 1 by cancel-

lation of treasury shares. Following this cancellation, the 

nominal share capital would be DKK 41,500,000 comprising 

41,500,000 shares of DKK 1. The change requires an amend-

ment to the articles of association. 

The agenda for the annual general meeting including pro-

posed resolutions will be published on Friday, 7 March 2014, 

on which date the notice convening the meeting will be sent 

by email to all registered shareholders.

Dividends and share buyback

Maintaining a composition of assets that does not raise 

questions about the company’s financial stability is vital to 

SimCorp’s continued international expansion. Management 

believes this objective will be achieved when the cash hold-

ings and committed credit lines exceed 10% of the projected 

costs for the coming year. On this assumption, the company 

intends to pay dividends of at least 50% of the profit on ordi-

nary activities after tax. Additionally, cash will be used to buy 

treasury shares provided the company does not anticipate 

specific cash requirements. The purchase of treasury shares 

will be executed in terms of safe harbor programs.

The Board of Directors has considered SimCorp’s cash posi-

tion and liquidity forecast, and on the basis thereof, the Board 

of Directors intends to recommend to the shareholders at the 

annual general meeting that dividends of EUR 22.2m, equal to 

DKK 4.00 per share of DKK 1, be distributed for the financial 

year 2013, corresponding to a payout ratio of 59%. In order 

to be eligible for dividends, shares must be registered on or 

before 31 March 2014. The ex-dividend date is 1 April 2014. 

Dividends for the financial year 2013 are expected to be paid 

on 4 April 2014.

Based on the current business outlook and the cash position, 

SimCorp will continue with its share buyback program during 

2014 for a minimum of EUR 25m and will initiate a new “Safe 

Harbour” program and acquire treasury shares for an amount 

of EUR 10m until the release of the Half-Year Report 2014.

Investor relations

SimCorp pursues an open dialogue with investors and analysts 

about the company’s business and financial performance. In 

order to ensure that all SimCorp’s stakeholders have equal 

access to corporate information, news is released to NASDAQ 

OMX Copenhagen A/S, the media, and on SimCorp’s website, 

where users can also subscribe to SimCorp’s news service.

SimCorp’s Investor Relations team handles all contact with 

investors and the press on issues relating to the company’s 

shares. Please contact:

Thomas Johansen, Chief Financial Officer

Telephone: +45 35 44 88 00

investor@simcorp.com

www.simcorp.com
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Financial calendar 2014
31	 Mar	 2014	 Annual General Meeting	

  4	 Apr	 2014	 Expected date for payout of dividend

22	 May	 2014	� Publication of interim financial report Q1 2014

29	 Aug	 2014	� Publication of interim financial report H1 2014

26	 Nov	 2014	� Publication of interim financial report for  

the first nine months of 2014

16	 Feb	 2015	 Publication of Annual Report 2014

Announcements to NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen in 2013,  
can be found at www.simcorp.com/investor
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Statements and signatures

Statement by the Board of Directors and the 
Executive Management Board

The Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board 

have today considered and approved the annual report for 

2013 of SimCorp A/S.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the 

International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by 

the EU and Danish disclosure requirements for listed com-

panies. In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements 

and the parent company financial statements give a true and 

fair view of the Group’s and the parent company’s assets, 

liabilities and financial position as of 31 December 2013 

and of the results of the parent company’s and the Group’s 

operations and cash flows for the financial year 1 January– 

31 December 2013.

In our opinion the Management report gives a true and fair 

view of developments in the activities and financial position 

of the Group and the parent company, the results for the 

year and the financial position of the Group and the parent 

company, as well as a description of the significant risk and 

uncertainty factors that may affect the Group and the parent 

company. 

We recommend that the annual report be adopted by the 

shareholders at the annual general meeting. 

Copenhagen, 25 February 2014

Klaus Holse
Chief Executive Officer

Jesper Brandgaard
Chairman

Jacob Goltermann
Employee-elected

Executive Management Board

Board of Directors

Peter Schütze	
Vice chairman 

Raymond John
Employee-elected

Georg Hetrodt
Chief Technology Officer

Hervé Couturier

Thomas Johansen
Chief Financial Officer

Simon Jeffreys

Statements and signatures
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Statements and signatures

Independent auditors’ report

To the shareholders of SimCorp A/S

Independent auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements 

and the parent company financial statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements and the parent 
company financial statements of SimCorp A/S for the financial year 1 Janu-
ary–31 December 2013. The consolidated financial statements and the 
parent company financial statements comprise [income statement, state-
ment of comprehensive income, balance sheet, statement of changes in 
equity, cash flow statement and notes, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies] for the Group as well as for the parent company. The 
consolidated financial statements and the parent company financial state-
ments are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as adopted by the EU and Danish disclosure requirements for 
listed companies.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial state-

ments and the parent company financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements and parent company financial statements that give a true and 
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
as adopted by the EU and Danish disclosure requirements for listed 
companies and for such internal control that Management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements 
and parent company financial statements that are free from material mis-
statement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements and the parent company financial statements based on our au-
dit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing and additional requirements under Danish audit regulation. This 
requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated 
financial statements and the parent company financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements 
and the parent company financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements and 
the parent company financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control rel-
evant to the Company’s preparation of consolidated financial statements 

and parent company financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the  purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of ac-
counting estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements and the parent 
company financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and ap-
propriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit has not resulted in any qualification.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements and the parent 
company financial statements give a true and fair view of the Group’s and 
the parent company’s financial position at 31 December 2013 and of the 
results of the Group’s and the parent company’s operations and cash flows 
for the financial year 1 January – 31 December 2013 in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and Dan-
ish disclosure requirements for listed companies.

Statement on the Management’s review

Pursuant to the Danish Financial statements Act, we have read the 
Management’s review. We have not performed any further procedures 
in addition to the audit of the consolidated financial statements and the 
parent company financial statements. On this basis, it is our opinion that 
the information provided in the Management’s review is consistent with 
the consolidated financial statements and the parent company financial 
statements.

Signatures

KPMG
Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab

Finn L. Meyer
State Authorized Public Accountant

Lau Bent Baun
State Authorized Public Accountant

Copenhagen, 25 February 2014
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PARENT COMPANY				    GROUP

	
2012

	
2013

			 
2012

	
2013

	 EUR'000	 EUR'000	 Note		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

				    INCOME STATEMENT
				  

	 90,877	 92,983	 3, 4, 5	 Revenue	 209,190	 225,129
	
	 30,839	 27,774	 6, 7, 8	 Cost of sales	 76,575	 80,883
	

	 60,038	 65,209		  Gross profit	 132,615	 144,246
	

	 15,766	 18,403		  Other operating income	 203	 52
	
	 40,898	 45,407	 6, 7, 8	 Research and development costs	 45,599	 49,548
	
	 7,432	 7,586	 6, 7, 8	 Sales and distribution costs	 27,344	 26,980
	
	 13,825	 14,467	 6, 7, 8, 9	 Administrative expenses	 12,960	 13,534

	
	  13,649 	 16,152		  Profit from operations (EBIT)	 46,915	 54,236
	

	 –	 –	 10	 Share of profit after tax in associates	 141	  (111)
	
	 26,488	 27,798	 11	 Financial income	 2,006	 2,375
	
	 1,843	 2,151	 12	 Financial expenses	 2,066	 2,494
	

	 38,294	 41,799		  Profit before tax	 46,996	 54,006

	
	 3,095	 4,258	 13	 Tax on the profit for the year	 12,522	 14,670
	

	 35,199	 37,541		  Profit for the year	 34,474	 39,336
	

				    Earnings per share		
	
			   14	 Basic earnings per share of DKK 1 – EPS (EUR)	 0.80	 0.93
	
			   14	 Diluted earnings per share of DKK 1 – EPS-D (EUR)	 0.79	 0.92

PARENT COMPANY				    GROUP

	
2012

	
2013

			 
2012

	
2013

	 EUR'000	 EUR'000	 Note		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

				    STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

	 35,199	 37,541		  Profit for the year	 34,474	 39,336
	

				    Other comprehensive income		
	
				    Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the income statement:		
	
	 –	 –		  Actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit pension plans	 –	  (487)
	
	 –	 –		  Tax	 –	 127
	

				    Items that will be reclassified subsequently to the income statement, 

				    when specific conditions are met:		
	
	  (314)	  (18)		  Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations	  (242)	  (1,212)
	
	 0	 0		  Tax 	 59	 0
	

	  (314)	  (18)		  Other comprehensive income after tax	  (183)	  (1,572)
	

	 34,885	 37,523		  Total comprehensive income 	 34,291	 37,764
	

				    Proposed distribution		
	
	 19,965	 22,174		  Dividend		
	
	 14,920	 15,349		  Transferred to retained earnings		
				  

	 34,885	 37,523			 
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PARENT COMPANY				    GROUP

	 2012	 2013			   2012	 2013
	

EUR'000	 EUR'000	 Note		  EUR'000	 EUR'000
			 

	 35,199	 37,541		  Profit for the year	 34,474	 39,336
	
	  (16,016)	  (16,067)	 32	 Adjustments	 18,708	 20,789
	
	 7,563	 5,380		  Changes in working capital	 4,285	  1,186 
	

	 26,746	 26,854		  Cash from operating activities before financial items	 57,467	 61,311
	

	 1,337	 1,003		  Financial income received	 1,277	 973
	
	  (429)	  (524)		  Financial expenses paid	  (215)	  (449)
	
	  (3,818)	  (2,404)	 13	 Income tax paid	  (11,864)	  (14,388)
	

	 23,836	 24,929		  Net cash from operating activities	 46,665	 47,447
	

	  (15,178)	  (2,032)	 16	 Share capital to subsidiaries	  – 	 –
	
	 8,611	 2,391	 16	 Repayment of loan, subsidiaries	 –	 –
	
	 0	  (422)	 10	 Loan, associates	 0	  (422)
	
	 60	 0	 10	 Repayment of loan, associates	 60	 0
	
	 8	 0	 10	 Proceeds from sale of share of associates	 8	 0
	
	  (144)	  (76)	 15	 Purchase of intangible fixed assets	  (242)	  (76)
	
	  (457)	  (2,020)	 15	 Purchase of property, plant and equipment	  (558)	  (2,331)
	
	  (40)	  (15)	 17	 Purchase of financial assets	  (74)	  (64)
	
	 10	 4	 17	 Proceeds from sale of financial assets	 40	 30
	
	 0	 20	 11	 Dividends from associates	  0   	 20
	
	 24,443	 25,709	 16	 Dividends from subsidiaries	  – 	 –
	

	 17,313	 23,559		  Net cash from/used in investment activities	  (766)	  (2,843)
	

	 41,149	 48,488		  Net cash from operating and investment activities	 45,899	 44,604
	

	 714	 498		  Sale of employee shares	 714	 498
	
	 6,708	 6,580		  Exercise of options	 6,708	 6,580
	
	  (17,266)	  (20,078)		  Dividends paid	  (17,266)	  (20,078)
	
	  (25,518)	  (42,850)	 20	 Purchase of treasury shares	  (25,518)	  (42,850)
	

	  (35,362)	  (55,850)		  Net cash used in financing activities	  (35,362)	  (55,850)
	

	 5,787	  (7,362)		  Change in cash and cash equivalents	 10,537	  (11,246)
	

				    Total cash flows for the year		
	
	 37,636	 43,556		  Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January	 48,149	 58,897
	
	 133	  (1)		  Foreign exchange adjustment of cash and cash equivalents	 211	  (545)
	

	 43,556	 36,193		  Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December	 58,897	 47,106
					   

The Group has credit facilities with banks for EUR 10,0m (2012: EUR 10,0m).			 
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PARENT COMPANY				    GROUP

	 2012	 2013			   2012	 2013
	

EUR'000	 EUR'000	 Note		  EUR'000	 EUR'000	
			 

				    ASSETS

				    Non-current assets		
	
			   15	 Intangible assets		
	
	 0	 0		  Goodwill	 875	 792
	
	 527	 312		  Acquired software	 623	 386
	

	 527	 312		  Total intangible assets	 1,498	 1,178
	

			   15	 Property, plant and equipment		
	
	 2,041	 1,642		  Leasehold improvements	 2,717	 2,224
	
	 1,393	 2,254		  Technical equipment	 1,660	 2,431
	
	 570	 18		  Other equipment, fixtures and fittings	 836	 184
	

	 4,004	 3,914		  Total property, plant and equipment	 5,213	 4,839
	

				    Other non-current assets		
	
	 24,459	 26,492	 16	 Investments in subsidiaries	 –	 –
	
	 855	 855	 10	 Investments in associates	 1,364	 1,221
	
	 2,448	 0	 16	 Receivables from subsidiaries	 –	 –
	
	 1,767	 1,778	 17	 Deposits	 2,095	 2,111
	
	 1,700	 2,139	 18	 Deferred tax	 5,680	 6,219
	

	 31,229	 31,264		  Total other non-current assets	 9,139	 9,551
	

	 35,760	 35,490		  Total non-current assets	 15,850	 15,568
	

				    Current assets		
	
	 19,350	 16,610	 19	 Receivables	 46,124	 49,336
	
	 0	 422	 10	 Receivables from associates	 0	 422
	
	 946	 0	 24	 Income tax receivable	 1,335	 1,223
	
	 2,087	 2,089		  Prepayments	 3,585	 3,814
	
	 43,556	 36,193		  Cash and cash equivalents	 58,897	 47,106
	

	 65,939	 55,314		  Total current assets	 109,941	 101,901

	 101,699	 90,804		  Total assets	 125,791	 117,469

Balance sheet  31 December 
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PARENT COMPANY				    GROUP

	 2012	 2013			   2012	 2013
	

EUR’000	 EUR’000	 Note		  EUR’000	 EUR’000	
	

				    LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

			   20 	 Equity

	 6,045	 5,844		  Share capital	 6,045	 5,844
	
	 0	 0		  Exchange adjustment reserve	  (1,182)	  (2,394)
	
	 45,567	 29,020		  Retained earnings	 61,036	 45,942
	
	 19,965	 22,174		  Proposed dividend	 19,965	 22,174
	

	 71,577	 57,038		  Total equity	 85,864	 71,566
	

				    Liabilities		
	
				    Non-current liabilities		
	
	 0	 0	 18	 Deferred tax	 408	 213
	
	 1,297	 1,218	 21, 22	 Provisions	 2,904	 3,177
	
	 749	 0		  Employee bonds	 749	 0
	

	 2,046	 1,218		  Total non-current liabilities	 4,061	 3,390
	

				    Current liabilities		
	
	 0	 152		  Prepayments from clients	 3,901	 5,490
	
	 28,028	 30,990	 23	 Trade payables and other payables	 29,155	 33,498
	
	 0	 647	 24	 Income tax	 2,715	 2,640
	
	 48	 14	 21	 Provisions	 95	 140
	
	 0	 745		  Employee bonds	 0	 745
	

	 28,076	 32,548		  Total current liabilities	 35,866	 42,513
	

	 30,122	 33,766		  Total liabilities	 39,927	 45,903
	

	 101,699	 90,804		  Total liabilities and equity	 125,791	 117,469

51Financial statements  Balance sheet

To CONTENTS



PARENT COMPANY
	

						    
			 

Equity at 1 January 2012	 6,179	 44,551	 17,573	 68,303

Comprehensive income for the year*				  

Total comprehensive income for the year	 0	 34,885	 0	 34,885

Transactions with owners				  

Cancellation of treasury shares	  (134)	 134	 0	 0

Dividends paid to shareholders	 0	 370	  (17,573)	  (17,203)

Share-based payment, employee shares	 0	 1,934	 0	 1,934

Share-based payment, options and shares	 0	 8,951	 0	 8,951

Tax, share-based payment	 0	 225	 0	 225

Purchase of treasury shares	 0	  (25,518)	 0	  (25,518)

Proposed dividends to shareholders	 0	  (19,965)	 19,965	 0

Equity at 31 December 2012	 6,045	 45,567	 19,965	 71,577

Equity at 1 January 2013	 6,045	 45,567	 19,965	 71,577

Comprehensive income for the year*				  

Total comprehensive income for the year	 0	 37,523	 0	 37,523

Transactions with owners				  

Cancellation of treasury shares	  (201)	 201	 0	 0

Dividends paid to shareholders	 0	  (108)	  (19,965)	  (20,073)

Share-based payment, employee shares	 0	 1,244	 0	 1,244

Share-based payment, options and shares	 0	 8,918	 0	 8,918

Tax, share-based payment	 0	 699	 0	 699

Purchase of treasury shares	 0	  (42,850)	 0	  (42,850)

Proposed dividends to shareholders	 0	  (22,174)	 22,174	 0

Equity at 31 December 2013	 5,844	 29,020	 22,174	 57,038

*	  Please refer to Statement of comprehensive income on page 48

Total

Proposed

dividends for

the year

EUR'000

Retained

earnings

Share 

capital

Statement of changes in equity
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GROUP
	

						    
			 

Equity at 1 January 2012				    6,179	  (999)	 60,431	 17,573	 83,184
		
	Comprehensive income for the year*					   
		

	Total comprehensive income for the year		  0	  (183)	 34,474	 0	 34,291
			 
	
Transactions with owners					   
		
	Cancellation of treasury shares	  			   (134)	 0	 134	 0	 0
		
	Dividends paid to shareholders				    0	 0	 370	  (17,573)	  (17,203)
		
	Share-based payment, employee shares			   0	 0	 1,934	 0	 1,934
		
	Share-based payment, options and shares			   0	 0	 8,951	 0	 8,951
		
	Tax, share-based payment				    0	 0	 225	 0	 225
		
	Purchase of treasury shares				    0	 0	  (25,518)	 0	  (25,518)
		
	Proposed dividends to shareholders			   0	 0	  (19,965)	 19,965	 0
		

	Equity at 31 December 2012				    6,045	  (1,182)	 61,036	 19,965	 85,864
		

	Equity at 1 January 2013				    6,045	  (1,182)	 61,036	 19,965	 85,864
		
	Comprehensive income for the year*					   
		

	Total comprehensive income for the year		  0	  (1,212)	 38,976	 0	 37,764
		

	Transactions with owners					   
		
	Cancellation of treasury shares	  			   (201)	 0	 201	 0	 0
		
	Dividends paid to shareholders				    0	 0	  (108)	  (19,965)	  (20,073)
		
	Share-based payment, employee shares			   0	 0	 1,244	 0	 1,244
		
	Share-based payment, options and shares			   0	 0	 8,918	 0	 8,918
		
	Tax, share-based payment				    0	 0	 699	 0	 699
		
	Purchase of treasury shares				    0	 0	  (42,850)	 0	  (42,850)
		
	Proposed dividends to shareholders			   0	 0	  (22,174)	 22,174	 0
		

	Equity at 31 December 2013				    5,844	  (2,394)	 45,942	 22,174	 71,566
		
	
*	  Please refer to Statement of comprehensive income on page 48					   
		

	At 31 December 2013, the share capital amounted to DKK 43,500,000 divided into 43,500,000 shares of DKK 1 (2012: DKK 45,000,000 divided into 

45,000,000 shares of DKK 1). 1,500,000 treasury shares of DKK 1 each were cancelled on 16 May 2013 (2012: 1,000,000 treasury shares of DKK 1 

were cancelled). No shares shall confer any special rights upon any shareholder.  				  
	
		
							     
	Dividends distributed DKK 3.50 per share of DKK 1 in 2013 and DKK 3.00 per share of DKK 1 in 2012.				  
	
		
	The Board of Directors intends to recommend at the annual general meeting that dividends of DKK 4.00 per share of DKK 1 be declared in 2014.		
			 
	
Additional information, note 20.					   

Total

Proposed

dividends for

the year

Retained

earnings

Exchange

adjustment

reserve

Share 

capital

EUR’000

53Financial statements  Statement of changes in equity

To CONTENTS



ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GENERAL

SimCorp A/S is a public limited company based  

in Denmark. The annual report for the period  

1 January –31 December 2013 includes the 

consolidated financial statements of SimCorp A/S 

and its subsidiary undertakings (the Group) as well 

as the financial statements of the parent company.

The annual report of the parent company SimCorp 

A/S and the Group is presented in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)  

as adopted by the EU and Danish disclosure 

requirements for the annual reports of listed 

companies.

On 25 February 2014 the Board of Directors and the 

Executive Management Board considered and 

approved the annual report for 2013 of SimCorp A/S. 

The annual report will be presented to the 

shareholders for approval at the annual general 

meeting to be held on 31 March 2014.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The functional currency of the parent company 

SimCorp A/S is DKK.

The annual report is presented in EUR as most of the 

Group’s transactions are in this currency, rounded to 

the nearest EUR 1,000.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance 

with the historical cost convention, except for the 

measurement at fair value of derivative financial 

instruments.

The accounting policies except as described below 

have been applied consistently during the financial 

year and for the comparative figures. For standards 

implemented prospectively, the comparative figures 

are not restated.

NEW FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Annual Report for 2013 is presented in 

conformity with the new and revised IFRS/IAS 

standards and new IFRIC interpretations approved 

by the EU, which apply to financial years beginning 

on 1 January 2013 or later.

Effective 1 January 2013, the SimCorp Group 

implemented IAS 19 ’Employee benefits’, accordingly 

SimCorp recognizes all actuarial gains and losses in 

other comprehensive income as they occur. As 

retrospective application of these changes would 

have had only an immaterial impact on each 

previous financial year, the Group has fully adopted 

the amendments in 2013 without restating previous 

years’ comparative amounts. Thus, while the 

adoption has not had an impact on the income 

statement in 2013, the implementation decreased 

other comprehensive income and equity by EUR 

0.2m in 2013. On 1 January 2013 the retirement 

benefit obligations were increased by EUR 0.3m and 

deferred tax liabilities decreased by EUR 0.1m. 

Furthermore, amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of 

financial statements’ have been implemented. The 

amendments require items of other comprehensive 

income, classified by nature, to be grouped into 

those that will be reclassified subsequently to the 

income statement when specific conditions are met, 

and those items that can never be reclassified.

In addition, a number of new accounting standards 

and interpretations have been implemented which 

do not have any monetary effect on the SimCorp 

Group’s result, assets, liabilities or equity.

DESCRIPTION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements comprise the 

parent company SimCorp A/S and subsidiaries in 

which the parent company directly or indirectly holds 

more than 50% of the votes or otherwise exercises a 

controlling influence.

Companies in which the group holds between 20% 

and 50% of the voting rights and/or otherwise 

exercises a significant, but not a controlling 

influence are considered associates.

The consolidated financial statements have been 

prepared by including the financial statements of 

the parent company and the subsidiaries, which 

have all been prepared in accordance with the 

Group’s accounting policies. On consolidation, 

intra-group income and expenses, shareholdings, 

balances, dividends and realized and unrealized 

gains and losses on intra-group transactions are 

eliminated.

Unrealized gains and losses on transactions with 

associates are eliminated in proportion to the 

Group’s shares in the associates. 

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Newly acquired or newly established enterprises are 

recognized in the consolidated financial statements 

from the dates of acquisition. Companies divested 

or wound up are consolidated in the income 

statement until the dates that they are divested or 

wound up.

The takeover method is applied on acquisitions, if  

the parent company gains control of the companies 

acquired. Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 

liabilities in companies acquired are measured at 

their fair values at the dates of acquisition. 

Identifiable intangible assets are recognized, if they 

can be separated or arise from a contractual right. 

Deferred tax is recognized on revaluations.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair 

value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and 

contingent liabilities acquired is recognized as 

goodwill under intangible assets. Goodwill is not 

amortized, but is tested for impairment at least once 

a year.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

For each of the reporting entities in the Group, a 

functional currency is determined. The functional 

currency is the currency in the primary economic 

environment in which the individual reporting entity 

operates. Transactions in currencies other than the 

functional currency are denominated in foreign 

currencies.

On initial recognition, transactions denominated in 

foreign currencies are translated into the functional 

currency at the exchange rates effective at the 

transaction dates. The average rate of exchange for 

the month is used to approximate the transaction 

dates’ exchange rates. Exchange differences arising 

between the exchange rates at the transaction 

dates and the exchange rates at the date of actual 

payments are recognized in the income statement 

under financial income or financial expenses.

Receivables, payables and other monetary items 

denominated in foreign currencies are translated to 

the functional currency at the exchange rates 

effective at the balance sheet date. The differences 

between the exchange rates effective at the 

balance sheet date and the exchange rates 

effective at the dates when the receivables or 

payables arose, or the exchange rate applied in the 

most recent annual report, are recognized in the 

income statement under financial income and 

financial expenses.

Foreign exchange adjustments of intra-group 

accounts between SimCorp A/S and subsidiaries 

Note
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that are considered as part of the net investment in 

the subsidiaries concerned are recognized in the 

consolidated financial statements in other 

comprehensive income in a separate exchange 

adjustment under equity. Corresponding foreign 

exchange adjustments are recognized in the income 

statement in SimCorp A/S’ financial statements. 

On consolidation of foreign subsidiaries and 

associates with functional currencies differing from 

SimCorp A/S’ presentation currency, the income 

statements are translated at the exchange rates 

effective at the transaction dates, and the balance 

sheets are translated at the exchange rates 

effective at the balance sheet date. The average 

exchange rate for each individual month is used as 

the transaction date exchange rate. Exchange 

differences arising on the translation of foreign 

subsidiaries’ opening equity at the exchange rates 

effective at the prior balance sheet date, and on the 

translation of the income statements from the 

exchange rates effective at the transaction dates to 

the exchange rates effective at the balance sheet 

date, are taken directly to other comprehensive 

income in a separate exchange adjustment under 

equity.

Settlement of intra-group balances considered part 

of the net investment are not per se considered a 

partial divestment of a subsidiary.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially 

recognized in the statement of financial position at 

their fair values on their trade dates and differences 

arising when they are subsequently measured at fair 

values are taken through profit or loss in financial 

income or financial expenses. Attributable 

transaction costs are recognized in the income 

statement.

 

INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

Revenue from sales of standard software licenses 

is recognized at the time of delivery provided the 

delivery of standard software does not depend 

on acceptance of its functionality. If there is a 

requirement for client acceptance of functionality, 

the license revenue is recognized at the time of 

acceptance.

The total contract sum is allocated to the separate 

components of those standard software con-

tracts which comprise several components. The 

individual allocations are recognized according to 

the principles described above.

License revenue under a fixed term license agree-

ment is recognized on a straight-line basis over 

the term.

Professional service fees are recognized as and 

when the work is performed. Revenue from main-

tenance agreements is recognized on a straight-

line basis over the contract period.

Other revenue, such as revenue from training 

course activities, is recognized in the income 

statement when the services have been delivered.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales comprises costs incurred to achieve 

the year’s revenue, including costs of delivering 

and implementing systems, training courses 

and support. Cost of sales primarily comprises 

salaries, share-based payments, other staff-

related costs, depreciation and amortization, and 

indirect costs, such as rent and technological 

infrastructure.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs comprise sala-

ries, share-based payments, other staff-related 

costs, depreciation and amortization, and other 

costs directly or indirectly attributable to the 

Group’s research and development activities.

Research and development costs are expensed in 

the year in which they are incurred when they do 

not qualify for capitalization, see the section  

‘Capitalization of software development costs’.

Sales and distribution costs

Sales and distribution costs primarily comprise 

salaries, share-based payments and other sales 

staff-related costs, travel and meeting expenses, 

marketing expenses, depreciation and amortiza-

tion, and indirect costs such as rent and techno-

logical infrastructure.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses comprise salaries, 

share-based payments and other sales staff-re-

lated costs and expenses related to management, 

administrative staff, office costs, depreciation, 

amortization and indirect costs such as rent and 

technological infrastructure.

Other operating income

Other operating income comprises income of a 

secondary nature relative to the activities of the 

Group, including gains on the sale of intangible 

assets and property, plant and equipment, and for 

the parent company, invoicing to subsidiaries of 

costs incurred.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses comprise expenses of 

a secondary nature relative to the activities of the 

Group, including losses on the sale of intangible 

assets and property, plant and equipment.

Share of profit after tax in associates

The Group’s proportionate shares of the profit 

or loss of associates after tax and elimination of 

the proportionate shares of intra-group gains or 

losses are recognized in the consolidated income 

statement.

Financial income and expenses

Financial income and expenses include interest 

income and expenses, realized and unrealized 

capital gains and losses on securities, realized and 

unrealized exchange gains and losses on foreign 

currency, amortization of financial assets and 

liabilities as well as surcharges and refunds under 

the Danish tax prepayment scheme, and changes 

related to the fair values of derivative financial 

instruments. Dividends on investments in subsid-

iaries and associates are recognized in the parent 

company’s income statement in the financial year 

in which the dividend is declared. 

Tax on profit for the year

The tax charge on taxable income for the year is 

recognized in the income statement, the year’s 

change in deferred tax and any changes in prior-

year taxable income are recognized in profit or 

loss for the year in other comprehensive income or 

directly in equity for any part relating to amounts 

recognized directly in equity.

The tax charge on share-based remuneration for 

the year is recognized in taxable income in the 

income statement. If the total tax charges exceed 

the total expenses then tax charge for the excess 

is deducted directly in equity. 

Statement of comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income consists of income 

and costs not included in the income statement, 

including exchange rate adjustments arising from 

Note
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the translation of consolidated companies finan-

cial statements into presentation currency, and 

actuarial gains or losses on defined benefit plans.

BALANCE SHEET

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

On initial recognition, goodwill is recognized in 

the balance sheet at cost as described in ‘Busi-

ness combinations’. Subsequently, goodwill is 

measured at cost less accumulated impairment. 

Goodwill is not amortized.

The carrying amount of goodwill is tested for im-

pairment at least annually. Any impairment losses 

are recognized directly in profit for the 

year and are not subsequently reversed.

Intangible assets with limited economic lives

Intangible assets with limited economic lives are 

measured at cost less accumulated amortization 

and impairment losses. Intangible assets include 

proprietary and acquired software. Amortiza-

tion is provided on a straight-line basis over the 

estimated useful lives of the assets, which are as 

follows:

Software                                                      up to 	10 years

Capitalization of software development costs

Proprietary software for resale

Costs of development projects for software for 

resale are recognized as intangible assets where 

they are clearly defined and identifiable, where 

there are sufficient resources to implement the 

projects, and where it is certain that identifiable 

future income or cost reductions will cover the 

development and future operating costs.

Capitalized development costs comprise salaries 

plus overheads. Overheads comprise staff costs, 

rent, IT and communications. 

Development costs comprise costs attributable 

to the Group’s development functions, including 

salaries, and other staff costs, amortization 

and other indirect costs. To the extent that the 

development costs are not capitalized, they are 

recognized as research and development costs in 

the income statement. 

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured 

at historic cost less accumulated depreciation 

and impairment. Property, plant and equipment 

are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 

estimated useful lives of the assets, which are as 

follows:

Leasehold improvements                   up to 	10 years

Technical equipment 	 3 years

Other fixtures and fittings, 	 5 years

tools and equipment

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over 

the expected remaining term of the leases up to a 

maximum of 10 years.

The basis of depreciation is calculated with due 

consideration to scrap value and any prior impair-

ment write down. Scrap value is determined at 

the date of acquisition and reassessed annually. 

Where the scrap value exceeds the carrying 

amount of the asset, the asset ceases to be 

depreciated.

Any change in depreciation period or scrap value is 

recognized as a change in accounting estimate.

Depreciation is recognized in the income 

statement as production costs, research and 

development costs, sales and distribution costs or 

administrative expenses.

Impairment of non-current assets

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually by 

comparing the carrying values of the assets with 

their recoverable amounts. The carrying values of 

other non-current assets are reviewed annually 

for impairment, except for tax assets, to assess if 

there is an indication of depreciation beyond what 

is expressed through normal depreciation. If the 

carrying amount of a non-current asset exceeds 

its recoverable amount, the carrying amount of the 

asset is written down to the recoverable amount.

Deferred tax assets are measured annually and 

only included to the extent it is likely that they will 

be realized.

Investments in associates in the consolidated 

financial statements

Investments in associates are recognized ac-

cording to the equity method and measured in 

the balance sheet at the proportionate share of 

the associates’ net asset values calculated in ac-

cordance with the Group’s accounting policies less 

or plus the proportionate share of any unrealized 

intra-group gains and losses and plus the carrying 

amount of goodwill.

Associates with a negative equity value are 

measured at nil. A provision is made if SimCorp 

A/S has a legal obligation to cover the negative 

balance of any associate.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates in 

the parent company’s financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are 

measured at cost in the parent company’s finan-

cial statements. Where the recoverable amount is 

lower than cost, the investment is written down to 

the lower value.

Contracts in progress

Contracts in progress relating to professional ser-

vices are measured at the estimated sales value 

of the proportion of the contract completed at the 

balance sheet date.

Amounts invoiced on account in excess of work 

completed are included in prepayments under 

current liabilities.

Receivables

Receivables are measured at cost. If there is 

objective evidence of impairment of a receivable, 

it is written down. Write-downs are made individu-

ally. The write-down is recognized in the income 

statement under administrative expenses.

EQUITY

Dividend

Dividends are recognized as a liability when 

declared by the shareholders in general meeting. 

Dividends recommended to be paid for the year 

are stated as a separate line item under equity 

until approved at the annual general meeting.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares acquired by the parent company 

or subsidiaries are recognized in the balance sheet 

at zero value. Proceeds on the purchase and sale 

of treasury shares and dividends from such shares 

are recognized in equity, including proceeds from 

the disposal of treasury shares in connection with 

the exercise of share options and sale of employee 

shares. 

Note

1

56Financial statements  Notes

To CONTENTS



57Financial statements  Notes

Exchange adjustment reserve

The exchange adjustment reserve in the consoli-

dated financial statements comprises foreign 

exchange differences arising on the translation 

of the financial statements of enterprises from 

their functional currencies to the SimCorp Group’s 

presentation currency (EUR).

On full or partial realization of a net investment, 

foreign exchange adjustments are recognized in 

the income statement.

INCENTIVE SCHEMES 

The Board of Directors, the Executive Manage-

ment Board and the employees are covered 

by one or more incentive schemes. The most 

important terms and conditions of the schemes 

are disclosed in notes 6 and 7 to the financial 

statements.

Stock options 

For equity-settled stock options, the fair value 

is measured at the grant date and recognized in 

the income statement under staff costs over the 

vesting period. The counter entry is recognized 

directly in equity.

On initial recognition of stock options, the number 

of options expected to vest is estimated. Subse-

quently, adjustment is made only for changes in 

the number of employees estimated to become 

entitled to options. Adjustments are recognized in 

the income statement under staff costs. 

The fair value is measured using the Black-Scholes 

model using assumptions set out in note 7 to the 

financial statements.

Employee shares

When the SimCorp Group’s employees are given 

the opportunity to acquire or subscribe for shares 

at a price below the market price, the discount 

is recognized as an expense in staff costs. The 

counter entry is recognized directly in equity. The 

discount is calculated at the acquisition date as 

the difference between fair value and the acquisi-

tion price of the shares acquired or subscribed.

Restricted stock units

For restricted stock units, fair value is measured 

at the grant dates and recognized in the income 

statement as staff costs over the vesting period. 

The counter entry is recognized directly in equity. 

On initial recognition of restricted stock units, the 

number of restricted stock units expected to vest is 

estimated. Subsequently, adjustment is made only 

for changes in the number of employees estimated 

to become entitled to restricted stock units. The 

numbers of the restricted units are adjusted when 

conditions are only partly met and the adjustment is 

recognized in the income statement as staff costs. 

Pension obligations

The Group has entered into pension and similar 

agreements with most employees.

Obligations relating to defined contribution plans 

are recognized in the income statement in the 

period in which they are earned, and payments 

due are recognized in the balance sheet under 

other payables. For defined benefit plans, annual 

actuarial calculations are made of the net present 

value of future benefits to be paid under the plan. 

The net present value is calculated based on as-

sumptions of the future developments of salary, 

interest, inflation and mortality rates. 

The net present value is only calculated for those 

benefits earned to date by employees. The pres-

ent value of future pension payments is estimated 

actuarially and shown net of the fair value of 

any plan assets in the balance sheet as pension 

obligations.

Differences between calculated pension assets 

and liabilities and their realized values are termed 

actuarial gains and losses. Actuarial gains and 

losses are recognized in the statement of compre-

hensive income.

Any change in benefits earned to date are actuari-

ally calculated and expensed immediately when 

the employees have already earned the right to 

the changed benefits. Otherwise, they are rec-

ognized in the income statement over the period 

during which the employees earn the right to the 

benefits. Any pension plan net asset is recognized 

only to the extent that it offsets unrecognized 

actuarial losses, will be received as future repay-

ments from the plan, or will result in reductions to 

future payments to the plan.

Corporation tax and deferred tax

Estimated tax payable or receivable on the taxable 

income for the year is recognized in the balance 

sheet as current tax liabilities and receivables 

adjusted for tax on prior years’ taxable income and 

payments on account.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability 

method on all temporary differences between 

the accounting value and the tax value of assets 

and liabilities, excluding temporary differences 

relating to goodwill which is not amortizable for 

tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets, including the tax value of tax 

losses carried forward, are recognized in other 

non-current assets and measured at the amount 

at which they are expected to be realized, either by 

setting off tax on future earnings or by setting off 

deferred tax liabilities within the same legal entity.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rules 

and rates in the respective countries that will 

apply under the legislation in force on the bal-

ance sheet date when the deferred tax asset is 

expected to crystallize as current tax. Changes in 

deferred tax resulting from changes in tax rates 

are recognized in the income statement.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Group has a 

legal or actual obligation as a result of a past event 

and it is probable that an outflow of the Group’s 

resources will be required to settle the obligation, 

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 

of the obligation.

Obligations to re-establish and refurbish leased 

offices when the premises are vacated are recog-

nized immediately at the estimated future costs.

In valuing provisions, the costs estimated to settle 

the liability are discounted if such discounting 

would have a material effect on the measurement 

of the liability. A pre-tax discount rate is used that 

reflects the level of interest rates and risks associ-

ated with the liability. Changes in the discount-

ing element during the year are recognized as 

financial expenses. 
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Liabilities

Other liabilities include holiday pay obligations, 

payroll taxes and VAT. Other liabilities are mea-

sured at cost.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The cash flow statement is presented accord-

ing to the indirect method commencing with the 

result for the year.

The cash flow statement shows the parent com-

panies’ and the Group’s cash flows divided into 

operating, investing and financing activities as 

well as cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 

and end of the year. 

Cash flows from operating activities are calcu-

lated as the profit for the year before tax, adjusted 

for non-cash operating items, changes in working 

capital, interest received and paid and income 

taxes paid.

Cash flows from investing activities comprise 

receipts and payments in connection with acquisi-

tions and disposals of companies and opera-

tions, intangible assets and property, plant and 

equipment as well as other non-current assets 

and liabilities.

Cash flows from financing activities comprise 

changes in share capital and related costs, re-

ceipts from or repayments of long-term liabilities, 

purchase or sale of treasury shares and distribu-

tions of dividends to shareholders.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and 

bank deposits.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group develops and sells standard software 

and related services through a number of market 

units. Segment reporting reflects development 

activities and the market units in accordance 

with the internal management reporting for per-

formance management and resource allocation. 

Information on these is disclosed in note 3 to the 

financial statements.

Segment income and costs consist of trans

actions between the segments. Such transactions 

are determined on market terms. 

Geographical segmentation is presented for 

revenue and non-current assets for the most 

important countries.

Note
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RATIO DEFINITIONS

				  

Financial ratios

EBIT margin (%)	 Operating profit / Revenue x 100

ROIC (return on invested capital) (%)	 Operating profit / Average operating assets x 100 

Debtor turnover ratio	 Revenue / Receivables at year-end 

Equity ratio (%)	 Equity at year-end / Total assets at year-end x 100

Return on equity (ROE) (%)	 Profit for the year / Average equity x 100

Share performance

Basic earnings per share (EPS)	 Profit for the year / Average number of shares

Diluted earnings per share (ESP-D)	 Profit for the year / Average number of diluted shares 

Cash flow per share (CFPS)	 Cash flow from operating activities / Average number of diluted shares

Book value per share (BVPS)	 Equity at year-end / Average number of shares

Dividend per share (DPS)	 Dividend paid / Number of shares at year-end

Dividend payout ratio (%)	 Dividend  paid / Profit for the year x 100

Total payout ratio (%)	 Dividend paid plus value of share  buybacks  / Profit for the year x 100

Market value ratios

Price / Book value per share (P/BV)	 Price /  Book Value (BVPS)

Price / Diluted price earnings (P/E  Diluted)	 Price  / ESP  Diluted shares 

Price / Cash flow (P/CF)	 Price / Cash flow (CFPS)
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES  

AND ASSESSMENTS			 

	
Estimation uncertainty

The calculation of carrying amounts of certain as-

sets and liabilities requires an estimate of how fu-

ture events will affect the value of such assets and 

liabilities on the balance sheet date. Estimates of 

significance to the financial statements are made in 

relation to expensing or capitalizing development 

costs, recognition of, inter alia, revenue, sales value 

of contracts in progress relating to professional 

services, receivables and deferred tax.		

					   

The estimates applied are based on assumptions 

which management believes to be reasonable, but 

which are inherently uncertain and unpredictable. 

Such assumptions may be incomplete or 

inaccurate, and unexpected events or circum-

stances may arise. In addition, the company is 

subject to risks and uncertainties encountered in 

the ordinary course of business that may cause 

actual results to deviate from the estimates.  

Risk factors specific to the SimCorp Group are 

described in the management report on page 

18–21 and the financial instruments and risks in 

note 29.					   

The notes to the financial statements contain 

information about the assumptions and the 

uncertainty of estimates at the balance sheet date 

involving the risk of changes that could lead to 

adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets or 

liabilities within the upcoming financial year.	

Accounting policies			 

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, in 

addition to estimations, management makes 

other judgments that may impact the amounts 

recognized in the annual accounts.		

					   

Such judgments include, the timing of income 

recognition and whether leases should be 

treated as operating or finance leases.
	

						    

Note
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	 GROUP		
			   	 		
	 2012	 2012 	 2013	 2013

	 					   
	 EUR'000	 Allocation	 EUR'000	 Allocation

Revenue allocation by country (significant)

Germany	 38,508	 18%	 42,338	 19%

Denmark	 23,702	 11%	 20,334	 9%

Canada	 18,379	 9%	 20,231	 9%

Switzerland	 17,894	 9%	 19,140	 9%

USA	 12,518	 6%	 18,494	 8%

Holland	 17,865	 9%	 16,619	 7%

Norway	 11,272	 5%	 14,189	 6%

England	 10,849	 5%	 13,095	 6%

Sweden	 12,229	 6%	 12,194	 5%

France	 7,627	 4%	 8,413	 4%

	
Non-current assets allocation by country (significant)			 

Denmark	 4,531	 56%	 4,226	 55%

England	 2,249	 28%	 2,531	 33%

SEGMENT DATA
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2013

Revenue	 53,749	 68,506	 20,166	 27,457	 15,931	 38,011	 1,108	 201	 225,129	 0	 225,129

Revenue between segments	 8,156	 4,820	 2,493	 3,663	 1,535	 2,455	 72,384	 333	 95,839	  (95,839)	 0

Total segment revenue	 61,905	 73,326	 22,659	 31,120	 17,466	 40,466	 73,492	 534	 320,968	  (95,839)	 225,129

Segment profit from	 15,713	 17,696	  3,248 	 4,486	 1,787	  1,107 	 14,109	  (3,910)	 54,236	 0	 54,236

operations (EBIT)						    

Total assets	 14,518	 22,169	 6,480	 17,009	 5,784	 14,209	 2,788	 4,202	 87,159	 30,310	 117,469

2012						    

Revenue	 51,593	 64,641	 15,075	 27,869	 18,932	 29,688	 1,279	 113	 209,190	 0	 209,190

Revenue between segments	 5,542	 4,925	 2,653	 3,800	 3,107	 3,233	 69,856	 430	 93,546	  (93,546)	 0

Total segment revenue	 57,135	 69,566	 17,728	 31,669	 22,039	 32,921	 71,135	 543	 302,736	  (93,546)	 209,190

Segment profit from	 14,737	 17,628	  (911)	 3,818	 4,140	  (140)	 15,387	  (7,744)	 46,915	 0	 46,915

operations (EBIT)						    

Total assets	 14,719	 22,955	 4,029	 14,376	 11,035	 12,883	 3,247	 3,174	 86,418	 39,373	 125,791

Revenue disclosures are based on SimCorp’s market units and development activities while asset allocation is based on the physical location of the assets.  

Unallocated assets relate to non-current headquarter assets, cash, taxes and investments in associates.					   

	Segment information is prepared in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

Transactions between segments are made on market terms.

Nordic 

region
GROUP

Central

Europe

UK and

Ireland

Benelux

and

 France

Asia

and Au-

stralia

North

America

Product

division

Corpo-

rate

functions Total

Elimina-

tion/not

allocated Group

SEGMENT DATA

	 				 
		  	
EUR'000	 2012	 2013

	
			 
Reconciliation of the profit before tax

Total segment profit reported (EBIT)		  46,915	 54,236

Share of profit after tax in associates		 141	 (111)

Financial income			   2,006	 2,375

Financial expenses			   2,066	 2,494

Profit before tax		  	 46,996	 54,006

EUR'000

Note
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PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

		  2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

4	 			   REVENUE BY TYPE OF SERVICE

				  
		  7,386	 6,098	 Licenses – new sales	 14,772	 12,196
	
		  15,684	 16,604	 Licenses – additional sales	 27,633	 30,064
	
		  12,244	 11,945	 Professional services	 66,060	 76,335
	
		  55,440	 58,160	 Maintenance	 98,149	 104,297
	
		  123	 176	 Training activities etc.	 2,576	 2,237
	

		  90,877	 92,983	 Total	 209,190	 225,129

The SimCorp Group has no clients with revenue of more than 4% (2012: 4%) of total revenue.

PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

		  2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

5	 			   FUTURE REVENUE, RENTAL OF SOFTWARE

				  
				    Rental of software		
	
		  690	 716	 Future revenue within 1 year	 1,380	 1,432
	
		  1,684	 1,441	 Future revenue within 2-5 years	 3,368	 2,881
	
		  5	 0	 Future revenue after 5 years	 9	 0
	

		  2,379	 2,157	 Total rental of software	 4,757	 4,313

Revenue from rental of software is based on agreements giving clients the right to use SimCorp’s standard software over a limited period of time. The term of these agree-

ments is typically five years. Clients subsequently have an option to extend the rental period.
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PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

Note	 2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

6	 			   PERSONNEL EXPENSES

	
		  46,985	 50,135	 Wages and salaries	 99,612	 105,011
	
		  0	 0	 Defined contribution pension plans	 1,222	 1,044
	
		  0	 0	 Defined benefit pension plans	 458	 613
	
		  2,535	 3,039	 Share-based payments	 2,535	 3,039
	
		  135	 134	 Social security costs	 7,660	 7,901
					   
	
		  49,655	 53,308	 Total personnel expenses	 111,487	 117,608
	

		  461	 460	 Average number of employees	 1,075	 1,093

Note
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PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

Note	 2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

				    Remuneration to parent company management:		
	
				    Board of Directors:		
	
		  214	 228	 Remuneration	 214	 228
	
		  34	 34	 Other benefits	 34	 34
	
		  145	 162	 Share-based payment	 145	 162
	

		  393	 424	 Total remuneration to the Board of Directors	 393	 424
	

				    Remuneration to members of the Executive Management Board:		
	
				    Klaus Holse: 2012 for the period 1 September to 31 December		
	
		  179	 550	 Salary	 179	 550
	
		  14	 44	 Other benefits	 14	 44
	
		  29	 201	 Performance-related bonus	 29	 201
	
		  140	 481	 Share-based payment	 140	 481
	
					   
		  362	 1,276	 Total	 362	 1,276
	

				    Georg Hetrodt:		
	
		  315	 323	 Salary	 315	 323
	
		  15	 19	 Other benefits	 15	 19
	
		  52	 118	 Performance-related bonus	 52	 118
	
		  175	 187	 Share-based payment	 175	 187
	
					   
		  557	 647	 Total	 557	 647
	

				    Thomas Johansen:		
	
		  294	 316	 Salary	 294	 316
	
		  18	 19	 Other benefits	 18	 19
	
		  49	 116	 Performance-related bonus	 49	 116
	
		  107	 141	 Share-based payment	 107	 141
	
	
		  468	 592	 Total	 468	 592
	

				    Peter L. Ravn: *		
	
		  422		  Salary	 422	
	
		  33		  Other benefits	 33	
	
		  46		  Performance-related bonus	 46	
	
		  180		  Share-based payment	 180	
	
	
		  681		  Total	 681	
	

				    Torben Munch: 2012 for the period 1 January to 30 September 		
	
		  262		  Salary	 262	
	
		  68		  Other benefits (2012: Including vacation pay)	 68	
	
		  43		  Performance-related bonus	 43	
	
		   (510)		  Share-based payment (2012: Cancellations)	  (510)	
	
	
		   (137)		  Total	  (137)	
		

		  Shares	 Shares 		  Shares	 Shares

		  of DKK 1	 of DKK 1	 Restricted stocks units awarded to parent company management:	 of DKK 1	 of DKK 1
		
		  178,800	 33,300	 Executive Management Board**	 178,800	 33,300
	

		  178,800	 33,300	 Total restricted stocks awarded to parent company management	 178,800	 33,300
	
					   
				    Employee shares acquired by parent company management:		
	
		  1,250	 530	 Board of Directors***	 1,250	 530
	
		  9,620	 2,660	 Executive Management Board	 9,620	 2,660
	

		  10,870	 3,190	 Total number of employee shares acquired by parent company management	 10,870	 3,190
	
					   
				    Shares allotted to parent company management:		
	
		  8,570	 5,810	 Board of Directors****	 8,570	 5,810
	

		  8,570	 5,810	 Total number of shares allotted to parent company management	 8,570	 5,810

*	 Resigned from Excecutive Management Board 31 August 2012 and available to Board of Directors to 1 January 2013. 				  

**	 2012 including allocation of 107,220 restricted stock units to the new CEO Klaus Holse						    

***	 Restricted stocks units and employee shares acquired in capacity as employees of SimCorp A/S.						    

****	 Allotted as part of the remuneration of the Board of Directors.
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SHARE-BASED REMUNERATION

SimCorp’s Board of Directors has adopted an overall policy for remuneration and incentive programs and the policy has been aproved by shareholders at the annual 

general meeting. The overall objective being to promote awareness of profitable growth and the Group’s long-term goals. The Board of Directors wishes the company 

to offer share-based remuneration. The Board of Directors also believes that it is a natural decision for a company like SimCorp to offer shares to its Board members 

as a part of their overall remuneration. 

Since 2000, the company has operated incentive programs for members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board and the employees.		

						    

On 3 June 2013 the trade denomination of the SimCorp shares was changed from DKK 10 to DKK 1 per share. The tables below showing stock options, employee 

shares and restricted stock units have been adjusted to shares of DKK 1. 								      

Stock options granted in 2008								      

A total of 711,800 options of DKK 1 were granted to members of the Executive Management Board and key employees in April 2008 and an additional 8,000 options 

of DKK 1 were granted in July 2008 to an employee. When issued, the stock options had terms of between one and five years. The subscription price was fixed subject 

to the terms of the stock options at a minimum of 5, 10 or 15%, respectively, above the market price at the time of issue for options with minimum terms of 1, 2 and 3 

years, respectively. EUR12 thousand (2012: EUR 120 thousand) was reversed to the income statement in respect of this program in the 2013 financial year. This pro-

gram was completed during 2013.						    

								      

Stock options granted in 2009								      

A total of 813,990 options at DKK 1 were granted to members of the Executive Management Board and the key employees in April 2009. When issued, the stock options had 

terms of between one and five years. The subscription price was fixed subject to the term of the stock options at a minimum of 5, 10 or 15%, respectively, above the market 

price at the time of issue for options with minimum terms of 1, 2 and 3 years, respectively.This programme was fully charged in previous years (2012: EUR 131 thousand). 	

							     

Restricted stock units granted in 2010								      

A total of 147,050 restricted stock units of DKK 1 were granted to members of the Executive Management Board and key employees in April 2010 and an additional 

2,550 restricted stock units of DKK 1 were granted in connection with the appointment of three Senior Vice Presidents in the second half of 2010. The restricted stock 

units will vest after three years, subject to continuing employment. Furthermore, the restricted stock units are subject to conditions with respect to average annual 

minimum revenue growth and annual average net operating profit after tax for the financial years 2010-2012. If the two last conditions are only partially satisfied, the 

undertaking with respect to the number of shares transferred after three years will be reduced, and may possibly lapse completely. EUR 112 thousand (2012: EUR 280 

thousand) was charged to the income statement in respect of this program in the 2013 financial year. A total of 96,610 shares of DKK 1 were granted to members of 

the Executive Management and key employees. The number of shares was reduced by 18% compared to the maximum under the program.		

								      

Restricted stock unit granted in 2011								      

A total of 162,140 restricted stock units of DKK 1 were granted to members of the Executive Management Board and key employees in April 2011 and an additional 1,220 

restricted stock units of DKK 1 were granted in connection with the employment of a Senior Vice Presidents in the second half of 2011. The restricted stock units will vest 

after three years, subject to continuing employment. Furthermore, the restricted stock units are subject to conditions with respect to average annual minimum revenue 

growth and annual average net operating profit after tax for the financial years 2011-2013. If the two last conditions are only partially satisfied, the undertaking with re-

spect to the number of shares transferred after three years will be reduced, and may possibly lapse completely. EUR 330 thousand (2012: EUR 309 thousand) was charged 

to the income statement in respect of this program in the 2013 financial year. The number of shares are reduced by 21% compared to the maximum under the program.	

						    

Restricted stock unit granted in 2012								      

A total of 154,710 restricted stock units of DKK 1 were granted to members of the Executive Management Board and key employees in April 2012. 1 September 2012 

an additional 1,250 restricted stock units of DKK 1 were granted in connection with the appointment of an Excecutive Vice President and a further 5,000 restricted 

stock units of DKK 1 were granted to the CEO in January 2013. The restricted stock units will vest after three years, subject to continuing employment. Furthermore, 

the restricted stock units are subject to conditions with respect to average annual minimum revenue growth and annual average net operating profit after tax for the 

financial years 2012-2014. If the two last conditions are only partially satisfied, the undertaking with respect to the number of shares transferred after three years will 

be reduced, and may possibly lapse completely. In addition on 1 April 2012, 15,000 restricted stock units of DKK 1 were granted to a senior employee in North America.

Note

7

Executive Management Board remuneration policy for 2013						    

The aggregate remuneration of the Executive Management Board consists of a fixed salary and a bonus component subject to the financial results achieved in a given financial 

year, as well as eligibility for the share based incentive program. The bonus component will generally make up about 45% of the fixed remuneration.  The value of the share 

based incentive program, defined as the aggregate theoretical value at the time of grant, will represent 55% of the fixed salary and the value of the employee shares will make 

up about 6% of the fixed salary. Each year, the Board of Directors determines the fixed remuneration and the size of the performance-related bonus for the Executive Manage-

ment Board and the specific targets that will trigger a bonus. 						    

	

Members of the Executive Management Board can terminate their service contracts giving six months’ notice. The company can terminate the service contracts giving 12 

months’ notice. Termination on the part of the company triggers a severance pay of 6-9 months’ salary subject to the term of employment. In case of very material changes to 

the company’s ownership, the company’s term of notice to members of the Executive Management Board is prolonged for a two-year period up to 24 months.		

				  

Remuneration policy for the Board of Directors							     

The remuneration is composed of a cash remuneration and a number of SimCorp shares. The value of the shares allotted was determined immediately prior to the annual 

general meeting at which the shareholders approved the remuneration and represent one third of the total remuneration. The remuneration is paid on a quarterly basis.
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These restricted stock units will vest by 50% after four years, and further 50% after five years subject to continuing employment, and furthermore, the restricted stock 

units are subject to conditions with respect to the average annual EBIT result for the market units for the financial years 2012-2014. In addition, in connection with 

Klaus Holse’s appointment as CEO 107,220 restricted stock units of DKK 1 were granted him on 1 September 2012, as Klaus Holse has completed his personal invest-

ment of DKK 5m in SimCorp shares. These restricted stock units will vest by 60% after three years, further 20% after four years, and further 20% after five years subject 

to continuing employment. EUR 842 thousand (2012: EUR 609 thousand) was charged to the income statement in respect of this program in the 2013 financial year.	

							     

Restricted stock unit granted in 2013								      

A total of 117,950 restricted stock units of DKK 1 were granted to members of the Executive Management Board and key employees in April 2013 and additional 1,230 re-

stricted stock units of DKK 1 were granted in connection with the appointment of an Senior Vice President in July 2013. Furthermore 610 restricted stock units of DKK 1 

were granted to a newly appointed Senior Vice President in October 2013. The restricted stock units will vest after three years, subject to continuing employment. Further-

more, the restricted stock units are subject to conditions with respect to average annual minimum revenue growth and annual average net operating profit after tax for the 

financial years 2013-2015. If the two last conditions are only partially satisfied, the undertaking with respect to the number of shares transferred after three years will be 

reduced, and may possibly lapse completely. EUR 466 thousand was charged to the income statement in respect of this program in the 2013 financial year.		

						    

Employee shares related to corporate bonus programme 2011 granted in 2012							     

On 20 March 2012 the company sold 142,410 treasury shares of DKK 1 to 340 employees of the parent company and its foreign subsidiaries as part of its corporate 

bonus program. The price was DKK 37.30 per share, corresponding to 40% of the average market price from 1 March to 5 March 2012. EUR 446 thousand was 

charged to the income statement in connection with the program in the 2012 financial year. The employee shares are held in restricted accounts until 15 March 2015. 

Employees cannot sell or otherwise dispose of the shares during the period in which they are subject to selling restrictions.				  

 

�Restricted stock unit related to corporate bonus programme 2011 granted in 2012							     

On 20 March 2012 the company granted 35,700 restricted stock units of DKK 1 to employees of the parent company and its foreign subsidiaries as part of its corpo-

rate bonus program. The restricted stock units will vest on 15 March 2015, subject to continuing employment. EUR 62 thousand (2012: EUR 125 thousand) was 

charged to the income statement in respect of this program in the 2013 financial year.							     

	

Employee shares related to corporate bonus programme 2012 granted in 2013							     

On 6 March 2013 the company sold 63,350 treasury shares of DKK 1 to 279 employees of the parent company and its foreign subsidiaries as part of its corporate 

bonus program. The price was DKK 58.60 per share, corresponding to 40% of the average market price from 28 February to 4 March 2013. EUR 89 thousand was 

charged to the income statement in connection with the program in the 2013 financial year. The employee shares are held in restricted accounts until 15 March 2016. 

Employees cannot sell or otherwise dispose of the shares during the period in which they are subject to selling restrictions.				  

				  

Restricted stock units related to corporate bonus programme 2012 granted in 2013						    

On 6 March 2013 the company granted 14,350 restricted stock units of DKK 1 to employees of the parent company and its foreign subsidiaries as part of its corporate 

bonus program. The restricted stock units will vest on 15 March 2016, subject to continuing employment. EUR 83 thousand was charged to the income statement in 

respect of this program in the 2013 financial year.								      

Restricted stock units related to corporate bonus programme 2013 to be granted in 2014 						    

In March 2014 the company will as part of its corporate bonus program grant restricted stock units to employees of the parent company and its foreign subsidiaries. 

The restricted stock units will vest on 15 March 2017, subject to continuing employment. EUR 905 thousand (2012: 659 thousand for 2012 corporate bonus program) 

was charged to the income statement in respect of this program in the 2013 financial year.						    

		

Shares to the Board of Directors in 2012								      

In 2012 the company allotted 8,570 treasury shares of DKK 1 to members of SimCorp’s Board of Directors. In the financial year 1 January to 31 December 2012 EUR 

139 thousand was charged to the income statement in respect of this program.							     

Shares to the Board of Directors in 2013								      

In 2013 the company allotted 5,810 treasury shares of DKK 1 to members of SimCorp’s Board of Directors. In the financial year 1 January to 31 December 2013 EUR 

160 thousand was charged to the income statement in respect of this program.

Total number of stock options issued, 1 January 2012						    

Purchase price 120.00 exercise period Aug. 08 – Aug. 12				    3,000	 19,000	 91,700	 113,700	  0.31 

Purchase price 125.80 exercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 12				    4,500	 28,500	 137,300	 170,300	  0.31 

Purchase price 131.50 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 12				    7,500	 47,500	 229,000	 284,000	  0.31 

Purchase price 105.80 exercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 13				    1,000	 21,200	 104,500	 126,700	  0.81 

Purchase price 110.80 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 13				    1,500	 31,800	 156,750	 190,050	  0.81 

Purchase price 115.90 exercise period Aug. 11 – Aug. 13				    2,500	 53,000	 261,250	 316,750	  0.81 

Purchase price   57.40 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 14				    0	 23,320	 40,400	 63,720	  1.31 

Purchase price   60.10 exercise period Aug. 11 – Aug. 14				    0	 35,000	 99,600	 134,600	  1.31 

Purchase price   62.90 exercise period Aug. 12 – Aug. 14				    2,500	 68,340	 313,670	 384,510	  1.63 

Total number of stock options, 1 January 2012				    22,500	 327,660	 1,434,170	 1,784,330	  0.88 

Avg.

remain-

ing

termTotal

Other

employ-

ees

Board of

DirectorsNumber of stock options of DKK 10

Executive

Manage-

ment

Board
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Cancelled in 2012							     

Purchase price 120.00 exercise period Aug. 08 – Aug. 12	  			   (2,200)	  (19,000)	  (92,500)	  (113,700)	

Purchase price 125.80 exercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 12				     (3,300)	  (28,500)	  (138,500)	  (170,300)	

Purchase price 131.50 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 12				     (5,500)	  (47,500)	  (231,000)	  (284,000)	

Purchase price 105.80 exercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 13				    0	 0	  (3,600)	  (3,600)	

Purchase price 110.80 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 13				    0	 0	  (5,400)	  (5,400)	

Purchase price 115.90 exercise period Aug. 11 – Aug. 13				    0	 0	  (31,750)	  (31,750)	

Purchase price   62.90 exercise period Aug. 12 – Aug. 14				    0	 0	  (6,500)	  (6,500)	

Total number of stock options cancelled				     (11,000)	  (95,000)	  (509,250)	  (615,250)	

Exercised in 2012						    

Purchase price 105.80 exercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 13	  			   (1,000)	  (3,000)	  (63,860)	  (67,860)	

Purchase price 110.80 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 13				     (1,500)	  (4,500)	  (75,750)	  (81,750)	

Purchase price 115.90 exercise period Aug. 11 – Aug. 13				     (2,500)	  (7,500)	  (68,500)	  (78,500)	

Purchase price   57.40 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 14 				    0	 0	  (41,060)	  (41,060)	

Purchase price   60.10 exercise period Aug. 11 – Aug. 14				    0	 0	  (94,600)	  (94,600)	

Purchase price   62.90 exercise period Aug. 12 – Aug. 14	  			   (2,500)	  (10,000)	  (251,340)	  (263,840)	

Total stock options exercised				     (7,500)	  (25,000)	  (595,110)	  (627,610)	

Transferred between categories in 2012						    

Purchase price 120.00 exercise period Aug. 08 – Aug. 12				     (800)	 0	 800	 0	

Purchase price 125.80 exercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 12				     (1,200)	 0	 1,200	 0	

Purchase price 131.50 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 12				     (2,000)	 0	 2,000	 0	

Purchase price 105.80 exercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 13				    0	  (18,200)	 18,200	 0	

Purchase price 110.80 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 13				    0	  (27,300)	 27,300	 0	

Purchase price 115.90 exercise period Aug. 11 – Aug. 13				    0	  (45,500)	 45,500	 0	

Purchase price   57.40 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 14				    0	  (23,320)	 23,320	 0	

Purchase price   60.10 exercise period Aug. 11 – Aug. 14				    0	  (35,000)	 35,000	 0	

Purchase price   62.90 exercise period Aug. 12 – Aug. 14				    0	  (58,340)	 58,340	 0	

Total stock options				     (4,000)	  (207,660)	 211,660	 0	

Total number of stock options issued, 31 December 2012						    

Purchase price 105.80 exercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 13				    0	 0	 55,240	 55,240	  0.31 

Purchase price 110.80 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 13				    0	 0	 102,900	 102,900	  0.31 

Purchase price 115.90 exercise period Aug. 11 – Aug. 13				    0	 0	 206,500	 206,500	  0.31 

Purchase price   57.40 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 14				    0	 0	 22,660	 22,660	  0.81 

Purchase price   60.10 exercise period Aug. 11 – Aug. 14				    0	 0	 40,000	 40,000	  0.81 

Purchase price   62.90 exercise period Aug. 12 – Aug. 14				    0	 0	 114,170	 114,170	  0.81 

Total number of stock options, 31 December 2012				    0	 0	 541,470	 541,470	  0.48 

Cancelled in 2013						    

Purchase price 105.80 exercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 13				    0	 0	 (1,000)	  (1,000)	

Purchase price 110.80 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 13				    0	 0	 (4,500)	  (4,500)	

Purchase price 115.90 exercise period Aug. 11 – Aug. 13				    0	 0	 (16,500)	  (16,500)	

Total number of stock options cancelled				    0	 0	 (22,000)	  (22,000)	

Exercised in 2013						    

Purchase price 105.80 exercise period Aug. 09 – Aug. 13				    0	 (6,000)	 (48,240)	  (54,240)	

Purchase price 110.80 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 13				    0	 (9,000)	 (89,400)	  (98,400)	

Purchase price 115.90 exercise period Aug. 11 – Aug. 13				    0	 (29,500)	 (160,500)	  (190,000)	

Purchase price   57.40 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 14 				    0	 (4,000)	 (17,660)	  (21,660)	

Purchase price   60.10 exercise period Aug. 11 – Aug. 14				    0	 (1,500)	 (37,000)	  (38,500)

Purchase price   62.90 exercise period Aug. 12 – Aug. 14				    0	 (22,500)	 (86,670)	  (109,170)	
	

Total stock options exercised				    0	 (72,500)	 (439,470)	  (511,970)

Avg.

remain-

ing

termTotal

Other

employ-

ees

Board of

DirectorsNumber of stock options of DKK 1

Executive

Manage-

ment

Board
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Total number of stock options issued, 31 December 2013						    

Purchase price   57.40 exercise period Aug. 10 – Aug. 14 				    0	 0	 1,000	 1,000	 0.31

Purchase price   60.10 exercise period Aug. 11 – Aug. 14				    0	 0	 1,500	 1,500	 0.31

Purchase price   62.90 exercise period Aug. 12 – Aug. 14				    0	 0	 5,000	 5,000	 0.31

Total number of stock options, 31 December 2013				    0	 0	 7,500	 7,500	 0.31

The table shows the number of shares per share of DKK 1 and exercise prices.								      

The average market price at the time of exercise was DKK 154.73 (2012: DKK 115.12) per share of DKK 1.						    

		

Number of stock options of DKK 1

Avg.

remain-

ing

termTotal

Other

employ-

ees

Board of

Directors

Executive

Manage-

ment

Board

Number of restricted stock units granted 2010						    

Total number of restricted stock units (April 2013) at 1 January 2011			   860	 45,240	 98,930	 145,030		   2.25 

Cancelled restricted stock units			   0	 0	  (3,490)	  (3,490)		

Total number of restricted stock units (April 2013) at 31 December 2011			   860	 45,240	 95,440	 141,540		   1.25 

Cancelled restricted stock units			   0	  (15,080)	  (3,400)	  (18,480)		

Reclassified restricted stock units			   0	  (15,080)	 15,080	 0		

Total number of restricted stock units (April 2013) at 31 December 2012			   860	 15,080	 107,120	 123,060		   0.25 

Cancelled restricted stock units			   0	 0	  (4,190)	  (4,190)		

Performance adjustment			    (160)	  (2,720)	  (19,380)	  (22,260)		

Transferred shares (February 2013)			    (700)	  (12,360)	  (83,550)	  (96,610)		

						    
Number of restricted stock units granted 2011						    

Granted restricted stock units 1 April 2014			   750	 60,120	 102,490	 163,360	 1.87	

Cancelled restricted stock units			   0	 0	  (3,800)	  (3,800)		

Total number of restricted stock units (April 2014) at 31 December 2011			   750	 60,120	 98,690	 159,560		   2.25 

Cancelled restricted stock units			   0	  (15,030)	  (11,230)	  (26,260)		

Reclassified restricted stock units			   0	  (15,030)	 15,030	 0		
		

Total number of restricted stock units (April 2014) at 31 December 2012			   750	 30,060	 102,490	 133,300		   1.25 

Cancelled restricted stock units			   0	 0	  (4,550)	  (4,550)		

Total number of restricted stock units (April 2014) at 31 December 2013			   750	 30,060	 97,940	 128,750		

Performance adjustment			    (160)	  (6,403)	  (20,861)	  (27,424)		

Shares to be transferred in 2014			    590 	  23,657 	  77,079 	  101,326 		   0.25 

						    
Number of restricted stock units granted 2012						    

Granted restricted stock units 1 April 2015			   0	 64,200	 96,760	 160,960	 2.08	

Cancelled restricted stock units			   0	  (14,800)	  (12,220)	  (27,020)		

Reclassified restricted stock units			   0	  (14,800)	 14,800	 0		

Total number of restricted stock units (April 2015) at 31 December 2012			   0	 34,600	 99,340	 133,940		   2.25 

Cancelled restricted stock units			   0	 0	  (4,460)	  (4,460)		

Total number of restricted stock units (April 2015) at 31 December 2013			   0	 34,600	 94,880	 129,480		   1.25 

						    
Number of restricted stock units related to corporate bonus 2012						    

Granted restricted stock units 15 March 2015			   0	 7,380	 28,320	 35,700	 0.31	

Cancelled restricted stock units			   0	  (4,570)	  (310)	  (4,880)		

Total number of restricted stock units (March 2015) at 31 December 2013			   0	 2,810	 28,010	 30,820		   1.25 

						    
Number of restricted stock units to a senior employee in North America granted 2012						    

Granted restricted stock units 1 April 2016/2017			   0	 0	 15,000	 15,000	  0.18 	

Total number of restricted stock units (April 2016/2017) at 31 December 2013		  0	 0	 15,000	 15,000		   2.75

Fair value

at time

of grant

(EURm)

Avg.

remain-

ing

termTotal

Other

employ-
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Board of

Directors*
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Manage-
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BoardNumber of restricted stock units of DKK 1 granted
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PricewaterhouseCoopers only elected as auditor for 2012

PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

Note		  2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

8	 			   AMORTIZATION AND DEPRECIATION

				    Amortization and depreciation for the year is recognized

				    in the income statement as follows:		

		  541	 413	 Cost of sales	 888	 669

		  1,647	 1,215	 Research and development costs	 1,763	 1,330
		
		  168	 132	 Sales and distribution costs	 382	 278

		  646	 524	 Administrative expenses	 702	 574
						    

		  3,002	 2,284	 Total amortization and depreciation	 3,735	 2,851
						    
	
				    Of which amortization of intangible assets:		
	
		  78	 52	 Cost of sales	 78	 52

		  470	 157	 Research and development costs	 470	 157

		  25	 17	 Sales and distribution costs	 26	 19

		  93	 66	 Administrative expenses	 98	 84
						    

		  666	 292	 Total amortization of intangible assets	 672	 312
	
		
9				    FEES TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

				    Audit fees		

		  134	 138	 KPMG 	 308	 355

		  39		  PricewaterhouseCoopers	 39	
			 

		  173	 138	 Total audit fees	 347	 355
		
					   
				    Other service with assurance fees		
		
		  0	 0	 KPMG 	 29	 4
		
		  0		  PricewaterhouseCoopers	 4
		
					   
		  0	 0	 Total other service with assurance fees	 33	 4
		
				  
				    Tax and VAT advice fees		
		
		  33	 7	 KPMG 	 51	 48
		
		  100		  PricewaterhouseCoopers	 196
		
					   
		  133	 7	 Total Tax and VAT advice fees	 247	 48
		
					   
				    Other service fees		
		
		  197	 2	 KPMG 	 235	 79
		
		  1		  PricewaterhouseCoopers	 37	
		
					   
		  198	 2	 Total other service fees	 272	 79
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Number of restricted stock units to the CEO granted 2012						    

Granted restricted stock units 1 September 2015/2016/2017			   0	 107,220	 0	 107,220	  1.39 	

Total number of restricted stock units (September 2015/2016/2017) at 31 December 2013	 0	 107,220	 0	 107,220		   2.27 

						    
Number of restricted stock units granted 2013						    

Granted restricted stock units 28 February 2016			   0	 33,300	 86,490	 119,790	  2.51 	

Cancelled restricted stock units			   0	 0	  (2,900)	  (2,900)		

Total number of restricted stock units (February 2016) at 31 December 2013			   0	 33,300	 83,590	 116,890	 0	  2.25 

						    
Number of restricted stock units related to corporate bonus 2013						    

Granted restricted stock units 15 March 2016			   0	 0	 14,350	 14,350	  0.28 	

Total number of restricted stock units (March 2016) at 31 December 2013			   0	 0	 14,350	 14,350		   2.25 

						    

Total number of restricted stock units at 31 December 2013			   590	 201,587	 312,909	 515,086		

						    

*  Restricted stock units acquired in capacity as employees of SimCorp A/S						    

On 3 June 2013 the trade denomination for the SimCorp shares was changed from DKK 10 to DKK 1 per share. The tables showing stock options and restricted 

stock units have been adjusted to shares of DKK 1.  

The table shows the number of restricted stock units and the fair value at the time of grant.						    

EUR 3.0m (2012: EUR 2.5m) was charged to the income statement in respect of share-based payments in the 2013 financial year.
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Name

2012

Dyalog Ltd.	 UK	 19.9%	 2,357	 265	 2,665	 485		  65

Equipos Ltd.	 UK	 20.0%	 6,680	 405	 2,894	 1,758		  76
								      
	
							       1,364	 141

2013

Dyalog Ltd.	 UK	 19.9%	 2,325	 116	 2,642	 504		  22

Equipos Ltd.	 UK	 20.0%	 8,520	 (411)	 3,054	 1,930		  (132)
								      
	
							       1,221	 (111)

Profit for

the yearEquityLiabilities

Total

assets

Profit for

the year

Country of

incorporation Revenue

Ownership

interest

EUR'000

Share attributable to the

SimCorp Group

PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

Note		  2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

10	 			   INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES		

	
		  866	 855	 Cost at 1 January	 866	 855
	
		   (3)	 0	 Foreign exchange adjustment	  (3)	 0
	
		   (8)	 0	 Disposals	  (8)	 0

	
		  855	 855	 Cost at 31 December	 855	 855
	
							     
		  0	 0	 Adjustments at 1 January	 348	 509
	
		  0	 0	 Foreign exchange adjustment	 20	  (32)
	
		  0	 0	 Share of profit for the year	 141	  (111)
	

		  0	 0	 Adjustments at 31 December	 509	 366

	
		  855	 855	 Carrying amount at 31 December	 1,364	 1,221

	 			   RECEIVABLES FROM ASSOCIATES			 
					   
							     
		  60	 0	 Cost at 1 January	 60	 0

		  0	 422	 Additions	 0	 422
		
		  (60)	 0	 Disposals	 (60)	 0

		  0	 422	 Cost at 31 December	 0	 422

	
		  0	 422	 Carrying amount at 31 December	 0	 422

Investments in associates are measured in the consolidated balance sheet according to the equity method. Investments in associates are measured at cost or 

recoverable amount in the parent company’s balance sheet. 								      

	

The disposal relates to Dyalog Ltd. which have brought back treasury shares in 2012 and cancelled the shares.				  

	

On 25 February 2014 SimCorp completed the acquisition of remaining 80% of the shares in Equipos Ltd., see note 30.

PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

Note	 2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

11				    FINANCIAL INCOME

		  24,443	 25,709	 Dividend from subsidiaries	  – 	  – 
	
		  0	 20	 Dividend from associates	 0	 20
	
		  241	 153	 Interest income, subsidiaries	  – 	  – 
	
		  434	 226	 Interest income, cash etc.	 615	 349
	
		  0	 7	 Interest income, associates	 0	 7
	
		  600	 676	 Foreign exchange gains	 600	 676
	
		  770	 1,007	 Foreign exchange adjustments	 791	 1,323
	

		  26,488	 27,798	 Total financial income	 2,006	 2,375
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PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

Note	 2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

13				    TAX

				    Tax for the period:		
	
		  3,095	 4,258	 Tax on profit	 12,522	 14,670
	
		   (163)	 0	 Tax on total comprehensive income	  (163)	 127
	

		  2,932	 4,258	 Total tax	 12,359	 14,797
	

				    Tax on profit for the year breaks down as follows:		
	
		  3,755	 3,928	 Current tax	 14,125	 14,722
	
		   (658)	  (101)	 Deferred tax	  (1,769)	  (553)
	
		   (2)	 219	 Prior-year adjustment	 137	 271
	
		  0	 212	 Adjustment of tax rate	 29	 230
	

		  3,095	 4,258	 Total tax on profit for the year	 12,522	 14,670
	
					   
		  3,818	 2,404	 Tax paid during the year	 11,864	 14,388
	

				    Tax on profit for the year breaks down as follows:		
	
		  9,574	 10,450	 Tax calculated on the year’s pre-tax profit, 25% 	 11,754	 13,501
	
		  –	 –	 Difference in tax in subsidiaries relative to 25% 	 796	 757
	
		  0	 212	 Change in tax rate	 29	 230
	
		   (6,106)	  (6,430)	 Dividend and value adjustment, subsidiaries	 –	 –
	
				    Tax effect:		
	
		   (427)	  (898)	 Non-taxable income	  (578)	  (1,061)
	
		  439	 533	 Non-deductable expenses	 692	 799
	
		   (385)	 391	 Other, including prior-year adjustments	  (171)	 444
	
	
		  3,095	 4,258	 Total tax on profit for the year	 12,522	 14,670
				  
	
		  8.1%	 10.2%	 Effective tax rate	 26.6%	 27.2%

PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

Note	 2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

12				    FINANCIAL EXPENSES

			 
		  378	 238	 Interest expenses, subsidiaries	  – 	  – 
	
		  40	  (32)	 Interest expenses, financial assets carried at amortized cost	 38	  (16)
	
		  0	 0	 Interest expenses, pension	 0	  25 
	
		  51	 286	 Other financial expenses	 215	 449
	
		  680	 0	 Fair value adjustments, derivates	 680	 0
	
		  694	 1,659	 Foreign exchange adjustments	 1,133	 2,036
	
					   
		  1,843	 2,151	 Total financial expenses	 2,066	 2,494
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Interest expense, financial assets carried at amortized cost is negative due to a change in the estimated costs of restoring leasehold premises.
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	 				    GROUP

Note		  	 		  2012	 2013

	
14		  EARNINGS PER SHARE

	Profit for the year (EUR´000)		  34,474	 39,336

		
Average number of shares at DKK 1		  45,469,945	 44,058,904

Average number of treasury shares at DKK 1	  (2,390,378)	  (1,920,251)

Average number of shares at DKK 1 in circulation	 43,079,567	 42,138,653

Average dilutive impact of outstanding stock options at DKK 1	 39,033	 4,744

Average dilutive impact of outstanding restricted stock units at DKK 1	 455,193	 516,428

Average number of diluted shares at DKK 1 in circulation	 43,573,793	 42,659,825

		
Basic earnings per share at DKK 1 – EPS (EUR) 	 0.80	 0.93

Diluted earnings per share at DKK 1 – EPS-D (EUR) 	 0.79	 0.92

The dilutive effect of 34,840 restricted stock units of DKK 1 each (2012: 52,130 restricted stock units of DKK 1 each), was not included as the conditions stipulated 

in note 7 are only expected to be partly met. They could potentially dilute earnings per share in the future. See also the Management report concerning share-based 

remuneration on pages 40-42.			 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT		

PARENT COMPANY

Cost at 1 January 2012		  6,731	 6,731	 3,709	 6,071	 3,329	 13,109

Foreign exchange adjustment		   (24)	  (24)	  (13)	  (21)	  (12)	  (46)

Additions		  144	 144	 100	 357	 0	 457

Disposals		  0	 0	 0	  (66)	 0	  (66)

Cost at 31 December 2012		  6,851	 6,851	 3,796	 6,341	 3,317	 13,454

							     
Depreciation at 1 January 2012		  5,682	 5,682	 1,424	 3,655	 2,128	 7,207

Foreign exchange adjustment		   (24)	  (24)	  (4)	  (18)	  (7)	  (29)

Depreciation		  666	 666	 335	 1,375	 626	 2,336

Disposals		  0	 0	 0	  (64)	 0	  (64)

Depreciation at 31 December 2012		  6,324	 6,324	 1,755	 4,948	 2,747	 9,450

							     
Carrying amount at 31 December 2012		  527	 527	 2,041	 1,393	 570	 4,004

Cost at 1 January 2013		  6,851	 6,851	 3,796	 6,341	 3,317	 13,454

Foreign exchange adjustment		  0	 0	  1 	 0	 1	  2 

Additions		  76	 76	  (117)	 2,020	 0	 1,903

Disposals		   (104)	  (104)	 0	  (1,113)	  (6)	  (1,119)

Cost at 31 December 2013		  6,823	 6,823	 3,680	 7,248	 3,312	 14,240

							     
Depreciation at 1 January 2013		  6,324	 6,324	 1,755	 4,948	 2,747	 9,450

Foreign exchange adjustment		   (1)	  (1)	 0	 0	 2	 2

Depreciation		  292	 292	 283	 1,159	 550	 1,992

Disposals		   (104)	  (104)	 0	  (1,113)	  (5)	  (1,118)

Depreciation at 31 December 2013		  6,511	 6,511	 2,038	 4,994	 3,294	 10,326

							     
Carrying amount at 31 December 2013		  312	 312	 1,642	 2,254	 18	 3,914

Depreciation period		 Up to 10 years		  Up to 10 years	 3 years	 5 years

Note

15

Property, plant

and equip-

ment total

Equipment,

fixtures and

fittings

Technical

equipment

Leasehold

improve-

ment

Acquired

software

Intangible

total

EUR'000
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Negative additions on leasehold improvements for parent company is a changed estimate of costs to restore premises when lease expire.			 

				  

No other significant estimates for intangible assets and for property, plant and equipment have been changed.					   

		

All intangible assets apart from goodwill are considered to have limited useful economic lives. 						    

	

Goodwill							     

As at 31 December 2013, management performed an impairment test of the carrying amount of goodwill in SimCorp Asia Pty. Ltd. of AUD 0.3m (2012: AUD 0.3m) 

and SimCorp Development Centre UK Limited of GBP 0.5m (2012: GBP 0.5m).  	

						    

The recoverable amount, calculated as the present value of expected future cash flows based on the companies’ plans for 2014 as approved by management, the 

expected revenue and cost performance for the future related to SimCorp Dimension for SimCorp Asia Pty. Ltd. and FIX.Net for SimCorp Development Centre UK Lim-

ited, is assessed to be adequate to offset the carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2013.  A discount rate of 7.5% (2012: 9.5%) p.a before tax, consisting 

of a risk free interest rate of 4.0% (2012: 3.8%), a risk premium of 3.5% (2012: 5.5%) and a Beta of 1 (2012: 1.1) is used according to market evaluation of comparable 

companies.		

					   

Sensitivity analyses show that discount rates can be increased by up to 5% (2012: 5%) points, without resulting in impairment of goodwill.			 

				  

Software							    

The additions in software 2013 and 2012 are primarily related to purchase for use in operation.						    

	

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT		

GROUP

Cost at 1 January 2012	 908	 6,118	 7,026	 6,527	 6,891	 5,051	 18,469

Foreign exchange adjustment	  (33)	  (23)	  (56)	  (10)	  (21)	  (13)	  (44)

Additions	 0	 242	 242	 132	 395	 31	 558

Disposals	 0	 0	 0	  (78)	  (97)	  (32)	  (207)

Cost at 31 December 2012	 875	 6,337	 7,212	 6,571	 7,168	 5,037	 18,776

Amortization/depreciation at 1 January 2012	 0	 5,064	 5,064	 3,252	 4,009	 3,395	 10,656

Foreign exchange adjustment	 0	  (22)	  (22)	 3	 35	  (6)	 32

Amortization/depreciation	 0	 672	 672	 660	 1,559	 844	 3,063

Disposals	 0	 0	 0	  (61)	  (95)	  (32)	  (188)

Amortization/depreciation at 31 December 2012	 0	 5,714	 5,714	 3,854	 5,508	 4,201	 13,563

							     
Carrying amount at 31 December 2012	 875	 623	 1,498	 2,717	 1,660	 836	 5,213

Cost at 1 January 2013	 875	 6,337	 7,212	 6,571	 7,168	 5,037	 18,776

Foreign exchange adjustment	  (83)	  (3)	  (86)	  (128)	  (58)	  (64)	  (250)

Additions	 0	  76 	  76 	 13	 2,166	 35	 2,214

Disposals	 0	  (104)	  (104)	  (112)	  (1,179)	  (491)	  (1,782)

Cost at 31 December 2013	 792	 6,306	 7,098	 6,344	 8,097	 4,517	 18,958

							     
Amortization/depreciation at 1 January 2013	 0	 5,714	 5,714	 3,854	 5,508	 4,201	 13,563

Foreign exchange adjustment	 0	  (2)	  (2)	  (126)	  (40)	  (57)	  (223)

Amortization/depreciation	 0	 312	 312	 504	 1,356	 679	 2,539

Disposals	 0	  (104)	  (104)	  (112)	  (1,158)	  (490)	  (1,760)

Amortization/depreciation at 31 December 2013	 0	 5,920	 5,920	 4,120	 5,666	 4,333	 14,119

							     
Carrying amount at 31 December 2013	 792	 386	 1,178	 2,224	 2,431	 184	 4,839

Amortization/depreciation period		  Up to 10 years		  Up to 10 years	 3 years	 5 years	
	

Property, plant

and equip-

ment total

Equipment,

fixtures and

fittings

Technical

equipment

Leasehold

improve-

ment

Acquired

software

Intangible

totalGoodwill

EUR'000
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PARENT COMPANY				 

Note		  2012	 2013		  	
	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 			 

16	 			   INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES		
		
		
		  9,313	 24,459	 Cost at 1 January	
		
		   (32)	  1 	 Foreign exchange adjustment	
		
		  15,178	 2,032	 Additions	
		

		  24,459	 26,492	 Cost at 31 December	
		
					   
		  24,459	 26,492	 Carrying amount at 31 December	
		
		
		  24,443	 25,709	 Dividends paid	
		

				    RECEIVABLES FROM SUBSIDIARIES		
					   
		
		  11,445	 2,448	 Cost at 1 January	
		
		   (386)	  (57)	 Foreign exchange adjustment	
		
		   (8,611)	  (2,391)	 Disposals	
		

		  2,448	 0	 Cost at 31 December	
		

		  2,448	 0	 Carrying amount at 31 December	
	

The addition, investments in subsidiaries, 2013 relates to SimCorp Canada Inc. and in 2012 to SimCorp Canada Inc., SimCorp France S.A.S. and SimCorp USA Inc. There 

are no ownership changes in the Group’s subsidiaries.								      

												          

The disposals, receivables from subsidiaries,2013 are related to repayment of loan from SimCorp Ltd. and in 2012 are related to conversion of debt to share capital for 

SimCorp USA Inc. and to repayment of a loan from SimCorp USA Inc.

Name

SimCorp Ltd.	 London, United Kingdom	 100%	 100	 T GBP 

SimCorp GmbH	 Bad Homburg, Germany	 100%	 102	 T EUR

SimCorp Österreich GmbH	 Vienna, Austria	 100%	 18	 T EUR

SimCorp Norge AS	 Oslo, Norway	 100%	 1,000	 T NOK

SimCorp Sverige AB	 Stockholm, Sweden	 100%	 100	 T SEK 

SimCorp Benelux SA/NV	 Brussels, Belgium	 100%	 62	 T EUR

SimCorp USA Inc.	 New York, USA	 100%	 7,010	 T USD

SimCorp Schweiz AG	 Zurich, Switzerland	 100%	 100	 T CHF

SimCorp Asia Pty. Ltd.	 Sydney, Australia	 100%	 1,000	 T AUD

SimCorp Singapore Pte. Ltd.	 Singapore, Singapore	 100%	 1	    SGD

SimCorp Development Centre UK Limited	 Shenfield, United Kingdom	 100%	 200	    GBP

SimCorp Ukraine LLC	 Kiev, Ukraine	 100%	 2,968	 T UAH

SimCorp Canada Inc.	 Vancouver, Canada	 100%	 6,000	 T  CAD

SimCorp France S.A.S.	 Paris, France	 100%	 500	 T  EUR

SimCorp Hong Kong Ltd.	 Hong Kong, China	 100%	 14,000	 T HKD

SimCorp Luxembourg S.A. 	 Luxembourg, Luxembourg	 100%	 31	 T EUR

SimCorp Benelux SA/NV has branches in the Netherlands, Luxembourg and France.						    
	
SimCorp Ltd. has a branch in the United Arab Emirates.						    
	
SimCorp Sverige AB has a branch in Finland.

SimCorp Ltd. and SimCorp Development Centre UK Limited will be merged effective 31 December 2013.

Share 

capital

Ownership

interest

in 2013Registered office

The Group’s subsidiaries are at 31 December 2013:
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PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

Note		  2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

17	 			   DEPOSITS

	
		  1,743	 1,767	 Cost at 1 January	 2,062	 2,095
		
		   (6)	 0	 Foreign exchange adjustment	  (1)	  (18)
		
		  40	 15	 Additions	 74	 64
		
		   (10)	  (4)	 Disposals	  (40)	  (30)
		

		  1,767	 1,778	 Carrying amount at 31 December	 2,095	 2,111
		
		
18	 			   DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

		  791	 1,700	 Deferred tax at 1 January	 3,485	 5,272
	
		   (4)	 0	 Foreign exchange adjustment	  (12)	  (233)
	
		  194	 0	 Prior-year adjustment, profit and loss	  (2)	  (33)
	
		  658	 101	 Adjustment of deferred tax, profit and loss	 1,769	 553
	
		  61	 550	 Adjustment of deferred tax, equity	 61	 677
	
		  0	  (212)	 Adjustment of tax rate	  (29)	  (230)
	

		  1,700	 2,139	 Net deferred tax at 31 December	 5,272	 6,006
	

				    Deferred tax recognised in the balance sheet as follows:		
	
		  1,700	 2,139	 Deferred tax assets	 5,680	 6,219
	
		  0	 0	 Deferred tax liabilities	  (408)	  (213)
	
	
		  1,700	  2,139 	 Net deferred tax at 31 December	 5,272	  6,006 
	
		
				    Deferred tax consists of:		
	
		   (132)	  (77)	 Intangible assets 	  (132)	  (77)
	
		  415	 435	 Property, plant and equipment	 727	  736 
	
		  0	 0	 Current assets	  (53)	  17 
	
		  336	 245	 Provisions	 355	  363 
	
		  44	 44	 Current liabilities	 354	  295 
	
		  1,037	 1,492	 Share-based payment	 1,037	  1,492 
	
		  0	 0	 Tax losses carry-forward	 2,984	  3,180 
	
	
		  1,700	  2,139 	 Net deferred tax at 31 December	 5,272	  6,006 

Tax value of the capitalized tax losses are expected to be realized within a few years, as the affected subsidiaries expect a positive taxable income going forward. In 

2014 EUR 0.7m (2012: 2013 EUR 1.4m) is expected to be utilized. SimCorp France S.A.S. and SimCorp Canada Inc. have recently started operations and have not yet 

paid taxes.						    

						    

Deferred tax asset, EUR 0.3m (2012: EUR 0.05m) have not been recognized in the balance sheet in respect of increased depreciation of 115% on property, plant and 

equipment. 						    

						    

The tax value of tax losses carried forward in SimCorp Luxembourg S.A. EUR 0.2m is not expected to be utilized within a few years and is not capitalized.
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2012

Intangible assets	  (262)	 1	 129	 0	  (132)

Property, plant and equipment	 632	  (1)	 96	 0	 727

Current assets	  (640)	 2	 585	 0	  (53)

Provisions	 813	  (1)	  (457)	 0	 355

Current liabilities	 309	  (9)	 54	 0	 354

Share-based payment	 472	  (2)	 506	 61	 1,037

Tax losses carry-forward	 2,161	  (2)	 825	 0	 2,984

	 3,485	  (12)	 1,738	 61	 5,272

2013					   

Intangible assets	  (132)	 0	  55 	 0	  (77)

Property, plant and equipment	 727	  (31)	  40 	 0	  736 

Current assets	  (53)	  4 	  66 	 0	  17 

Provisions	 355	  (38)	  (81)	 127	  363 

Current liabilities	 354	  (24)	  (35)	 0	  295 

Share-based payment	 1,037	 0	  (95)	 550	  1,492 

Tax losses carry-forward	 2,984	  (144)	 340	 0	  3,180 

	 5,272	  (233)	 290	 677	  6,006

Balance

31 December

Recognised

in equity

Recognised

in profit 

and loss

Foreign

exchange

adjustment

Balance

1 January

CHANGES IN TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES DURING THE YEAR

PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

Note		  2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

19	 			   RECEIVABLES

	
		  2,343	 2,239	 Receivables from clients	 26,687	 26,095
	
		  13,758	 12,259	 Receivables from subsidiaries	  – 	  – 
	
		  2,439	 1,576	 Accrued revenue	 18,195	 22,007
	
		  810	 536	 Other receivables	 1,242	 1,234
	
					   
		  19,350	 16,610	 Total receivables at 31 December	 46,124	 49,336
	
	
				    The aging of trade receivables from clients was at 31 December:		
	
		  2,155	 1,294	 Not due	 22,071	 22,608
	
		  96	 937	 Not more than 30 days	 3,554	 2,229
	
		  20	 8	 More than 30 days but not more than 90 days	 449	 871
	
		  72	 0	 More than 90 days	 613	 387
	
	
		  2,343	 2,239	 Total	 26,687	 26,095

EUR'000

GROUP

Accrued revenue consist mainly of revenue from sale of software licenses and receivables from contracts in progress, see note 25.			 

			 

	No security has been received with respect to trade receivables.			 

			 

	The need for impairment was based on an individual assessment of each receivable.  			 

			 

	No writedown has been made in 2013 and 2012 for trade receivables.			 

			 

	The Group’s exposure to currency and credit risk for trade receivables is disclosed in note 29.			 
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EQUITY, TREASURY SHARES AND DIVIDEND

At 1 January	 46,000,000	 45,000,000	 6,179	 6,045

Cancellation of treasury shares	 (1,000,000)	 (1,500,000)	 (134)	 (201)

At 31 December	 45,000,000	 43,500,000	 6,045	 5,844

20
Nominal

value

EUR'000

2013

Nominal

value

EUR'000

2012

Number of

shares

of DKK 1

2013

Number of

shares

of DKK 1

2012

Share capital

At 31 December 2013, the share capital amounted to DKK 43,500,000 divided into 43,500,000 shares of DKK 1 nominal value (2012: DKK 45,000.000 divided into 

45,000,000 shares of DKK 1 nominal) after cancelling of 1.500.000 (2012: 1.000.000) treasury shares of DKK 1 nominal value. The company’s shares are traded on 

NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen in denominations of DKK 1. Until 3 June 2013 the trading denominations was DKK 10. No shares confer any special rights upon any 

shareholder. No shares are subject to restrictions on transferability or voting rights.							     

				  

The share capital may be increased in one or more issues by a total nominal amount of up to DKK 5,000,000 (5,000,000 shares of DKK 1 nominal value) as directed 

by the Board of Directors with respect to time and terms. This authority is valid for a period of five years, expiring on 1 March 2018, and may be extended by the 

shareholders for one or more periods of up to five years at a time. The capital increase may be effected by cash payment or otherwise. The capital increase may be 

effected without pre-emption rights to the company’s existing shareholders, if the shares are issued at market price or as consideration for the company’s acquisition 

of an existing operation or specific assets of a value that equals the value of the shares issued. Except for the cases specified in the preceding period, the company’s 

existing shareholders shall have a right to subscribe new shares proportionately to their existing holdings. The new shares shall be negotiable instruments, and no 

restrictions shall apply to the transferability of the shares. No shareholders shall be under an obligation to have their shares redeemed in full or in part by the com-

pany or any other party.											         

											         

Unless Danish legislation provides for a greater majority or unanimity, the adoption of resolutions regarding amendments to the company’s articles of association 

and the company’s dissolution or merger with another company requires a majority of not less than two thirds of all the votes cast as well as of the voting share 

capital represented at the relevant general meeting, and that not less than 50% of the share capital is represented at the general meeting.  In case less than 50% of 

the share capital is represented at the general meeting, and the resolution is adopted by not less than two thirds of the votes cast as well as of the voting share 

capital represented at the general meeting, another general meeting may be called within 14 days after the preceding general meeting. At the new general meeting, 

the resolution can be adopted by not less than two thirds of the votes cast as well as of the voting share capital represented at the general meeting.

At 1 January	 2,452,560	 2,444,020	 27,371	 33,448	 5.3	 5.4

Foreign exchange adjustment	  – 	  – 	  (96)	  1	  – 	 –

Purchases	 1,770,170	 1,881,651	 25,518	 42,850	 3.9	 4.3

Cancellation 	  (1,000,000)	  (1,500,000)	  (10,065)	  (20,693)	  (2.2)	  (3.3)

Delivery of shares/options exercised	  (636,300)	  (615,080)	  (7,690)	  (7,413)	  (1.3)	  (1.4)

Sold to employees	  (142,410)	  (63,350)	  (1,590)	  (837)	  (0.3)	  (0.1)

At 31 December	 2,444,020	 2,147,241	 33,448	 47,356	 5.4	 4.9

Percent of

share capital

2013

Percent of

share capital

2012

Acquisition

value

EUR'000

2013

Treasury shares

The market value of treasury shares at 31 December 2013 was EUR 61.4m (2012: EUR 41.4m). The shares are carried at EUR 0.0m in the financial statements. The 

Board of Directors has been authorized to let the company acquire treasury shares of up to a total nominal value of 10% of the company’s share capital including the 

company’s current holding of treasury shares. 										        

	

SimCorp A/S acquired 1,881,651 treasury shares of DKK 1 at an average price of DKK 169.89 per share of DKK 1 equal to a purchase price of EUR 42.9m in 2013 

(2012:1,770,170 treasury shares of DKK 1 at an average price of DKK 107.55 per share of DKK 1 equal to a purchase price of EUR 25.5m). In addition, SimCorp A/S in 

2013 disposed of treasury shares in relation to the sale of shares to employees under the employee share program, for a nominal value of DKK 63,350 share of DKK 1 

at a calculated market price of DKK 146.75 per share of DKK 1, equal to a calculated selling price of EUR 1.2m (2012: DKK 142,410 share of DKK 1 at a calculated market 

price of DKK 101.29 per share of DKK 1, equal to a calculated selling price of EUR 1.9m). The company has delivered shares in connection with exercise of options for 

a nominal value of DKK 615,080 shares of DKK 1 (2012: DKK 636,300 shares of DKK 1) calculated at an average market price of DKK 153.67 per share of DKK 1 (2012: 

DKK 115.07 per share of DKK 1), equal to a selling price of EUR 12,7m (2012: EUR 9.8m). The proceeds of the sale totalled EUR 11.6m (2012: EUR 7.4m).		

									       

The company acquires treasury shares for the purpose of covering the Group’s incentive programs, among other things.				  

							     

Capital management and dividend policy										        

The Board of Directors regularly assesses the need for adjusting the capital structure, including the requirement for cash, credit facilities and equity.		

									       

SimCorp pursues a dividend policy to the effect that, when cash resources exceed 10% of an upcoming year’s projected costs, the company will pay minimum 50% of 

the profit for the year by way of dividend. In addition, the company will buy treasury shares provided that it does not anticipate specific cash requirements.

Acquisition

value

EUR'000

2012

Number of

shares

of DKK 1

2013

Number of

shares

of DKK 1

2012
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Distribution of dividends to shareholders has no tax consequences for the company.							     

				  

The Board of Directors intends to recommend to the shareholders at the annual general meeting that dividends of EUR 22.2m (2012: EUR 20.0m), equal to DKK 4.00 (2012: 

DKK 3.50) per 1 share, be distributed and that the company be authorized to acquire treasury shares for up to 10% of the company’s share capital. Further, the Board of 

Directors proposes to reduce the share capital of the Company by nominally DKK 2,000,000 from nominally DKK 43,500,000 to nominally DKK 41,500,000, equivalent to a 

reduction of the share capital by 2,000,000 shares of DKK 1 by cancellation of treasury shares.

21 PROVISIONS

PARENT COMPANY

2012

Liability at 1 January	 797	 467	 1,264

Foreign exchange adjustment	  (3)	  (2)	  (5)

Used during the year	 0	  (31)	  (31)

Reversal of unutilized liabilities	 0	  (47)	  (47)

Provisions for the year	 40	 124	 164

Total provisions	 834	 511	 1,345

			 
Expected due dates for provisions:			 

Falling due within 1 year	 0	 48	 48

Falling due within 2 to 5 years	 0	 62	 62

Falling due after 5 years	 834	 401	 1,235

Total provisions	 834	 511	 1,345

			 
2013			 

Liability at 1 January	 834	 511	 1,345

Used during the year	 0	  (50)	  (50)

Reversal of unutilized liabilities	  (204)	  (24)	  (228)

Provisions for the year	 37	 128	 165

			 
Total provisions	 667	 565	 1,232

			 
Expected due dates for provisions:			 

Falling due within 1 year	 0	 14	 14

Falling due within 2 to 5 years	 667	 53	 720

Falling due after 5 years	 0	 498	 498

Total provisions	 667	 565	 1,232

Provisions cover the costs of restoring leasehold premises and provisions for anniversary bonuses. The latter resulting from the Group’s commitment of one month’s pay in 

connection with employees’ 25th and 40th anniversary.			 

			 

	When the Group has an obligation to restore leasehold premises on expiry of the lease, a provision corresponding to the present value of the expected future expenses is 

recognized. 					   

	

Total

Anniversary

bonuses

Reestablishment

costs for

rented premises

EUR'000

Note
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PROVISIONS

GROUP

2012

Liability at 1 January		  1,316	 676	 689	 79	 2,760

Foreign exchange adjustment		  1	  (1)	 10	 0	 10

Used during the year		  0	  (31)	 0	 0	  (31)

Reversal of unutilized liabilities		   (91)	  (47)	  (42)	 0	  (180)

Provisions for the year		  52	 445	 22	  (79)	 440

					   
Total provisions		  1,278	 1,042	 679	 0	 2,999

					   
Expected due dates for provisions:					   

Falling due within 1 year		  0	 95	 0	 0	 95

Falling due within 2 to 5 years		  247	 380	 0	 0	 627

Falling due after 5 years		  1,031	 567	 679	 0	 2,277

Total provisions		  1,278	 1,042	 679	 0	 2,999

					   
2013					   

Liability at 1 January		  1,278	 1,042	 679	 0	 2,999
	
Foreign exchange adjustment		   (21)	  (47)	  (18)	 0	  (86)

Used during the year		  0	  (109)	 0	 0	  (109)

Reversal of unutilized liabilities		   (204)	  (258)	 0	 0	  (462)

Provisions for the year		  49	 433	 489	 4	 975

					   
Total provisions		  1,102	 1,061	 1,150	 4	 3,317

					   
Expected due dates for provisions:					   

Falling due within 1 year		  74	 66	 0	 0	 140

Falling due within 2 to 5 years		  825	 445	 0	 0	 1,270

Falling due after 5 years		  203	 550	 1,150	 4	 1,907

Total provisions		  1,102	 1,061	 1,150	 4	 3,317

TotalOtherPension

Anniversary

bonuses

Reestablishment

costs for

rented premises

Provisions cover the costs of restoring leasehold premises and provisions for anniversary bonuses. The latter resulting from the Group’s commitment of one month’s pay in 

connection with employees’ 25th and 40th anniversary.			 

			 

	When the Group has an obligation to restore leasehold premises on expiry of the lease, a provision corresponding to the present value of the expected future expenses is 

recognized. 						    

			 

See note 22 regarding pension obligations

EUR'000

PENSIONS AND SIMILAR LIABILITIES

The pension obligations of the Parent company and certain foreign companies are covered by insurance (defined pension contribution plans).			 

				  

For a few foreign subsidiaries the pension obligations are not or only partly covered by insurance (defined pension benefit plans).				  

			 

For defined pension contribution plans, the employer is obliged to pay a defined pension contribution (for example a fixed percentage of an employee’s salary) to 

independent insurance companies or the like. For a defined pension contribution plan, the Group runs no risk in respect of future developments in interest rates, 

inflation, mortality or disability.	

						    

Under defined pension benefit plans, the employer is obliged to pay a defined pension benefit (for example a fixed percentage of an employee’s final salary) to the 

employee after retirement. Under a defined pension benefit plan, the Group carries the risk in respect of future developments in interest rates, inflation, mortality or 

disability.			 

				  

The Group’s Norwegian and Swiss subsidiaries have pension plans comprisinging a total of 32 employees (2012: 32). The plans entitle the employees to defined 

future pension benefits. These primarily depend on number of years of service, salary level at retirement age and the size of the national pension.		

					   

The actuarial assessments of assets and liabilities in the Norwegian defined pension benefit plan have been done by Storebrand Pensjonstjenester AS (Norway) 

on basis of standardized assumptions, prepared by Forsikringsnæringens Hovedorganisasjon (Norway), regarding life expectancy and other demographic factors. 

Specifically the tariff K2013BE has been applied. For the Swiss defined pension benefit plan the actuarial assessments of assets and liabilities have been done by 

Allea Ltd (Switzerland) on basis of standardized assumptions, prepared by Swiss Association of Actuaries, regarding life expectancy and other demographic factors.

Note

22
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	 				   GROUP

		  	 		  2012	 2013

	
						     EUR'000	 EUR'000

Pension liabilities	

At 1 January			   4,710	 4,861

Foreign exchange adjustment and other adjustments	 137	  (464)

Employee contributions			   141	 167

Expensed in the income statement			   421	 375

Calculated interest 			   120	 116

Actuarial loss/(gain) change in demographic assumptions	  (512)	 319

Actuarial loss/(gain) change in financial assumptions		  9

Payroll taxes			    (42)	  (24)

Benefits paid			    (114)	 414

Present value of pension liabilities at 31 December	 4,861	 5,773

				 
Fair value of plan assets				  

At 1 January			   3,256	 3,703

Foreign exchange adjustment			   82	  (225)

Calculated interest			   115	 85

Return on plan assets in addition to calculated interest	  (214)	 155

Employee contributions			   141	 167

Employer contributions			   437	 335

Benefits paid			    (114)	 403

Fair value of plan assets at 31 December	 3,703	 4,623

				 
Net liability included in the balance sheet *	 1,158	 1,150

*  Unrecognised actuarial loss in 2012 amounted to EUR 479 thousand. Net liability recognised in the balance sheet in 2012 amounted to EUR 679 thousand.

	 				   GROUP

		  	 		  2012	 2013

	
			  Asset allocation at 31 of December

Shares			   2%	 3%

Bonds			   8%	 7%

Mortgage bonds			   14%	 16%

Property			   6%	 4%

Insurance policies			   60%	 64%

Other financial assets			   10%	 6%

Total			   100%	 100%

Most important assumptions for the actuarial calculations at the balance sheet date were as follows:

	 				   GROUP

		  	 		  2012	 2013

	
			  Discount rate			   1.9-3.8%	 2.3-4.0%

Expected return on plan assets			   3.1-3.8%	 4.0%

Future salary increases			   2.0-3.5%	 2.0-3.8%

Expected pension increases			   0.1-0.2%	 0.1-0.6%

Increase in social benefit contributions	 3.3%	 3.5%

Sensitivity analysis:					   

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the pension benefit liabilty are discount rate and expected future remuneration increases. The sensitiv-

ity analysis below have been determined based on reasonable likely changes in assumptions occuring at the end of the period.			 

				 

EUR ‘000				  

	
Discount rate			    (462)	 657 

Future remuneration			   122	  (106)

						   

	The sensitivities consider the single change shown with the other assumptions assumed to be unchanged. In practice, changes in one assumption may be accom-

panied by offsetting changes in another assumption (although this is not always the case).			 

				 

	The Group expects to pay EUR 314 thousand to the defined benefit pension plans in 2014 (2012: EUR 417 thousand for the year 2013).

1 %-point, 

decrease

1 %-point, 

increase
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PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

Note	 2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

23	 			   TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER PAYABLES

		  2,756	 4,035	 Trade payables	 5,731	 6,864
		
		  14,985	 14,619	 Debt to subsidiaries	  –   	  –   
		
		  7,387	 7,718	 Accrued vacation pay	 9,435	 9,858
		
		  2,841	 4,563	 Wages and commissions payable	 7,951	 11,612
		
		  59	 55	 Payroll taxes, VAT etc., payable	 6,038	 5,164
					   
		
		  28,028	 30,990	 Total trade payables and other payables	 29,155	 33,498

The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk for trade payables and other payables is disclosed in note 29.

PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

Note	 2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

24				    INCOME TAX
		

 		  (912)	  (946)	 Payable at 1 January	  (911)	 1,380
		
		  0	  (1)	 Foreign exchange adjustment	 55	  (386)
		
		  192	 219	 Prior-year adjustments	 138	 238
		
		  3,755	 3,928	 Current tax on profit for the year	 14,125	 14,722
		
		   (163)	  (149)	 Tax on equity items	  (163)	  (149)
		
		   (3,818)	  (2,404)	 Income tax paid	  (11,864)	  (14,388)
		

		   (946)	  647 	 Total payable income tax, net	 1,380	 1,417
		
					   
				    Which is distributed as follows:		
		
		   (946)	 0	 Income tax receivable	  (1,335)	  (1,223)
		
		  0	 647	 Income tax payable	 2,715	 2,640
		

		   (946)	 647	 Total payable income tax, net	 1,380	 1,417
		
	  
25	 			   CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS RELATING TO 

				    PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

		  0	 0	 Income recognized sales value of contracts in progress	 1,460	 9,117
		
		  0	 0	 Payments received on account	  (1,837)	  (6,807)
		

		  0	 0	 Contracts in progress	  (377)	 2,310
		
					   
				    Which are recognised as follows:		
		
		  0	 0	 Contracts in progress relating to professional services (assets)	 410	 3,115
		
		  0	 0	 Contracts in progress relating to professional services (liabilities)	  (787)	  (805)
		

		  0	 0	 Contracts in progress	  (377)	 2,310

Contracts in progress relating to professional services are recognized in accrued revenue, see note 19.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES	

							     

In some contracts, as part of building long-term client relationships, the company has made a commitment to provide SimCorp Dimension product support for 

up to eight years from the date of the contract.					   

					   

SimCorp A/S has issued guarantees for its subsidiaries’ delivery commitments to clients for a total of EUR 20.6m (2012: EUR 19.3m).			 

		

The parent company expect to issued letters of support to certain subsidiaries. 					   

					   

Bank guarantees have been provided for rent commitments in Australia, Belgium, France, Luxembourg, Germany, USA and Austria.			 

		

The Group is a party to inquiries from authorities when investigating various issues. The outcome of such is not expected to have a significant effect on profit 

for the year and the assessment of the Group’s financial position.					   

Note

27

PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

Note	 2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

26				    OPERATING LEASES		

				    Rent commitments		
	
		  5,497	 5,602	 Payable within 1 year	 9,028	 9,241
		
		  20,104	 19,470	 Payable within 2 to 5 years	 27,367	 29,376
		
		  3,618	 0	 Payable after 5 years	 6,446	 2,136
		
					   
		  29,219	 25,072	 Rent commitments until expiry of minimum term of tenancy	 42,841	 40,753
		
					   
				    Other commitments		
		
		  101	 53	 Payable within 1 year	 540	 506
		
		  68	 13	 Payable within 2 to 5 years	 548	 552
		

		  169	 66	 Total other commitments	 1,088	 1,058
		
				  
				    Total commitments		
		
		  5,598	 5,655	 Payable within 1 year	 9,568	 9,747
		
		  20,172	 19,483	 Payable within 2 to 5 years	 27,915	 29,928
		
		  3,618	 0	 Payable after 5 years	 6,446	 2,136
		
	
		  29,388	 25,138	 Total commitments	 43,929	 41,811

Amounts of EUR 9.8m (2012: EUR 9.3m) relating to operating leases in the Group and EUR 5.4m (2012: EUR 5.3m) in the parent company have been recognized 

in the income statement for 2013. The Group’s other liabilities comprise operating leases for operating equipment, generally with a lease period of between two 

and five years.

						    

In November 2008 SimCorp moved into the headquarters at Weidekampsgade 16, Copenhagen. The lease has been entered into on market terms and with 

normal rent adjustment clauses. The lease is non-terminable for a period of ten years, with an option to extend for up to 20 years from the commencement of 

the lease.  						    

						    

All the Group’s leases are with an option to extend and are made on market terms with normal rent adjustment clauses and no right of first refusal.		
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS				  

SimCorp’s related parties exercising a significant influence comprise the company’s Board of Directors and Executive Management Board as well as relatives of 

these persons. Related parties also comprise companies in which the individuals mentioned above have material interests.				  

			 

For the parent company, related parties also comprise subsidiaries and associates, see notes 16 and 10, in which SimCorp A/S has a controlling or significant 

influence. 							     

							     

The Group did not enter into any agreement, deals or other transactions in 2013 in which the parent company’s Board of Directors or Executive Management 

Board had a financial interest, except for transactions following from the employment relationship. See note 6.

Note

28

PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

		  2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

	 			   Subsidiaries and associates

				    Trading with subsidiaries and associates
				  
				    has involved the following:
							     
		  17,497	 17,717	 Purchases of services from subsidiaries	 –	 –
		
		  749	 625	 Purchases of services from associates	 754	 655
		
		  80,229	 86,141	 Sale of services to subsidiaries	 –	 –

Transactions with subsidiaries have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statement in accordance with the accounting policies applied.		

					   

The parent company’s outstanding balance with subsidiaries and associates is specified in notes 16 and 10. There are no outstanding loan accounts in 2013 

(2012: EUR 2.4m) with subsidiaries and EUR 0.4m to associates (2012: none). The loans fall due for payment when the companies have excess liquidity 	

						    

In addition, balances with subsidiaries and associates comprise ordinary trade balances relating to the purchase and sale of services. Outstanding balances 

carry interest and are subject to terms and conditions identical to those made with the parent company’s and the Group’s clients and suppliers.		

					   

Trading with subsidiaries and associates of the SimCorp Group is conducted on arm’s length terms. Ownership interests appear from notes 16 and 10.	

						    

Interest on outstanding balances with subsidiaries and associates is specified in notes 11 and 12.						    

	

The parent company has in 2013 received dividends of EUR 25.7m (2012: EUR 24.4m) from subsidiaries and has in 2013 received dividends of EUR 0.02m  

(2012: none) from associates.	

						    

The parent company has provided delivery bonds to certain clients of its subsidiaries, and the parent company has issued letters of support to certain subsid-

iaries, see note 27.
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			  	 		  2012	 2013

	
						     Numbers	 Numbers

						     of DKK 1	 of DKK 1

	 		 The interests in the company of members of the Board of Directors and 

		  the Executive Management Board are listed below:			 
	

		  Shareholdings by members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board:			 
	

	Board of Directors:				  

Jesper Brandgaard			   79,180	 81,140

Peter Schütze			   6,600	 7,790

Herve Couturier			   5,720	 6,490

Simon Jeffreys			   6,890	 7,930

Jacob Goltermann			   12,140	 11,510

Raymond John			   3,340	 2,930

				 
Board of Directors, total			   113,870	 117,790

Executive Management Board:				  

Klaus Holse			   50,000	 50,000

Georg Hetrodt			   98,520	 113,540

Thomas Johansen			   1,750	 4,000

Executive Management Board, total			  150,270	 167,540

				 
Total shareholdings by members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board	 264,140	 285,330

				 
Restricted stock units granted to members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board:			 
	
Board of Directors:				  

Jacob Goltermann			   1,610	 590

Board of Directors, total			   1,610	 590

Executive Management Board:				  

Klaus Holse			   112,220	 127,610

Georg Hetrodt			   44,910	 35,679

Thomas Johansen			   32,640	 38,298

				 
Executive Management Board, total			  189,770	 201,587

				 
Total restricted stock units granted to members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board	 191,380	 202,177

Key Management Personnel (cf. IAS 24) consists of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board.					   

		

Remuneration to members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board is disclosed in note 6.					   

		

Members of the Board of Directors are elected by the shareholders at the annual general meeting for terms of one year.  Members of the Board of Directors elected 

by the employees are elected among all SimCorp Group employees every third year. Election was held in February/March 2013. 				  

			 

Candidates for Board membership may not have turned 70 years of age on the date of the general meeting at which the election takes place. 			 
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Note		

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK	

Due to the nature of its operations, investments and financing, the Group is exposed to changes in exchange rates and interest rates. The Group’s policy is to direct 

financial management towards the management of financial risks related to operations and finance. The Group’s financial risks are managed centrally by the Parent 

Company’s Finance department according to policies committed to writing and approved by the Board of Directors.					   

			 

The scope and nature of the Group’s financial instruments appear from the income statement and the balance sheet in accordance with the accounting policies 

applied. Provided below is information about factors that may influence amounts, time of payment or reliability of future payments, where such information is not 

provided directly in the financial statements or is subject to customary practise.							     

	

This note addresses only financial risks directly related to the Group’s financial instruments. The Group’s most important operational and commercial risk factors are 

described in more detail on page 18–21 of the report.								      

								      

Currency risk								      

The Group’s foreign subsidiaries are not severely impacted by foreign exchange fluctuations, as both income and costs are generally settled in the functional (local) 

currency of the individual entity.								      

								      

The consolidated income statement is impacted by changes in exchange rates. The results of foreign subsidiaries are translated from their functional currency to 

EUR at the exchange rate ruling on the transaction date. The average exchange rate for the month is used to reflect the transaction date’s exchange rate.		

						    

The Group’s foreign exchange policy is to balance incoming and outgoing payments in local currency as much as possible and  generally seek to ensure that an in-

creasing number of contracts entered into are EUR-denominated. When placing surplus funds, the Group generally seeks to minimise its net exposure in individual 

currencies. At the balance sheet date, SimCorp A/S had no financial hedged (2012: CHF 6.5m). 						    

		

Currency exposures of investments in subsidiaries had not been hedged. The related exchange rate adjustments are recognised in other comprehensive income.	

							     

The table below shows currency exposure to each currency as at the balance sheet date based on the functional currencies of the individual Group companies.	

							     

						    

Currency

Currency risks recognized 

in the balance sheet at 31 December 2012:			 

DKK		  41,770	 8,872	 15,002	 35,640

SEK		  1	 0	 108	  (107)

NOK		  0	 0	 1,136	  (1,136)

EUR		  1,753	 7,394	 8,987	 160

GBP		  13	 254	 1,861	  (1,594)

CHF		  0	 0	 5,877	  (5,877)

USD		  0	 1,198	 71	 1,127

AUD		  0	 0	 1,894	  (1,894)

SGD		  0	 2,572	 0	 2,572

CAD		  19	 3,763	 0	 3,782

HKD		  0	 853	 0	 853

UAH		  0	 0	 567	  (567

		  43,556	 24,906	 35,503	 32,959

Currency risks recognized  

in the balance sheet at 31 December  2013:			 

DKK		  35,468	 8,930	 18,459	 25,939

SEK		  0	 3	 856	  (853)

NOK		  0	 0	 1,061	  (1,061)

EUR		  693	 8,969	 7,983	 1,679

GBP		  32	 2,743	 1,510	 1,265

CHF		  0	 0	 713	  (713)

USD		  0	 0	 647	  (647)

AUD		  0	 0	 853	  (853)

SGD		  0	 0	 693	  (693

CAD		  0	 1,965	 0	 1,965

HKD		  0	 428	 0	 428

UAH		  0	 0	 344	  (344)

		
		  36,193	 23,038	 33,119	 26,112

Net positionDebtReceivablesCash/equivalents

EUR'000

PARENT COMPANY
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Sensitivity analysis of the Group's currency exposure							     

Based on the net exposure of the parent company and the Group, the hypothetical impact on the profit before tax for the year and equity, of exchange rate fluctuations 

is as follows:

Currency

Currency risks recognized 

in the balance sheet at 31 December 2012:			 

EUR/DKK		  1,753	 2,264	 60	 3,957

EUR/CHF		  763	 0	 0	 763

EUR/GBP		  0	 16	 0	 16

CHF/DKK		  0	 0	 5,381	  (5,381)

GBP/DKK		  13	 0	 0	 13

USD/SGD		  0	 4,553	 0	 4,553

USD/DKK		  0	 14	 71	  (57)

USD/GBP		  23	 86	 0	 109

USD/HKD		  0	 1,361	 0	 1,361

CAD/USD		  441	 766	 0	 1,207

Currency risks recognized 

in the balance sheet at 31 December 2013:			 

EUR/DKK		  693	 1,417	 41	 2,069

EUR/CHF		  261	 0	 0	 261

EUR/GBP		  0	 331	 0	 331

GBP/DKK		  32	 7	 0	 39

USD/SGD		  0	 174	 0	 174

USD/GBP		  0	 475	 6	 469

USD/HKD		  0	 45	 0	 45

CAD/USD		  123	 1,028	 0	 1,151

AED/GBP		  22	 0	 49	  (27)

EUR/UAH		  109	 0	 0	 109

Net positionDebtReceivablesCash/equivalents

EUR'000

GROUP

20132012

Change in

exchange rate
Change in

exchange rate

Impact on net position

A corresponding fall in the cross rate would have an equivalent opposite effect on profit after tax and equity.					   

			 

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared at the balance sheet date based on the exposure towards the listed currencies at the balance sheet date, without 

taking in to account potential effects on interest rate leves, effect on other currencies etc.

EUR'000EUR'000

Change in

cross rate
Change in

cross rate EUR'000EUR'000

PARENT COMPANY					   

SEK	 10%	  (11)	 10%	  (85)

NOK	 10%	  (114)	 10%	  (106)

GBP	 10%	  (159)	 10%	  127 

CHF	 5%	  (294)	 5%	  (36)

USD	 10%	  113 	 10%	  (65)

AUD	 10%	  (189)	 10%	  (85)

SGD	 10%	  257 	 10%	  (69)

CAD	 10%	 378	 10%	  197 

HKD	 10%	  85 	 10%	  43 

UAH	 10%	  (57)	 10%	  (34)

GROUP					   

EUR/CHF	 5%	 38	 5%	 13

CHF/DKK	 5%	  (269)	 5%	 0

EUR/GBP	 5%	  1	 5%	 17

GBP/DKK	 10%	  1 	 10%	  4 

USD/SGD	 10%	 455	 10%	 17

USD/GBP	 5%	 5	 5%	 23

USD/HKD	 5%	 68	 5%	 2

CAD/USD	 5%	 60	 5%	 58

AED/GBP			   5%	  (1)

EUR/UAH			   5%	 5
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Interest risk									       

The Group’s and the parent company’s interest rate risks are generally related to its bank deposits. 						   

		

SimCorp A/S had bank deposits of EUR 36.2m at 31 December 2013 (2012: EUR 43.6m) carrying a variable rate of interest based on the money market rate. 

The effective rate of interest varies with the currency and, made up at the balance sheet date, fluctuated between 0.0–0.6% in 2013 (2012: –0.6–1.4%) for 

significant deposits.								      

								      

Part of the Parent Company’s cash is placed on time deposits of up to 9 months, carrying fixed interest rates. 					   

			 

The Group had bank deposits of EUR 47.1m at 31 December 2013 (2012: EUR 58.9m) carrying a variable rate of interest based on the money market rate. The 

effective rate of interest varies with the currency and, made up at the balance sheet date, fluctuated between 0.0–0.6% in 2013 (2012: –0.6–1.4%) for signifi-

cant deposits.								      

Accordingly, a change in interest rate levels as at the balance sheet date would have very little impact on profit before tax or equity.			 

					   

If interest rates increased by one percentage point, the interest rate sensitivity as calculated based on quarterly cash deposits at the end of the quarters in 

2013 and 2012, respectively, would have a positive profit impact of EUR 0.36m (2012: EUR 0.44m) in the parent company and of EUR 0.47m (2012: EUR 0.59m) 

in the Group. A corresponding fall in interest rates would have an opposite impact. 							     

	

The impact of change in interest levels on the equity of the parent company and the Group does not deviate significantly from the impact on the profit for the year.	

							     

Liquidity risk								      

It is SimCorp’s policy that cash reserves must exceed 10% of the coming year’s expected costs.						    

		

The Group’s cash reserve comprises cash and cash equivalents and unutilized credit facilities. The Group aims to have sufficient cash resources to allow it to 

continue to operate adequately in case of unforeseen fluctuations in cash. The Group have unutilized credit facilities in banks of EUR 7.4m (2012: EUR 7.7m). 	

							     

The following table indicates when the current and non-current liablities including interest per 31.12.2013 and 31.12.2012, respectively, are expected to fall due:

PARENT COMPANY

Prepayments from clients	 0	 151	 0	 1	 0	 0	 0	 0

Trade payables	 2,731	 4,020	 25	 15	 0	 0	 0	 0

Provisions	 29	 6	 19	 9	 62	 719	 1,235	 498

Other payables	 5,558	 7,847	 3,489	 2,763	 1,240	 1,726	 0	 0

Income tax and deferred tax	 0	 0	 0	 647	 0	 0	 0	 0

Bonds	 0	 0	 15	 760	 764	 0	 0	 0

Payables to subsidiaries	 15,135	 14,765	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0

Total	 23,453	 26,789	 3,548	 4,195	 2,066	 2,445	 1,235	 498

GROUP					   

Prepayments from clients	 2,699	 2,747	 280	 489	 922	 2,254	 0	 0

Trade payables	 5,517	 6,594	 171	 115	 43	 144	 0	 11

Provisions	 60	 97	 35	 43	 627	 1,271	 2,277	 1,906

Other payables	 18,234	 21,770	 3,746	 2,893	 1,444	 1,971	 0	 0

Income tax and deferred tax	 1,875	 1,906	 840	 734	 408	 213	 0	 0

Bonds	 0	 0	 15	 760	 764	 0	 0	 0

Total	 28,385	 33,114	 5,087	 5,034	 4,208	 5,853	 2,277	 1,917

Later than

5 years

2012

Later than

5 years

2013

1 – 5 

years

2013

1 – 5 

years

2012

7 –12

months

2013

7 –12

months

2012

1–6

months

2013

1–6

months

2012

At 31 December

EUR'000

Current Non-current

Financial liabilities are classified as ‘Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost’ in the balance sheet.

The fair value of the bonds essentially equals their carrying amount. 					   

Interest payments are estimated based on current market conditions. 					   

The maturity profile of the Group’s operational leasing obligations appears from note 26.

Time of recognition						    

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the trading day.
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Credit risk								      

The Group is not exposed to significant risks concerning individual clients or business partners. Clients are generally major investment managers in the financial sec-

tor. Under the Group’s policy for assuming credit risk all major clients and other business partners are assessed prior to any contract being signed and a substantial 

amount is paid on entering into license agreements.								     

								      

The maximum exposure to credit risk equals the carrying amounts:

PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

		  2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

		  43,556	 36,193	 Cash and cash equivalents	 58,897	 47,106
	
		  19,350	 16,610	 Receivables	 46,124	 49,336
	

		  62,906	 52,803	 Maximum credit exposure	 105,021	 96,442

Financial assets are classified as ‘Loans and receivables’ and ‘Derivative financial instruments at fair value via income statement’ in the balance sheet.		

						    

Credit risk relating to cash funds comprising current account deposits and fixed term deposits is deemed to be immaterial as the accounts are held with selected 

recognized international banks with high credit ratings. No security has been received.							     

								      

The table shows trade receivables by credit quality categorised by geographic regions:

Fair values								      

SimCorp measures derivative financial instruments, in 2012 comprised forward exchange transactions for the sale of CHF 6.5m against DKK in the period from February 

2013 to August 2013 at fair value. The fair value is determined using generally accepted valuation techniques based on observable exchange rates and yield curves. 	

							     

The forward exchange contracts are included in level 2 (observable input), (2012: EUR 0.6m). 						    

		

PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

		  2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

		  2,332	 2,234	 Europe	 16,902	 19,551
	
		  11	 3	 North America 	 7,008	 5,812
	
		  0	 0	 Asia	 1,909	 241
	
		  0	 2	 Australia	 838	 87
	
		  0	 0	 Other	 30	 404
	
	
		  2,343	 2,239	 Total	 26,687	 26,095

The Group’s trade receivables at 31 December 2013 include no impairments (2012: no impairments), see note 19. Impairments are based on individual assessments 

and result from objective indication of impairment. The impairments will be charged to administrative expenses.					   

Maturity dates for receivables are specified in note 19. No single client represent more than 8.5% (2012: 6.4%) of total trade receivables.			 

					   

Categories of financial instruments								      

The parent company and Group have the following financial instruments:

PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

		  2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

		  62,915	 51,649	 Loan and receivables	 86,826	 74,857
		
		  569	 0	 Derivate at fair value via income statement	 569	 0
		
		  (18,490)	  (19,399)	 Financial obligations measured at amortized cost	  (6,480)	  (7,609)
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31	 NEW ACCOUNTING REGULATIONS

A number of new standards and interpretations not applicable/mandatory for the preparation of the 2013 Annual Report have been published. The SimCorp 

Group expects to implement the new applicable and approved, not yet effective accounting standards and interpretations, as they take effect. 

None of the changed standards or interpretations are expected to have any significant monetary effect on the statements of the SimCorp Group’s results, 

assets and liabilities or the equity.

Note		

30 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Group

On 25 February 2014 SimCorp A/S acquired the remaining 80% of the shares in Equipos Ltd. for GBP 8.3m (EUR 10.0m).  A part of the purchase price is subject to the 

continued employment of the founders and key employees of Equipos Ltd. for a three year period after completion of the acquisition. SimCorp will subsequently own 

100% of Equipos Ltd. Prior to the acquisition, SimCorp owned 20% of the company, which was recognized as an associated company in the Group financial state-

ments using the equity method. 								      

								      

The acquisition will result in an accounting gain of approximately EUR 1.1m in Q1 2014, which is the difference between the value of the 20% calculated at fair 

value and the carrying amount. As the acquisition is completed just ahead of SimCorp’s presentation of its financial statements for 2013, a final purchase price  

allocation  for the acquisition has not been made. A preliminary calculation estimates that the acquisition will lead to an additional value of approximately EUR 11.0m, 

mainly related to goodwill and software. There will be no material impact on the other balance sheet items. The acquisition of Equipos Ltd. will have a positive impact 

on total revenue of 2 %-points, and the EBIT margin is expected to be adversely affected by 0.5 %-points in 2014 due to certain non-recurring costs relating to the 

acquisition.								      

								      

Equipos Ltd., headquartered in the UK, is a leading provider of reporting software capabilities. The products are already utilized by some of SimCorp’s clients, and 

SimCorp expects that significantly more clients will adopt the reporting functionality from Equipos Ltd. under SimCorp’s full ownership. The existing clients of Equi-

pos Ltd. are expected to continue to use the product.								      

Apart from the acquisition of Equipos Ltd., no further events have occurred after the reporting period of importance to Annual Report 2013.

PARENT COMPANY				   GROUP

Note	 2012	 2013		  2012	 2013

	
		  EUR'000	 EUR'000 		  EUR'000	 EUR'000

32	 			   ADJUSTMENTS, CASH FLOW

				  
		  3,002	 2,284	 Depreciation	 3,735	 2,851
		
		  –	 –	 Share of profit after tax in associates	  (141)	  111 
		
		   (26,488)	  (27,798)	 Financial income	  (2,006)	  (2,375)
		
		  1,843	 2,151	 Financial expenses	 2,066	 2,494
		
		  3,095	 4,258	 Tax on profit for the year	 12,522	 14,670
		
		  2,532	 3,038	 Other	 2,532	 3,038
		
						    
		   (16,016)	  (16,067)	 Total adjustments	 18,708	 20,789
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Group quarterly data 2012 and 2013*
	

				    2012				    2013

	 Q1	 Q2	 Q3	 Q4	 Q1	 Q2	 Q3	 Q4

	
EUR/DKK rate of exchange at end of quarter	 7.4399	 7.4334 	  7.4555 	  7.4604 	 7.4528	 7.4588	 7.4580	  7.4603 
	
	
Profit, EUR 1.000

Licenses – new sales	 2,530	 671	 5,819	 5,752	 2,963	 3,997	 3,096	 2,140
	
Licenses – additional sales	 2,608	 3,962	 2,800	 18,263	 2,916	 4,568	 7,423	 15,157
	
Professional services	 17,630	 15,705	 14,699	 18,026	 16,716	 18,998	 17,883	 22,738
	
Maintenance	 24,065	 24,609	 24,722	 24,753	 25,639	 25,897	 25,780	 26,981
	
Training activities etc.	 666	 611	 546	 753	 735	 644	 405	 453
	

Revenue	 47,499	 45,558	 48,586	 67,547	 48,969	 54,104	 54,587	 67,469
	
Costs of sales	 19,604	 19,336	 18,414	 19,221	 19,279	 20,795	 19,411	 21,398
	

Gross Profit	 27,895	 26,222	 30,172	 48,326	 29,690	 33,309	 35,176	 46,071
	
Other operating income	 5	 2	 17	 179	 3	 3	 29	 17
	
Research and development costs	 11,913	 11,178	 11,041	 11,467	 12,219	 12,296	 11,313	 13,720
	
Sales and distribution costs	 6,169	 6,294	 7,628	 7,253	 6,804	 6,218	 7,037	 6,921
	
Administrative expenses	 3,494	 2,792	 3,103	 3,571	 3,706	 3,477	 3,380	 2,971
	
	
Profit from operations (EBIT)	 6,324	 5,960	 8,417	 26,214	 6,964	 11,321	 13,475	 22,476
	
Financial items	  (250)	  (44)	 451	  (76)	 4	  (78)	  (240)	 84
	
Profit before tax	 6,074	 5,916	 8,868	 26,138	 6,968	 11,243	 13,235	 22,560
	
Tax	 1,691	 1,608	 2,409	 6,813	 1,990	 3,351	 3,255	 6,074
	
Profit for the period	 4,383	 4,308	 6,459	 19,325	 4,978	 7,892	 9,980	 16,486
	
	
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation	 7,364	 7,004	 9,317	 26,965	 7,768	 12,055	 14,226	 23,036

and amortization (EBITDA)
	
	
Balance sheet, EUR’000	
	
Share capital	 6,179	 6,045	 6,045	 6,045	 6,045	 5,844	 5,844	 5,844
	
Equity	 59,942	 63,340	 68,593	 85,864	 71,318	 65,722	 65,507	 71,566
	
Property, plant and equipment 	 7,019	 6,316	 5,845	 5,213	 4,658	 4,429	 4,382	 4,839
	
Cash and cash equivalents	 52,953	 37,865	 43,110	 58,897	 58,609	 46,277	 42,401	 47,106
	
Total assets	 119,633	 101,576	 104,025	 125,791	 120,641	 109,245	 108,818	 117,469
	

Cash flows, EUR’000	
	
Cash flow from operating activities	 17,178	 4,085	 7,354	 18,048	 16,397	 6,042	 8,072	 16,936
	
Cash flow from investing activities, net	  (77)	 5	  (427)	  (267)	  (188)	  (489)	  (1,044)	  (1,122)
	
Cash flow from financing activities	  (12,153)	  (19,266)	  (1,858)	  (2,085)	  (16,489)	  (17,550)	  (10,881)	  (10,930)
	
Net change in cash and cash equivalents	 4,948	  (15,176)	 5,070	 15,696	  (280)	  (11,997)	  (3,853)	  4,884 
	

Employees	

Average number of employees	 1,089	 1,073	 1,064	 1,075	 1,083	 1,081	 1,091	 1,116

*  Group quarterly data is unaudited
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				    2012				    2013

	 Q1	 Q2	 Q3	 Q4	 Q1	 Q2	 Q3	 Q4

	
EUR/DKK rate of exchange at end of quarter	 7.4399	 7.4334 	  7.4555 	  7.4604 	 7.4528	 7.4588	 7.4580	  7.4603 
	
	
Financial ratios

EBIT margin (%)	 13.3	 13.1	 17.3	 38.8	 14.2	 20.9	 24.7	 33.3

ROIC (return on invested capital) (%)	 75.9	 77.4	 114.9	 346.9	 106.7	 193.9	 210.0	 325.0

Debtor turnover rate	 8.4	 8.0	 9.4	 10.1	 9.9	 10.6	 10.4	 10.3

Equity ratio (%)	 50.1	 62.4	 65.9	 68.3	 59.1	 60.2	 60.2	 60.9

Return on equity (%)	 21.8	 27.8	 39.2	 100.1	 22.8	 46.1	 60.8	 96.0

Share performance						    

Basic earnings per share of 1 DKK – EPS (EUR) 	 0.10	 0.10	 0.15	 0.44	 0.12	 0.19	 0.24	  0.40 

Diluted earnings per share of 1 DKK – EPS-D (EUR)	 0.10	 0.10	 0.15	 0.44	 0.12	 0.18	 0.23	  0.39 

Cash flow per share of 1 DKK – CFPS (EUR)	 0.40	 0.10	 0.17	 0.41	 0.39	 0.14	 0.19	  0.41 

						    
Average number of shares of DKK 1 (m)	 43.4	 42.8	 42.6	 43.5	 42.6	 42.5	 42.0	 41.5

						    
Segment Data

Segment revenue						    

Nordic Region	 14,243	 12,994	 11,699	 18,199	 13,950	 15,437	 14,067	 18,451

Central Europe	 14,954	 16,038	 16,516	 22,058	 15,456	 16,403	 18,681	 22,786

UK and Ireland	 5,263	 3,324	 4,429	 4,712	 6,281	 4,117	 6,427	 5,834

Benelux and France	 7,028	 7,536	 6,524	 10,581	 6,561	 7,092	 6,930	 10,537

Asia and Australia	 4,070	 4,314	 3,723	 9,932	 4,697	 4,474	 4,088	 4,207

North America	 7,086	 6,045	 10,206	 9,584	 8,704	 13,828	 10,348	 7,586

Product division	 14,692	 11,813	 20,104	 24,526	 17,204	 15,780	 18,230	 22,278

Corporate functions	 49	 23	 49	 422	 29	 27	 58	 420

Total	 67,385	 62,087	 73,250	 100,014	 72,882	 77,158	 78,829	 92,099

Elimination/not allocated	  (19,886)	  (16,529)	  (24,664)	  (32,467)	  (23,913)	  (23,054)	  (24,242)	  (24,630)

Group total revenue	 47,499	 45,558	 48,586	 67,547	 48,969	 54,104	 54,587	 67,469

Segment profit from operations (EBIT)					   

Nordic Region	 3,334	 3,855	 2,546	 6,136	 2,089	 5,731	 2,306	 5,587

Central Europe	 3,263	 3,338	 3,697	 7,330	 2,957	 3,207	 4,791	 6,741

UK and Ireland	  (37)	  (1,067)	  (122)	 315	 1,510	 59	 1,128	 551

Benelux and France	 664	 819	 591	 1,744	 703	 545	 857	 2,381

Asia and Australia	 705	 671	 103	 2,661	 480	 397	 461	 449

North America	 79	  (390)	 158	 13	  (1,081)	 1,039	  (17)	 1,166

Product division	 2,854	 8,943	 3,298	 11,622	 1,857	 1,433	 4,387	 6,432

Corporate functions	  (4,538)	  (10,209)	  (1,854)	  (3,607)	  (1,551)	  (1,090)	  (438)	  (831)

Total segment profit from operations (EBIT)	 6,324	 5,960	 8,417	 26,214	 6,964	 11,321	 13,475	 22,476

*  Group quarterly data is unaudited
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“�Challenger has grown its business at an annual 
growth rate of around 20% for the past five years. 
SimCorp has been part of that success.”  
—  David Mackaway, General Manager, Operations, Challenger

SimCorp’s portfolio of integrated front-to-back solutions  
for business process automation in investment management 
add value through mitigating risk, reducing costs, and 
enabling growth. 

SimCorp
Dimension
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Selected functional features of SimCorp Dimension

–	 Straight-through processing
–	 Trading and order management
–	 Investment book of records (IBOR)
–	 Portfolio management and analytics
–	 Risk management
–	 Performance measurement and attribution
–	 Cash management
–	 Security and position administration
–	 Fund administration
–	 Compliance and reporting
–	 Accounting
–	� System administration and interfacing	

Client benefits from SimCorp Dimension

–	� Helps clients to mitigate risk, reduce cost, 
	 and enable growth

–	 Based on proven technology
–	 Flexible solution configurable to specific demands
–	 Consistent data model across domains
–	� SimCorp’s continued intensive investment in 
	 further development 

“�After two years in production, the investment 
operations team has greatly benefited from 
the operational efficiency SimCorp offers.” 
— � Merele A. May, Senior Vice President, Investment Operations,  

American Century Investments

“�We have been able to streamline and 
automate processes, releasing employees 
from manual work to more value-creating 
assignments. This literally saves us days of 
work every month and in addition reduces 
our operational risk.” 
—  Eero Eriksson, Investment Director,  

Fennia Mutual Insurance Company
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1,100 employees from 45 countries

90% 
hold an 
academic 
degree

Average seniority: 7 years

of all costs go to R&D
30%

SimCorp human power
As a specialized financial software and services provider, highly 
skilled and satisfied employees are paramount to SimCorp’s 
success. Most of SimCorp’s employees are experts within finance, 
IT, engineering, or economics.
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info@simcorp.com

SimCorp corporate 
headquarters
SIMCORP A/S
Weidekampsgade 16
2300 Copenhagen S.
Denmark
Phone	 +45 35 44 88 00
Fax	 +45 35 44 88 11

SimCorp Nordic
SIMCORP SVERIGE AB
Jakobsbergsgatan 22
111 44 Stockholm
Sweden
Phone	 +46 8 528 015 00
Fax	 +46 8 528 015 15

SIMCORP NORGE AS
Biskop Gunnerusgate 14A
Postboks 13
0051 Oslo
Norway
Phone	 +47 23 10 41 00
Fax	 +47 23 10 41 49

SIMCORP FINLAND
(Finnish branch of
SimCorp Sverige AB)
Salomonkatu 17
00100 Helsinki
Finland
Phone	 +358 9685 2010
Fax	 +358 9685 2012

SIMCORP UKRAINE LLC 
V. Stusa 35–37
2nd floor
03142 Kiev
Ukraine
Phone	 +380 44 594 95 60
Fax	 +380 44 594 95 61

SimCorp Central Europe
SIMCORP GMBH
Justus-von-Liebig-Straße 1
61352 Bad Homburg
Germany
Phone	 +49 6172 9240-0
Fax	 +49 6172 9240-40

SIMCORP ÖSTERREICH GMBH
Wollzeile 16
1010 Vienna
Austria
Phone	 +43 1 5120099
Fax	 +43 1 5120183

SIMCORP SCHWEIZ AG
Sihlquai 253
8005 Zurich
Switzerland
Phone	 +41 44 360 59 00
Fax	 +41 44 360 59 01

SimCorp Western Europe 
SIMCORP BENELUX SA/NV
Building Stéphanie 1
Avenue Louise 54
1050 Brussels
Belgium
Phone	 +32 2 213 30 00
Fax	 +32 2 213 30 01

SIMCORP NETHERLANDS
(Dutch branch of SimCorp  
Benelux SA/NV)
Gustav Mahlerplein 109-111 
1082 MS Amsterdam
The Netherlands
Phone	 +31 (0)20 708 57 64
Fax	 +32 2 213 30 01

SIMCORP FRANCE S.A.S.
rue Saint-Augustin 29-31
75002 Paris
France
Phone	 +33 1 5535 5454
Fax	 +33 1 5535 5455

SIMCORP LUXEMBOURG S.A.
rue Eugène Ruppert 20
2453 Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Phone	 +352 26 49 35 65
Fax	 +32 2 213 30 01

SimCorp UK
SIMCORP LTD.
2nd floor
100 Wood Street
London EC2V 7AN
United Kingdom
Phone	 +44 20 7260 1900
Fax	 +44 20 7260 1911

SimCorp North America 
SIMCORP USA INC.
17 State Street – 6th Floor
New York, NY 10004
USA
Phone	 +1 212 994 9400
Fax	 +1 212 994 8826

SIMCORP USA INC.
1999 Avenue of the Stars
Suite 1100
Los Angeles, CA 90067
USA
Phone	 +1 424 354 5151
Fax	 +1 424 354 5150

SIMCORP CANADA INC.
401 Bay Street 
Suite 1600
Toronto, Ontario M5H 2Y4
Canada 
Phone	 +1 647 591 9200
Fax	 +1 647 591 9201

SimCorp Asia 
SIMCORP ASIA PTY. LTD.
Level 13, 68 Pitt Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia
Phone	 +61 2 9241 4222
Fax	 +61 2 9221 5100

SIMCORP HONG KONG LTD.
Suite 2122
21st Floor
The Center
99 Queen’s Road
Central 
Hong Kong
Phone	 +852 2521 2680
Fax	 +852 3478 3880

SIMCORP SINGAPORE PTE. LTD.
#58-03/05, Republic Plaza
9 Raffles Place
Singapore 048619
Singapore
Phone	 +65 6823 1517
Fax	 +65 6823 1377

www.simcorp.com

info@simcorp.com 

Addresses
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